






WORKSESSION AGENDA ITEM # 1 

 

 

 

 

 

Executive Summary 

November 5, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Discussion regarding establishing “Child Safety Zones” 
within the city limits of Leander, Texas. 
  
Background:  There are cities within Texas and throughout the United States that have 
established child safety zones, within which persons who have committed certain crimes 
against children are prohibited from residing.  A Texas federal district court recently 
considered a lawsuit challenging the City of Lewisville’s child safety zone ordinance, and 
upheld the ordinance, and other non-Texas jurisdictions have upheld residency 
restrictions.   (Whether the Texas ruling will be appealed is not yet clear.)   The 
ordinances generally prohibit such persons from residing within a certain distance of 
“places where children commonly gather”, as defined by the ordinance.  Reasons for 
adopting child safety zones cited by cities include:  reducing the frequency of contact 
between sex offenders and children, the high recidivism rate among those who commit 
sex offenses against children, reducing temptation and opportunity to reoffend, and 
protecting the health and safety of children.  State law requires that persons placed on 
probation or parole for certain offenses against children be prohibited from going within 
1,000 feet of where children commonly gather, and exceptions may be granted on a case-
by-case allowed after review by the probation officer or a judge.  
 
Background material for this agenda item includes the City of Lewisville’s child safety 
zone ordinance, the City of Cedar Park’s recently-adopted child safety zone ordinance, 
maps showing possible child safety zones, and excerpts from the statute regulating sex 
offender registration. 
 
Origination:  Greg Minton, Chief of Police 
 
Financial Consideration:  N/A 
 



 
 
 
Recommendation:   N/A 
 
 
Attachments:   City of Cedar Park, Texas Ordinance / City of Lewisville, Texas 
Ordinance, Excerpts from the Code of Criminal Procedures governing sex offender 
registration, Maps: Parcel with 1000’ & 1500’ buffers  / Parcels & Trails 1000’ & 1500’ 
buffers   

 
Prepared by:  Greg Minton, Chief of Police 
 



 
ARTICLE 8.12.  CHILD SAFETY ZONES 

 
Sec. 8.12.001  Definitions 
 
Day Care Center. A facility providing care, training, education, custody, treatment, or 
supervision for 13 or more children for less than 24 hours a day. 
 
Minor. A person under the age of 17. 
 
Park. A parcel of land, community park, neighborhood park, playground, swimming pool, indoor 
facility, outdoor facility, recreation center, field, athletic field, hike and bike trails, greenbelt 
areas and any other area in the City owned, leased and/or used by the City, and devoted to active 
or passive recreation, including any related facilities, parking lots and/or amenities, save and 
except any of the foregoing that has a stadium, arena and/or permanent seating and primarily 
used for sporting events, special events and/or other entertainment any of which is not managed 
by the City. 
 
Permanent Residence. A place where a person abides, lodges, or resides for 14 or more 
consecutive days. 
 
Premises Where Children Commonly Gather. Areas including all improved and unimproved lots 
where the following are located or planned to be located: a public Park, private or public school 
(excluding in-home schools), Day Care Center, or private recreational facility, including a  
Park, pool, playground, skate Park, or youth athletic field owned by a residential property owners 
association, or for which an entrance, admission, or rental fee is charged. 
 
Temporary Residence. A place where a person abides, lodges, or resides for a period of 14 or 
more days in the aggregate during any calendar year and which is not the person’s permanent 
address, or a place where a person routinely abides, resides, or lodges for a period of four or 
more consecutive or nonconsecutive days in any month and which is not the person’s Permanent 
Residence. 
 
Child Sex Offender. A person who is required to register on the Texas Department of Public 
Safety’s Sex Offender Database (the “Database”) because of a conviction(s) involving a Minor. 
 
Sec. 8.12.002  Offenses: Residency Requirements 
 
(a)     It shall be unlawful for a Child Sex Offender to establish a Permanent Residence or 
Temporary Residence within 1,500 feet of any Premises Where Children Commonly Gather. 
 
(b) It shall be unlawful to let or rent any place, structure or part thereof, manufactured home, 
trailer, or other conveyance, with the knowledge that it will be used as a Permanent Residence or 
Temporary Residence by any person prohibited from establishing such Permanent Residence or 
Temporary Residence pursuant to the terms of this Article, if such place, structure or part 



thereof, manufactured home, trailer, or other conveyance, is located within 1,500 feet of any 
Premises Where Children Commonly Gather. 
 
Sec. 8.12.003  Offenses: Halloween 
 
A Child Sex Offender shall not on each October 31st leave an exterior porch light on or otherwise 
invite trick-or-treaters to the premises. 
 
Sec. 8.12.004  Evidentiary matters; measurement 
 
(a)      For the purpose of determining the minimum distance of separation under this Article, the 
distance shall be measured by following a straight line from the outer property line of the 
Permanent or Temporary Residence to the nearest property line of the Premises Where Children 
Commonly Gather, as described hereinabove, or, in the case of multiple residences on one 
property, measuring from the nearest property line of the premises to the nearest property line of 
the Premises Where Children Commonly Gather, as described herein. 
 
(b)     A map depicting the prohibited areas shall be maintained by the City, and it shall be 
reviewed and updated not less than annually for changes. Said map will be available to the public 
on the City’s website at the Cedar Park Police Department. 
 
(c)      Neither allegation nor evidence of a culpable mental state is required for the proof of an 
offense defined in this Article. 
 
Sec. 8.12.005  Affirmative Defenses 
 
The following shall be affirmative defenses to prosecution under this Article that any of the 
following conditions apply: 
 
(a)     It shall be an affirmative defense under Section 8.12.002 if the person required to register 
on the database established the Permanent or Temporary Residence and has complied with all of 
the Child Sex Offender registration laws of the State of Texas, prior to the date of the adoption of 
this Article, provided, however that if the person required to register on the database established 
the Permanent or Temporary Residence through a lease or other rental arrangement in effect on 
the effective date of this Ordinance, this affirmative defense shall not apply upon termination of 
the lease/rental arrangement that is in effect on the effective date of this Ordinance.  
  
(b)     It shall be an affirmative defense under Section 8.12.002 if the Premises Where Children 
Commonly Gather was designated, declared and/or determined after the Child Sex Offender 
established the Permanent or Temporary Residence and complied with all Child Sex Offender 
registration laws of the State of Texas provided, however, that if the person required to register 
on the database established the Permanent or Temporary Residence through a lease or other 
rental arrangement in effect on the effective date of this Ordinance, this affirmative defense shall 
not apply upon termination of the lease/rental arrangement that is in effect on the effective date 
of this Ordinance.  
 



(c)     It shall be an affirmative defense under Sections 8.12.002 and 8.12.003 if the information 
on the database is incorrect, and, if corrected, this Article would not apply to the person who was 
erroneously listed on the database. 
 
Sec. 8.12.006 Penalty Provision 

 
Any person who violates the provisions of this Article shall be charged with a class C 
misdemeanor; and upon conviction shall be fined as provided for in Section 1.01.009 of this 
Code for each day that a violation exists, and a separate offense shall be deemed committed upon 
each day during or on which a violation occurs or continues.  

http://z2.franklinlegal.net/franklin/DocViewer.jsp?docid=4&z2collection=cedarpark%23JD_1.01.009


ARTICLE III. - REGULATION OF SEX OFFENDER RESIDENCY  

 

Sec. 8-41. - Definitions.  

For the purpose of this article, the following terms, words and the derivations thereof shall have the 
meanings given below:  

Day care center. A facility providing care, training, education, custody, treatment, or supervision for 
13 or more children for less than 24 hours a day.  

Minor. Any person younger than 17 years of age.  

Permanent residence. A place where a person abides, lodges or resides for 14 or more consecutive 
days.  

Premises where children commonly gather. Includes all improved and unimproved areas on the lot 
where a public park, public playground, private or public school, public or semi-public swimming pool, 
public or non-profit recreational facility, day care center or video arcade facility is located, as those terms 
are or may be defined in section 481.134 of the Texas Health and Safety Code, as amended. For 
purposes of this article, landscaped street medians are not public parks.  

Temporary residences. A place where a person abides, lodges or resides for a period of 14 or more 
days in the aggregate during any calendar year, and which is not the person's permanent address, or a 
place where a person routinely abides, lodges or resides for [a] period of four or more consecutive or 
nonconsecutive days in a month and which is not the person's permanent residence.  

(Ord. No. 3533-01-2008, § II, 1-28-08) 

Sec. 8-42. - Offenses.  

It is unlawful for a person to establish a permanent or temporary residence within 1,500 feet of any 
premises where children commonly gather if the person is required to register on the state department of 
public safety's sex offender database because of a conviction(s) involving a minor.  

(Ord. No. 3533-01-2008, § II, 1-28-08) 

Sec. 8-43. - Evidentiary matters; measurements.  

(a) It shall be prima facie evidence that this article applies to a person if that person's record appears on 
the database and the database indicates that the victim was a minor as defined herein.  

(b) For the purposes of determining the minimum distance separation, the requirement shall be 
measured by following a straight line from the outer property line of the permanent or temporary 
residence to the nearest property line of the premises where children commonly gather, as described 
herein above, or, in the case of multiple residences on one property, measuring from the nearest 
property line of the premises to the nearest property line of the premises where children commonly 
gather, as described herein.  

(c) A map depicting the prohibited areas shall be maintained by the city. Said map will be available to 
the public for inspection at the city police department.  

(Ord. No. 3533-01-2008, § II, 1-28-08) 

Sec. 8-44. - Culpable mental state not required.  

  Page 1 



Neither allegation nor evidence of a culpable mental state is required for the proof of any offense 
defined by this article.  

(Ord. No. 3533-01-2008, § II, 1-28-08) 

Sec. 8-45. - Affirmative defenses.  

It is an affirmative defense to prosecution under this article that any of the following conditions apply:  

(1) The person required to register on the database established the permanent or temporary 
residence and has complied with all of the sex offender registration laws of the state prior to the 
date of the adoption of this article.  

(2) The person required to register on the database was a minor when he or she committed the 
offense requiring such registration and was not convicted as an adult.  

(3) The person required to register on the database is a minor. 

(4) The premises where children commonly gather, as specified herein, within 1,500 feet of the 
permanent or temporary residence of the person required to register on the database was 
opened after the person established the permanent or temporary residence and complied with 
all state sex offender registration laws.  

(5) The information on the database is incorrect, and, if corrected, this article would not apply to the 
person who was erroneously listed on the database.  

(6) The person was at the time of the violation subject to community services supervision pursuant 
to section 13B of article 42.12 of the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure, as amended, and the 
court reduced or waived the 1,000-foot restriction for a child free zone under section 
13B(a)(1)(B) of article 42.12 of the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure, as amended, as it 
applies to the person's residence.  

(Ord. No. 3533-01-2008, § II, 1-28-08) 

Sec. 8-46. - Penalty.  

A person who violates any of the provisions of this ordinance shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and 
upon conviction, shall be fined a sum not to exceed $500.00 for each offense, and each and every 
violation or day such violation shall continue or exist, shall be deemed a separate offense.  

(Ord. No. 3533-01-2008, § II, 1-28-08) 

  Page 2 



Excerpts from the Code of Criminal Procedure governing sex 

offender registration: 

(5)  "Reportable conviction or adjudication" means a 

conviction or adjudication, including an adjudication of 

delinquent conduct or a deferred adjudication, that, regardless 

of the pendency of an appeal, is a conviction for or an 

adjudication for or based on: 

(A)  a violation of Section 21.02 (Continuous 

sexual abuse of young child or children), 21.11 (Indecency with 

a child), 22.011 (Sexual assault), 22.021 (Aggravated sexual 

assault), or 25.02 (Prohibited sexual conduct), Penal Code; 

(B)  a violation of Section 43.05 (Compelling 

prostitution), 43.25 (Sexual performance by a child), or 43.26 

(Possession or promotion of child pornography), Penal Code; 

(C)  a violation of Section 20.04(a)(4) 

(Aggravated kidnapping), Penal Code, if the actor committed the 

offense or engaged in the conduct with intent to violate or 

abuse the victim sexually; 

(D)  a violation of Section 30.02 (Burglary), 

Penal Code, if the offense or conduct is punishable under 

Subsection (d) of that section and the actor committed the 

offense or engaged in the conduct with intent to commit a felony 

listed in Paragraph (A) or (C); 

(E)  a violation of Section 20.02 (Unlawful 

restraint), 20.03 (Kidnapping), or 20.04 (Aggravated 

kidnapping), Penal Code, if, as applicable: 

(i)  the judgment in the case contains an 

affirmative finding under Article 42.015; or 

(ii)  the order in the hearing or the papers 

in the case contain an affirmative finding that the victim or 

intended victim was younger than 17 years of age; 

(F)  the second violation of Section 21.08 

(Indecent exposure), Penal Code, but not if the second violation 

results in a deferred adjudication; 

(G)  an attempt, conspiracy, or solicitation, as 

defined by Chapter 15, Penal Code, to commit an offense or 

http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=CR&Value=21.02&Date=7/18/2015
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=CR&Value=43.05&Date=7/18/2015
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=CR&Value=20.04&Date=7/18/2015
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=PE&Value=30.02&Date=7/18/2015
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=CR&Value=20.02&Date=7/18/2015
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=CR&Value=42.015&Date=7/18/2015
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=CR&Value=21.08&Date=7/18/2015


engage in conduct listed in Paragraph (A), (B), (C), (D), (E), 

or (K); 

(H)  a violation of the laws of another state, 

federal law, the laws of a foreign country, or the Uniform Code 

of Military Justice for or based on the violation of an offense 

containing elements that are substantially similar to the 

elements of an offense listed under Paragraph (A), (B), (C), 

(D), (E), (G), (J), or (K), but not if the violation results in 

a deferred adjudication; 

(I)  the second violation of the laws of another 

state, federal law, the laws of a foreign country, or the 

Uniform Code of Military Justice for or based on the violation 

of an offense containing elements that are substantially similar 

to the elements of the offense of indecent exposure, but not if 

the second violation results in a deferred adjudication; 

(J)  a violation of Section 33.021 (Online 

solicitation of a minor), Penal Code; or 

(K)  a violation of Section 20A.02(a)(3), (4), 

(7), or (8) (Trafficking of persons), Penal Code. 

 

Art. 62.101.  EXPIRATION OF DUTY TO REGISTER.  (a)  Except 

as provided by Subsection (b) and Subchapter I, the duty to 

register for a person ends when the person dies if the person 

has a reportable conviction or adjudication, other than an 

adjudication of delinquent conduct, for: 

(1)  a sexually violent offense; 

(2)  an offense under Section 20A.02(a)(3), (4), (7), 

or (8), 25.02, 43.05(a)(2), or 43.26, Penal Code; 

(3)  an offense under Section 21.11(a)(2), Penal Code, 

if before or after the person is convicted or adjudicated for 

the offense under Section 21.11(a)(2), Penal Code, the person 

receives or has received another reportable conviction or 

adjudication, other than an adjudication of delinquent conduct, 

for an offense or conduct that requires registration under this 

chapter; 

http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=PE&Value=20A.02&Date=7/18/2015
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=PE&Value=25.02&Date=7/18/2015
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=PE&Value=43.05&Date=7/18/2015
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=PE&Value=43.26&Date=7/18/2015
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=PE&Value=21.11&Date=7/18/2015
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=PE&Value=21.11&Date=7/18/2015


(4)  an offense under Section 20.02, 20.03, or 20.04, 

Penal Code, if: 

(A)  the judgment in the case contains an 

affirmative finding under Article 42.015 or, for a deferred 

adjudication, the papers in the case contain an affirmative 

finding that the victim or intended victim was younger than 17 

years of age; and 

(B)  before or after the person is convicted or 

adjudicated for the offense under Section 20.02, 20.03, 

or 20.04, Penal Code, the person receives or has received 

another reportable conviction or adjudication, other than an 

adjudication of delinquent conduct, for an offense or conduct 

that requires registration under this chapter; or 

(5)  an offense under Section 43.23, Penal Code, that 

is punishable under Subsection (h) of that section. 

(b)  Except as provided by Subchapter I, the duty to 

register for a person otherwise subject to Subsection (a) ends 

on the 10th anniversary of the date on which the person is 

released from a penal institution or discharges community 

supervision or the court dismisses the criminal proceedings 

against the person and discharges the person, whichever date is 

later, if the person's duty to register is based on a conviction 

or an order of deferred adjudication in a cause that was 

transferred to a district court or criminal district court under 

Section 54.02, Family Code. 

(c)  Except as provided by Subchapter I, the duty to 

register for a person with a reportable conviction or 

adjudication for an offense other than an offense described by 

Subsection (a) ends: 

(1)  if the person's duty to register is based on an 

adjudication of delinquent conduct, on the 10th anniversary of 

the date on which the disposition is made or the person 

completes the terms of the disposition, whichever date is later; 

or 

(2)  if the person's duty to register is based on a 

conviction or on an order of deferred adjudication, on the 10th 

http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=PE&Value=20.02&Date=7/18/2015
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=PE&Value=20.03&Date=7/18/2015
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=PE&Value=20.04&Date=7/18/2015
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=CR&Value=42.015&Date=7/18/2015
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=PE&Value=20.02&Date=7/18/2015
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=PE&Value=20.03&Date=7/18/2015
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=PE&Value=20.04&Date=7/18/2015
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=PE&Value=43.23&Date=7/18/2015
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=FA&Value=54.02&Date=7/18/2015


anniversary of the date on which the court dismisses the 

criminal proceedings against the person and discharges the 

person, the person is released from a penal institution, or the 

person discharges community supervision, whichever date is 

later. 



&.

&.

&.

&.&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.
&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.
&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

Registered Offenders
Child Offender
&. YES

&. NO

Qualifying Parcel (Daycare / Park / Library / School)

Qualifying Parcel 1,000' Buffer

County Line

City of Leander - City Limits

Note: The City of Leander and its officers, agents, and employees
do not represent this data to be correct or accurate in any respect
or that its use will not infringe on any copyright, patent, or other
rights of any third party.  The City shall have no liability or
responsibility for the accuracy, completeness, or usefulness of this
data; and makes no representation or warranty of merchantability or 
fitness for any purpose, either expressed or implied.  All risks of
using this data are assumed by the user and/or purchaser.

City of Cedar Park, Texas

Ë
0 2,000 4,000

Feet

Coordinate System: NAD 1983 StatePlane Texas Central FIPS 4203 Feet
Projection: Lambert Conformal Conic
Datum: North American 1983
False Easting: 2,296,583.3333
False Northing: 9,842,500.0000
Central Meridian: -100.3333
Standard Parallel 1: 30.1167
Standard Parallel 2: 31.8833
Latitude Of Origin: 29.6667
Units: Foot US

Note:  
Offenders shown as of 10/14/2015.
Trail buffers are shown at ultimate buildout
based on Trails Master Plan.

10/30/2015

City Of Leander, Texas
Child Safety Zones



&.

&.

&.

&.&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.
&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.
&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

City of Leander - City Limits

Registered Offenders
Child Offender
&. YES

&. NO

Qualifying Parcel (Daycare / Park / Library / School)

Qualifying Parcel 1,500' Buffer

County Line

Note: The City of Leander and its officers, agents, and employees
do not represent this data to be correct or accurate in any respect
or that its use will not infringe on any copyright, patent, or other
rights of any third party.  The City shall have no liability or
responsibility for the accuracy, completeness, or usefulness of this
data; and makes no representation or warranty of merchantability or 
fitness for any purpose, either expressed or implied.  All risks of
using this data are assumed by the user and/or purchaser.

City of Cedar Park, Texas

Ë
0 2,000 4,000

Feet

Coordinate System: NAD 1983 StatePlane Texas Central FIPS 4203 Feet
Projection: Lambert Conformal Conic
Datum: North American 1983
False Easting: 2,296,583.3333
False Northing: 9,842,500.0000
Central Meridian: -100.3333
Standard Parallel 1: 30.1167
Standard Parallel 2: 31.8833
Latitude Of Origin: 29.6667
Units: Foot US

Note:  
Offenders shown as of 10/14/2015.
Trail buffers are shown at ultimate buildout
based on Trails Master Plan.

10/30/2015

City Of Leander, Texas
Child Safety Zones



&.

&.

&.

&.&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.
&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.
&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

Registered Offenders
Child Offender
&. YES

&. NO

Qualifying Parcel (Daycare / Park / Library / School)

Qualifying Parcel 1,000' Buffer

Leander Trails
Secondary Trail

Secondary Trail, Complete

Primary Trail, Planned

Primary Trail, Complete

Connector, Planned

Connector, Complete

Trail Type 1,000' Buffer
Connector Trail

Secondary Trail

Primary Trail

County Line

City of Leander - City Limits

Note: The City of Leander and its officers, agents, and employees
do not represent this data to be correct or accurate in any respect
or that its use will not infringe on any copyright, patent, or other
rights of any third party.  The City shall have no liability or
responsibility for the accuracy, completeness, or usefulness of this
data; and makes no representation or warranty of merchantability or 
fitness for any purpose, either expressed or implied.  All risks of
using this data are assumed by the user and/or purchaser.

City of Cedar Park, Texas

Ë
0 2,000 4,000

Feet

Coordinate System: NAD 1983 StatePlane Texas Central FIPS 4203 Feet
Projection: Lambert Conformal Conic
Datum: North American 1983
False Easting: 2,296,583.3333
False Northing: 9,842,500.0000
Central Meridian: -100.3333
Standard Parallel 1: 30.1167
Standard Parallel 2: 31.8833
Latitude Of Origin: 29.6667
Units: Foot US

Note:  
Offenders shown as of 10/14/2015.
Trail buffers are shown at ultimate buildout
based on Trails Master Plan.

10/30/2015

City Of Leander, Texas
Child Safety Zones



&.

&.

&.

&.&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.
&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.
&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

City of Leander - City Limits

Registered Offenders
Child Offender
&. YES

&. NO

Qualifying Parcel (Daycare / Park / Library / School)

Qualifying Parcel 1,500' Buffer

Leander Trails
Secondary Trail

Secondary Trail, Complete

Primary Trail, Planned

Primary Trail, Complete

Connector, Planned

Connector, Complete
Trail Type 1,500' Buffer

Connector Trail

Secondary Trail

Primary Trail

County Line

Note: The City of Leander and its officers, agents, and employees
do not represent this data to be correct or accurate in any respect
or that its use will not infringe on any copyright, patent, or other
rights of any third party.  The City shall have no liability or
responsibility for the accuracy, completeness, or usefulness of this
data; and makes no representation or warranty of merchantability or 
fitness for any purpose, either expressed or implied.  All risks of
using this data are assumed by the user and/or purchaser.

City of Cedar Park, Texas

Ë
0 2,000 4,000

Feet

Coordinate System: NAD 1983 StatePlane Texas Central FIPS 4203 Feet
Projection: Lambert Conformal Conic
Datum: North American 1983
False Easting: 2,296,583.3333
False Northing: 9,842,500.0000
Central Meridian: -100.3333
Standard Parallel 1: 30.1167
Standard Parallel 2: 31.8833
Latitude Of Origin: 29.6667
Units: Foot US

Note:  
Offenders shown as of 10/14/2015.
Trail buffers are shown at ultimate buildout
based on Trails Master Plan.

10/30/2015

City Of Leander, Texas
Child Safety Zones



CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 

This is to certify that the 
Mayor and the 

Leander City Council 
 

Congratulate & Commend the 
 

Leander High School Band 
 

For Placing 1st in the Area D Marching Contest and 
Advancing to the UIL State Marching Contest 

 
 
           

          _________________________          ________________________ 
          Christopher Fielder                     Andrea Navarrette 
                      Mayor                                           Mayor Pro Tem 



PROCLAMATION 
 

WHEREAS, A Caregiver refers to “anyone who provides assistance to someone else who is, in 
some degree, incapacitated and needs help”. A range of services include emotional and 
spiritual support, assistance with financial matters, transportation and home-and health-related 
services; and 

WHEREAS, An estimated 43.5 million adults in the U.S. provide unpaid care to an adult or child 
today. Family Caregivers are the backbone of the Nation’s long-term care system, providing an 
estimated $450 billion worth of unpaid care each year; and  

WHEREAS, About 6 in 10 of family caregivers perform complex medical/nursing tasks for their 
loved ones such as managing multiple medications, providing wound care and operating 
specialized medical equipment, monitoring blood pressure and blood sugar, and helping with 
incontinence; and 
 
WHEREAS, The typical Caregiver has been helping a parent or spouse for four years; and 
 
WHEREAS, Most Caregivers work full-time but 6 in 10 say caregiving has affected their ability 
to do their jobs. About half say they have had to take occasional time off, 15% have taken 
leaves of absences, and 14% have had to reduce work hours or change jobs as a result of their 
caregiving; and  
 
WHEREAS, Women account for 60% of Caregivers and men 40%; in addition 36% of younger 
Americans between ages 18 and 29 are family Caregivers as well who care for loved ones with 
Alzheimer’s. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Mayor Christopher Fielder, and the Leander City Council do hereby 
proclaim November 2015 as: 

“National Caregiver Awareness Month”  

  
 
 
Signed this 5th day of November, 2015.                   Attest:  
 
 
                      
________________________________                 ____________________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor                                       Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



PROCLAMATION 

 

WHEREAS, Today 5.3 million Americans are living with Alzheimer’s disease. By 2050, up to  
16 million with have the disease; and 

WHEREAS, One in nine older adults have Alzheimer’s or a related dementia; about 15% of 
people ages 65 to 74 have Alzheimer’s disease, 43% of older adults, 75-84 years, have 
Alzheimer’s, and 38% aged 85 years and older may have Alzheimer’s disease; and  

WHEREAS, Someone develops Alzheimer’s disease every 67 seconds and by mid-century, 
someone in the United States will develop the disease every 33 seconds; and  

WHEREAS, Alzheimer’s disease is the 6th leading cause of death in the U.S. and the 5th leading 
cause of death for those aged 65 or older; Alzheimer’s is the only cause of death among the top 
10 in America that cannot be prevented, cured, or even slowed and 

WHEREAS, In 2014 more than 15 million caregivers of people with Alzheimer’s and other 
dementias provided and estimated 17.9 billion hours of unpaid assistance, a contribution to the 
nation valued at $217.7 billion; and 

WHEREAS, Due to the physical and emotional toll of caregiving, Alzheimer’s and dementia 
caregivers had $9.7 billion in additional health care cost of their own in 2014. 

WHEREAS, Alzheimer’s is the most expensive disease condition in the nation. In 2015 the 
direct cost of caring for those with Alzheimer’s is an estimated $226 billion. Total Medicaid 
spending is $41 billion and out-of-pocket spending for individuals with Alzheimer’s and other 
dementias is estimated at $44 billion; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Mayor Christopher Fielder, and the Leander City Council do hereby 
proclaim November 2015 as: 

“Alzheimer’s Disease  
Awareness Month” 

  

  
Signed this 5th day of November, 2015.                   Attest:  
 
 
                      
________________________________                 ____________________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor                                       Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



 
PROCLAMATION 

 

WHEREAS, In these uncertain economic times, many households are not able to purchase a 
coat for their school-age children; and  
 
WHEREAS, The Damascus Road Christian Church Youth Department has adopted and 
embraced the mission of helping other youth in our community by providing coats for those 
students who need a warm covering for the winter months; and 
 
WHEREAS, There are no other coat drives within the confines of our community that 
specifically focuses on our school-age children; and 
 
WHEREAS, Due to the fact that the only other coat drive is more than 25 miles away and that 
there is no public transportation or regular bus routes in Cedar Park, Leander or Liberty Hill 
areas, the “Kids Helping Kids” Coat Collection and Distribution serves as a resource that 
provides warm coats for many students and their families ; and  
 
WHEREAS, For the past six years, through the combined efforts of the “Kids Helping Kids”  
Coat Collection and Distribution and our community partners; the students and their families will 
be warm and satisfied; our schools, neighborhoods and communities will receive a blessing; 
and God will be Glorified. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Mayor Christopher Fielder, and the Leander City Council do hereby 
proclaim November 21, 2015 as: 

“Kids Helping Kids Coat Drive Day” 
  
Signed this 5th day of November, 2015.                   Attest:  
 
 
                      
________________________________                 ____________________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor                                       Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



 

Talking Points for City Council Meetings 

 Scenic Hill Country is the newest chapter of Scenic Texas, which a non-profit organization 

dedicated to the preservation and enhancement of our state’s visual environment, particularly 

as seen by the traveling public.  

 We are unique in that we are the only regional chapter, whereas most chapters typically focus 

primarily on one city (i.e. Scenic Houston). The Hill Country is a unique and special region 

of Texas. There is a lot of growth and development in the region, so we have recognized a 

need to protect the beauty of the Hill Country. There are several other organizations based in 

this region, but none of them have our exact areas of focus.  

 Our chapter mission is to foster partnerships between municipalities, professionals, 

landowners, and other stakeholders to promote regulations and land development choices that 

enhance and protect the unique scenic vistas of the Texas Hill Country 

 Our main area of focus is the Scenic City Certification Program 

o This program was launched in 2010 and is designed to support and recognize 

Texas cities that implement high-quality scenic standards for public roadways and 

public spaces. The goal is to improve the image of Texas cities. The next 

application cycle is Jan. 1st – March 31st  

 We may also promote the Dark Skies Program and assist municipalities by improving 

lighting regulations 

o International Dark Sky Association recognizes communities that show 

exceptional dedication to the preservation of the night sky through the 

implementation and enforcement of a quality outdoor lighting ordinance, dark sky 

education, and citizen support of dark skies. Dark Sky Communities excel in their 

efforts to promote responsible lighting and dark sky stewardship, and set 

good examples for surrounding communities.  

 We recently launched a quarterly lunchtime educational series, the Brown Bag Lunch 

Series. Our first one was held in Dripping Springs on Oct. 13th, and Alan Bojorquez 



spoke about sign regulations. Potential future topics include outdoor lighting regulations, 

landscaping guidelines, and so forth 

 Currently, we are starting small by focusing our efforts within the following counties: 

Bandera, Blanco, Burnet, Gillespie, Hays, Kendall, Kerr, Kimble, Llano, Mason, Travis, and 

Williamson. As needs arise, we may expand our chapter’s boundary in the future.  

 We believe your city has something worth preserving. If you’re interested in the Scenic City 

Certification Program or Dark Skies, we would be happy to assist you and review your city’s 

regulations.  

 If you haven’t already identified a point of contact at city hall for our chapter, please do so. 

We will occasionally ask for input and send updates. 

 You may find more information by visiting scenictexas.org and also our own website at 

scenichillcountrytx.org. 

 



 
 
 

                                                                         MINUTES 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
Pat Bryson Municipal Hall 

201 North Brushy Street ~ Leander, Texas 

Thursday ~ October 15, 2015 at 7:00 PM  
 

  
  
 
 

 
1. Open meeting, Invocation, Pledges of Allegiance 

Mayor Fielder opened the meeting at 7:00 pm and welcomed those in attendance 
Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette delivered the invocation 
 

2. Roll Call 
All present 
 

3. Staff Comments: Chief Gardner – Fire Department’s Fall Fest 
Chief Bill Gardner spoke about the Fall Fest on Oct. 17th and 24th and showed a video 

  4.  Citizen Comments:  Three (3) minutes allowed per speaker  
             Please turn in speaker request form before the meeting begins 
 
            Karen Thompson 11327 Old 2243 W – spoke about the coyotes near her house 
 
       5.  Recognition of Eagle Scout Cole Puska – sponsored by Mayor Fielder 
            Mayor Fielder recognized Cole Puska and congratulated him on his achievement of Eagle Scout 
 
       6.  Recognition Ceremony for Betty Brown 
            Mayor Fielder recognized Betty Brown and presented her with the plaque that will hang in the 
            “Betty Brown Community Room” at the Leander Public Library 

 

 
 

 
  7.  Approval of the minutes: October 1, 2015 
 
  8.  Consider Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision Infrastructure Improvements for Mason Ranch,  
       Phase 1, Section 2 
 
       Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette to approve the consent agenda.  Second by Council  
       Member Shepherd.  Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
 
 
 
 
 

    Mayor   – Christopher Fielder                  Place 4 – Ron Abruzzese 
    Place 1 – Andrea Navarrette (Mayor Pro Tem)                  Place 5 – Jeff Seiler 
    Place 2 – Michelle Stephenson                                 Place 6 – Troy Hill  
    Place 3 – Shanan Shepherd    City Manager – Kent Cagle 
                                                                              

CONSENT AGENDA: ACTION 

 



 
 
 
 

 
 
 

  9.  Public Hearing on Comprehensive Plan Case #15-CPA-007: adoption of an updated Comprehensive  
       Plan including the adoption of a future land use plan and map that provides guidance for appropriate  
       zoning and land use regulations throughout the City, goals for future growth and development, and an 
       action plan for implementation 
       Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained 
 
       Joe “Javier” Urrea  1720 Mira Vista – spoke against 
       Scott Foster 903 Canyon Springs – spoke in favor of 
       Blake Magee  1409 Kent Lane, Austin – spoke in favor of 
       Bill Shea 11600 Sweet Shade Lane, Austin – spoke in favor of 
 
       Action on Comprehensive Plan Case #15-CPA-007: adoption of an updated Comprehensive  
       Plan including the adoption of a future land use plan and map that provides guidance for appropriate  
       zoning and land use regulations throughout the City, goals for future growth and development, and an 
       action plan for implementation  
 
       Motion made by Council Member Navarrette to approve with P&Z recommendations minus the  
        Economic Development Citizen Task Force and with the corrections as discussed by Tom Yantis. 
        Second by Council Member Seiler.  Motion passes, 6 to 1 with Council Member Hill voting against 
 

 
 

      
     
           Mayor Fielder moved to item # 22 at this time 
 
           Mayor Fielder called for a break at 8:35pm 
           Council returned from break at 8:45  
 
     10.  Development Agreement Case #14-DA-009; Consider approval of a Development Agreement between  
            the City of Leander and JSDJ for 78 acres, more or less, generally located to the west of the intersection  
            of CR 279/Bagdad Road and within the city limits and ETJ of the City of Leander, Williamson County, Texas 
            Applicant: David Marshall on behalf of Jodi L. Robinson 
            Mayor Fielder announced that this item has been postponed by the applicant 

   11.  Consider an Amendment to Addendum No. 1 to Facilities Agreement and Addendum No. 1 to  
          Development and Annexation Agreement between the City of Leander, Texas; Hanna/Magee LP #1,  
          a Texas limited partnership and Palmera Ridge Municipal Utility District of Williamson County, Texas 
          Applicant: Blake Magee 
          Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained 
 
          Motion made by Council Member Stephenson to approve.  Second by Council Member Abruzzese. 
          Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 

PUBLIC HEARING: ACTION 

 



 
 
  12.  Consider a Resolution of the City Of Leander, Texas, accepting the petition for annexation of 37.079  
         acres, more or less, of land generally located west of Ronald Reagan Blvd. and north of the South San  
         Gabriel River in Williamson County, Texas; setting an annexation schedule; providing for open meetings  
         and other related matters 

         Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained 
 
          Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette to approve.  Second by Council Member Stephenson. 
          Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
   13.  Consider a Resolution of the City Of Leander, Texas, accepting the petition for annexation of a 229.22 
           acres, more or less, tract of land generally located north of Hero Way and west of Ronald Reagan Blvd.  
           in Williamson County, Texas; setting an annexation schedule; providing for open meetings and other 
           related matters 
        Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained 
 
          Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette to approve.  Second by Council Member Seiler. 
          Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
  
   14.  Consider a Resolution of the City of Leander, Texas, initiating the voluntary annexation of tracts of 
          land located along land abutting Hero Way (Formerly County Road 269) in Williamson County,  
          Texas pursuant to the terms and expiration of Development Agreements under Section 43.035, Texas 
          Local Government Code; setting an annexation schedule; providing for open meetings and other  
          related matters 
          Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained 
 
          Motion made by Council Member Shepherd to approve.  Second by Council Member Stephenson. 
          Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 

     15.  Discuss and consider request by Austin Wood Recycling, Cedar Park, Texas for a franchise to  
            provide recycling services within the city limits of Leander 
            Robert Powers, Finance Director explained 
            Alder, Owner explained his request 
 
            Motion made by Mayor Fielder to move to direct staff to start the process of a franchise agreement  
            for recycling for a  mulch and brush franchise with the following:  nothing goes to landfill, only trees, 
            brush and native materials and no lumber.  Second by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette.  Motion passes, all 
            voting “aye” 
 
     16.  Consider Award of Underground Fiber Optic Cable Installation to JC Communications  
            Paul Preston, IT Manager explained 
 
            Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette recused herself from this item 

          Motion made by Council Member Seiler to approve.  Second by Council Member Abruzzese. 
          Motion passes, 6 to 0. 

            
     17.  Consider amendment No. 2 to Task Order MSE-1 with M&S Engineering, LLC, for professional services  
            for East Street Roadway Improvements 
            Wayne Watts, City Engineer explained 

      Motion made by Council Member Shepherd to approve.  Second by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette. 
            Motion passes, 4 to 3 with Council Members, Seiler, Abruzzese and Hill voting against. 
 
 
 
 

 



 

18.  Consider an Ordinance Regulating the Discharge of Pollutants into the Municipal Separate Storm  
       Sewer System (MS4) 

            Patrick Wells, Storm Water Coordinator 

      Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette to approve.  Second by Council Member Stephenson. 
            Motion passes, all voting “aye 
 
   19.  Consider Award of Construction Contract for the Old 2243 West Roadway Widening and Reconstruction 
          Project 

            Wayne Watts, City Engineer explained 

      Motion made by Mayor Fielder to award Construction Contract to Cash Construction.   Second  
       by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette.  Motion passes, all voting “aye 

 
     20.  Street Evaluation and Pavement Management Report 
            Pat Womack, Director of Public Works presented the report 
 
     21.  Water Supply Update 
             Pat Womack, Director of Public Works presented the report 

22.  Consider Board Appointments/Reappointments to the following Boards: 
• Bond Task Force Committee 
• Planning & Zoning Commission 
• Board of Adjustment/Appeal 
• Ethics Commission 
• TIF/Leander Development Authority 
• Library Foundation Board 
• Parks & Recreation Advisory Board 

 
       Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette made a motion to appoint Angela Means to Place 6 and Morgan Cotton to  
       Place 2 on the Planning and Zoning Commission and reappoint Sid Sokol for Place 4 and Marshall  
       Hines for  Place 7  on the Planning & Zoning Commission .  Second by Council Member.Abruzzese. 
       Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
       Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette made a motion to appoint Stina Hill to the Library Foundation Board. 
       Second by Council Member Abruzzese.  Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
  
       Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette made a motion to appoint Genc Krasniqi to the TIRZ Board.  Second 
       by Council Member Shepherd .  Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
       Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette made a motion to appoint Glenn Goulet to the Ethics Commission in 
       Place 3.  Second by Council Member Shepherd.  Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
       Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette made a motion to appoint John Cosgrove to the Board of Adjustment.  
       Second by Council Member Stephenson.  Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
   
       Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette made a motion to appoint the following to the Bond Task Force 
       Committee: Amy Hayward, Angela Means, Charles Rouse, Don McCartney, Jr., Eric Johnson, Genc  
       Krasniqi, Gil Debner, Glenn Goulet, Jayne Serna, Jim Smit, John Cosgrove, Mary Wooters, Morgan 
       Cotten, Sid Sokol, Jeff Sweazea and Bridget Brandt.  Second by Council Member Seiler.  Motion  
       passes, all voting “aye” 
    
 
 

 



 
 
 
       Mayor Fielder moved back to item # 10 at this time 
 
23.  Consider appointment of one (1) Council Member to the Capital Area Council of Government (CAPCOG)  
       as General Assembly Member 
 
        Motion made by Mayor Fielder to appoint Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette to the CAPCOG General  
        Assembly.  Second by Council Member Seiler.  Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
24.  Discuss and consider directing the Ethics Commission to clarify the issue of family members serving on 
       Boards & Commissions.  Sponsored by Council Member Stephenson 
       Council Member Stephenson asked Council to possibly set a policy or ask the Ethics Commission 
       to set a policy.   
 
       Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette to leave the way it is. Second by Council 
       Member Shepherd.  Motion passes, 6 to 1 with Council Member Stephenson voting against. 
 
25.  Council Members Closing Statements 
       Council Members gave their closing statements 
 

     26.  Adjournment 
            With there being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 9:59 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    Attest: 
 
 
           ________________________________                            __________________________________ 
           Christopher Fielder, Mayor   Debbie Haile, TRMC, City Secretary 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



AGENDA ITEM # 11 

 
Executive Summary 

 
November 5, 2015 

 
Subject: Authorization of a Special Permit for the 2015 Christmas Parade & Tree Lighting 
 
Background: This year’s Christmas Parade & Tree Lighting is scheduled for Saturday, 
December 5th in Old Town Leander.  The theme for 2015 is “Leander in Lights” and trophies 
will be awarded for the best float, brightest float, most unique entry, best performance, best 
themed entry, and most colorful entry.   
 
The parade begins at 5 pm followed by the tree lighting at approximately 6:15 pm.  Local service 
groups will provide food and beverage for purchase.  There will be pictures with Santa at Bryson 
Hall, hayrides, Yule fire and caroling by local choral groups.  
 
Parade Staging & Route: Staging will take place on Municipal Drive between S. West Drive and 
the Public Works Yard.  The Parade begins on Municipal Dr., travels north on S. West Dr. to W. 
South St., east on W. South St. to Bagdad St., north on Bagdad St. to W. Willis, east on W. 
Willis to N. Brushy and south on N. Brushy to the Middle School parking lot.   
 
Street Closures 
• 2:30 to 9 pm 

o Intersection of Atkin Street & U.S. 183 
o North Brushy from West South to West Willis Streets 
o Bagdad Street from South & West Willis Streets 

• 4:45 to 6 pm 
o S. West Street from Leander Middle School to W. South Street 
o Municipal Drive from S. West Street to Northern Trail 
o S. West St. from W. South St. to Leander Middle School 

    
Financial Consideration: City staffing 
  
Recommendation:  Staff respectfully requests City Council approval of the Special Permit and 
proposed street closures for the 2015 Christmas Parade & Tree Lighting Event on December 5th.   
 
Attachments:   Special Permit Application  
 
Prepared by:  Stephen Bosak, Parks & Recreation Director 



Special Event Permit Application 
 
 
Applicant/Organization Name: City of Leander 
 
Type of Event: Christmas Parade & Tree Lighting 
 
Name & Contact Information of Responsible Individual:  
Stephen Bosak, Director 
Leander Parks & Recreation 
P.O. Box 319 – Leander, TX  78646 
Phone: 512.528.9909  Cell: 512.563.1840  Email: bosak@leandertx.gov 
 
Description of Event: This year’s Christmas Parade & Tree Lighting is scheduled for Saturday, 
December 5th in Old Town Leander.  The parade will begin at 5 pm followed by the Tree 
Lighting at approximately 6:15 pm.  Local service groups will provide food and beverage for 
purchase.  There will be pictures with Santa, free hayrides, Yule fire and caroling by local choral 
groups.  
 
Parade Staging & Route: Staging will take place on Municipal Drive between S. West Street and 
the Public Works Yard.  The Parade begins on Municipal Drive, travels north on S. West Dr. to 
W. South St., east on W. South St. to Bagdad St.,  north on Bagdad St. to W. Willis, east on W. 
Willis to N. Brushy and south on N. Brushy to the Middle School parking lot.   
 
The event is open to the general public and there will be no admission charge. 
 
Street Closures 
• 2:30 to 9 pm 

o Intersection of Atkin Street & U.S. 183 
o North Brushy from West South to West Willis Streets 
o Bagdad Street from South & West Willis Streets 

• 4:45 to 6 pm 
o S. West Street from Leander Middle School W. South Street 
o Municipal Drive from S. West Street to Northern Trail 
o S. West St. from W. South St. to Leander Middle School 

 
City Services Needed:  
Utilities & Services Needed: Electricity, Restrooms & Water 
Sanitation/Litter Pick Up: By City Parks & Recreation Dept. staff    
Security:     By City Police Department  
Traffic Control:  By City Public Works and Police staff 
  
Will alcohol be served or sold?      No 
 
Will the proposed activity interfere or detract from the general public use of the area?  Yes 
Street closures will be required from 2:30 to 9 pm. 



 
Will the proposed activity adversely impact or affect City, adjacent/nearby property 
owners?   Yes.  Notices will be posted on electronic signs located on routes to the effected 
neighborhoods where street closures will occur.   
 
Will the activity cause/create health or safety risks to the public or damage to other 
property?  No.  
 
Will the event require local or state permits, or violate any federal, state or municipal 
laws?  No.  
 
What measures will be taken to prevent/minimize adverse impacts or affects?  Staff from 
PARD, Public Works, Police and Fire will be on duty to manage the event to prevent/minimize 
potential adverse impacts or affects. 
 
Proof of Insurance:  The City of Leander is insured through the Texas Municipal League.   
 

Stephen Bosak    November 5, 2015 
Parks & Recreation Director     
 
 
 



AGENDA ITEM #12 

 
 

Executive Summary 

 

November 5, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consider Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision 
Infrastructure Improvements for Bryson Section 1- Phase 1A  
 
Background:  The subdivision infrastructure improvements required for Bryson Section 1 – 
Phase 1A have been installed, inspected, and found to be satisfactorily completed.  All 
documentation required for acceptance of the subdivision has been received, including record 
drawings, statement of substantial completion prepared by a Professional Engineer licensed 
in the State of Texas, copies of all inspection reports and certified test results, electronic files 
of the improvements and final plat, affidavit of all bills paid, and a two-year term 
Maintenance Bond. The Maintenance Bond will commence its two year term upon City 
Council acceptance, as anticipated, on November 5, 2015, which will provide warranty and 
maintenance coverage for the infrastructure improvements through November 5, 2017.  The 
Engineering Department will perform a formal inspection of the improvements 
approximately 30 days prior to the expiration of the Maintenance Bond to assure that any 
defects in materials, workmanship, or maintenance are corrected prior to expiration of the 
bond. 
 
Origination:   Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration: N/A 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends City Council’s formal acceptance of the subdivision 
infrastructure improvements for Bryson Section 1 – Phase 1A 
   
Attachments:  Location Map, Engineer’s Concurrence Letter, ADA Inspection, Maintenance 
Bond, Affidavits of All Bills Paid, and Final Pay Estimates. 
 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 









































AGENDA ITEM # 13 

 
 

Executive Summary 

 

November 5, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consider Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision 
Infrastructure Improvements for Oak Creek Phase 1, Section 1 
 
Background:  The subdivision infrastructure improvements required for Oak Creek Phase 1, 
Section 1 have been installed, inspected, and found to be satisfactorily completed.  All 
documentation required for acceptance of the subdivision has been received, including record 
drawings, statement of substantial completion prepared by a Professional Engineer licensed 
in the State of Texas, copies of all inspection reports and certified test results, electronic files 
of the improvements and final plat, affidavit of all bills paid, and a two-year term 
Maintenance Bond. The Maintenance Bond will commence its two year term upon City 
Council acceptance, as anticipated, on November 5, 2015, which will provide warranty and 
maintenance coverage for the infrastructure improvements through November 5, 2017.  The 
Engineering Department will perform a formal inspection of the improvements 
approximately 30 days prior to the expiration of the Maintenance Bond to assure that any 
defects in materials, workmanship, or maintenance are corrected prior to expiration of the 
bond. 
 
Origination:   Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration: N/A 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends City Council’s formal acceptance of the subdivision 
infrastructure improvements for Oak Creek Phase 1, Section 1. 
   
Attachments:  Location Map, Engineer’s Concurrence Letter, ADA Inspection, Maintenance 
Bond, Affidavits of All Bills Paid, and Final Pay Estimates. 
 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 





























AGENDA ITEM # 14 

 
 

Executive Summary 

November 5, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consider Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision 
Infrastructure Improvements for Oak Creek Phase 2 Section 1 
 
Background:  The subdivision infrastructure improvements required for Oak Creek Phase 2 
Section 1 have been installed, inspected, and found to be satisfactorily completed.  All 
documentation required for acceptance of the subdivision has been received, including record 
drawings, statement of substantial completion prepared by a Professional Engineer licensed 
in the State of Texas, copies of all inspection reports and certified test results, electronic files 
of the improvements and final plat, affidavit of all bills paid, and a two-year term 
Maintenance Bond. The Maintenance Bond will commence its two year term upon City 
Council acceptance, as anticipated, on November 5, 2015, which will provide warranty and 
maintenance coverage for the infrastructure improvements through November 5, 2017.  The 
Engineering Department will perform a formal inspection of the improvements 
approximately 30 days prior to the expiration of the Maintenance Bond to assure that any 
defects in materials, workmanship, or maintenance are corrected prior to expiration of the 
bond. 
 
Origination:   Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration: N/A 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends City Council’s formal acceptance of the subdivision 
infrastructure improvements for Oak Creek Phase 2 Section 1. 
   
Attachments:  Location Map, Engineer’s Concurrence Letter, Maintenance Bond, Affidavits 
of All Bills Paid, and Final Pay Estimates. 
 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 





























AGENDA ITEM # 15 

 
 

Executive Summary 

 

November 5, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consider Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision 
Infrastructure Improvements for Oak Creek Phase 2, Section 2  
 
Background:  The subdivision infrastructure improvements required for Oak Creek Phase 2, 
Section 2 have been installed, inspected, and found to be satisfactorily completed.  All 
documentation required for acceptance of the subdivision has been received, including record 
drawings, statement of substantial completion prepared by a Professional Engineer licensed 
in the State of Texas, copies of all inspection reports and certified test results, electronic files 
of the improvements and final plat, affidavit of all bills paid, and a two-year term 
Maintenance Bond. The Maintenance Bond will commence its two year term upon City 
Council acceptance, as anticipated, on November 5, 2015, which will provide warranty and 
maintenance coverage for the infrastructure improvements through November 5, 2017.  The 
Engineering Department will perform a formal inspection of the improvements 
approximately 30 days prior to the expiration of the Maintenance Bond to assure that any 
defects in materials, workmanship, or maintenance are corrected prior to expiration of the 
bond. 
 
Origination:   Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration: N/A 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends City Council’s formal acceptance of the subdivision 
infrastructure improvements for Oak Creek Phase 2, Section 2. 
   
Attachments:  Location Map, Engineer’s Concurrence Letter, ADA Inspection, Maintenance 
Bond, Affidavits of All Bills Paid, and Final Pay Estimates. 
 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 





























AGENDA ITEM # 16 

 

Executive Summary 

November 5, 2015 

Subject: Consider approval of expenditure for the purchase of replacement computer workstation 
hardware, software, and peripherals from Dell Marketing, L.P contract [DIR-SDD-1951] and Software 
House International contract [DIR-SDD-2503] through the State of Texas Cooperative Purchasing 
Program.   

Background: Funds are allocated in the budget each year to replace computer hardware and software 
that has reached the end of its useful life. 

The proposed expenditure for FY 15-16 includes Administration, Court, Engineering, Emergency 
Operations Center, Finance, Fire, General Council, Parks & Recreation, Planning, Police, Public Works, 
and Utility Billing. 

All contracts have been competitively bid and meet the competitive requirements. 

Financial Consideration: Funds are budgeted in the Information Technology Department #01-10-5215 
($70,200) and #01-10-5485 ($10,640) totaling $80,840. 

Recommendation: Staff respectfully recommends that the Council award a Purchase Order for the 
purchase of said hardware and software. 

Attachments: Detailed Listing 

Prepared by: Paul Preston, Information Technology Manager 

           Joy Simonton, Purchasing Agent 



Detailed Listing

Department/Activity Item Function Age
Replacements

Administration Laptop Council Chambers Presentations 2010
Court Workstation Customer Service Front Counter 2011

Engineering Workstation Construction Inspector 2010
Engineering Workstation Engineer 2010
Engineering Workstation Construction Inspector 2010
Engineering Workstation GIS Coordinator 2010
Engineering Workstation Assist City Engineer 2011

Finance Laptop Presentations/Budget Review 2007
Fire Workstation EOC Station 2010
Fire Workstation Station 2 Reporting 1 2009
Fire Workstation Station 2 Reporting 2 2010
Fire Workstation EOC Podium 2010
Fire Workstation Station 3 Battalion Chief 2010
Fire Workstation Station 3 Battalion Chief (CAD) 2010
Fire Workstation Station 3 Reporting 2010

Golf Course Workstation Handicap 2006
Parks and Recreation Workstation Crew Workstation 2006
Parks and Recreation Laptop Events 2008

Planning Workstation Planning Coordinator 2011
Planning Workstation Planner 2011

Police Laptop CID Crime Scene 2011
Police Laptop Conference Room A 2010
Police Laptop Conference Room B 2011
Police Workstation Communications 2010
Police Workstation Reporting 4 2011
Police Laptop Briefing Room 2007
Police Workstation CID Sergeant 2010
Police Laptop CID Laptop 2010
Police Workstation Support Services 2011
Police Workstation CID Lieutenant 2011
Police Laptop Evidence Room 2010

Public Works Workstation Water/Waste Water Utilites Supervisor 2010
Public Works Workstation Crew Workstation 2010
Utility Billing Workstation Utility Billing Assistant 2011
Utility Billing Workstation Utility Clerk 2009
Utility Billing Workstation Utility Clerk 2009
Utility Billing Workstation Utility Clerk 2009



AGENDA ITEM # 17 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
November 05, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Consideration of a License Agreement for the installation and 

maintenance of entry signage, landscaping, signage, irrigation, 
decorative street signs and lights, fencing, and screening walls 
located within the City right-of-way within the Palmera Ridge 
Subdivision. 

 
Background: Palmera Ridge is requesting a license agreement to construct, 

install, and maintain entry signage, landscaping, signage, 
irrigation, decorative street signs and lights, fencing, and screening 
walls located within Palmera Ridge Boulevard, Ronald W Reagan 
Blvd, and other collector streets within the Bryson Subdivision. 

 
Origination: Applicant: Amy Lynn Payne on behalf of Blake Magee Co. 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the license agreement.   
 
Attachments: 1.  License Agreement  
 2.  Location Exhibit 
 3.  Request Letter 
  
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager   10/27/2015 





















! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

REAGAN'S OVERLOOK

PALMERA RIDGE

PARKERTRACT

5D

4C

2B

4C

2B

3B

2B

2B2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B 2B

2B

2B

2B 2B2B

2B

2B 2B 2B2B 2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B 2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
1B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

HERO WAY

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

CR 264

BA
KE

R 
LN

RM 2243

VISTA HEIGHTS DR

UNITY DR

BELEN DR

BRADLEY RANCH RD

CR 274MI
KE

S 
W

AY

AIRPORT DR

CARRETERA DR

WINDING OAK TRL

HAWKINS DR

JENNIFER LN

ELM RIDGE DR

CREEKVIEW CIR

SA
NTA

 CAT
ALIN

A W
AY

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±0 1,000

Feet

License Agreement - Attachment #2 Location Exhibit - Palmera Ridge Subdivision
ZONING

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 

SFL
SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 

LC
GC
HC
HI
PUD

PUD Land Use

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Commercial

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !
PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Townhome

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for
informational purposes only.  No warranty is made by the City
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official
ordinance for zoning verification.  This data should not be 
constructed as a legal description or survey instrument. No
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the
information herein provided.





AGENDA ITEM # 18 

 
 

Executive Summary 

 

November 5, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consider Dedication and Acceptance of Travisso Section 1 
Offsite Utilities Water and Wastewater Improvements 
 
Background:  The offsite utility improvements for Travisso Section 1 have been installed, 
inspected, and found to be satisfactorily completed.  All documentation required for 
acceptance of the offsite utility improvements have been received, including record 
drawings, statement(s) of substantial completion prepared by a Professional Engineer 
licensed in the State of Texas, copies of all inspection reports and certified test results, 
electronic files of the improvements and final plat(s), affidavit(s) of all bills paid, and a two-
year term Maintenance Bond(s). The Maintenance Bond(s) will commence the two year term 
upon City Council acceptance, as anticipated, on November 5, 2015, which will provide 
warranty and maintenance coverage for the utility improvements through November 5, 2017.  
The Engineering Department will perform a formal inspection of the improvements 
approximately 30 days prior to the expiration of the Maintenance Bond(s) to assure that any 
defects in materials, workmanship, or maintenance are corrected prior to expiration of the 
bond. 
 
Origination:   Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration: N/A 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends City Council’s formal acceptance of the Travisso 
Section 1 Offsite Utilities Water and Wastewater Improvements 
   
Attachments:  Location Map, Engineer’s Concurrence Letter(s), Maintenance Bond(s), 
Affidavit(s) of All Bills Paid, and Final Pay Estimate(s) 
 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 





























AGENDA ITEM # 19 

 

 

Executive Summary 

November 5, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consideration of Interlocal Cooperation Agreement between 
City of Leander and the Leander Independent School District (LISD) for the joint use of 
fiber optic cable infrastructure. 
 
Background:   The City desires to improve the network connectivity between City 
buildings.  This goal can be obtained cost effectively by partnering with the LISD on the 
installation, operation, maintenance and joint use of an underground fiber optic cabling 
infrastructure.  The City and the LISD are committed to cooperating with one another on 
this initiative with in the common interest and mutual benefit of both parties. 
  
Financial Consideration:  The City of Leander will utilize the existing LISD 
underground conduit at no charge.  The City of Leander will rent, at $6,000 per year, a 
storage space inside the LISD Administrative Building to house various components of 
the system belonging to the City. 
 
Recommendation:   Staff recommends approval of the Interlocal Cooperation 
Agreement between the Leander Independent School District (LISD) for the joint use of 
fiber optic cable infrastructure. 
 
Attachments:   Interlocal Cooperation Agreement between City of Leander the Leander 
Independent School District (LISD) for the joint use of fiber optic cable infrastructure. 
 
Prepared by:  Paul Preston, Information Technology Manager 



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR THE JOINT USE OF FIBER OPTIC NETWORK 
INFRASTRUCTURE 

This interlocal cooperation agreement ("Agreement") for the joint use of fiber optic 
network infrastructure is made and entered into by and between the City of Leander, a 
Texas home-rule municipal corporation ("City"), and the Leander Independent School 
District ("LISD"). 

WHEREAS, the City and the LISD agree to jointly develop, install, operate, 
maintain, and share use of a fiber optic network infrastructure; 

WHEREAS, it is envisioned that each party will pay for its respective share of the 
network, as set out in this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the parties desire to express the terms and conditions upon which 
the network will be developed, installed, operated, maintained, and used by the parties. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises and the mutual 
covenants and conditions contained in this Agreement, the City and the LISD agree as 
follows: 

ARTICLE I. PURPOSE AND INTENT OF AGREEMENT 

The purpose and intent of this Agreement is to set forth the terms, conditions, and 
provisions which will govern the parties' duties and responsibilities for the development, 
installation, operation, maintenance, and joint use of fiber optic network infrastructure 
("Project") as a governmental function of the parties pursuant to the Texas lnterlocal 
Cooperation Act, Chapter 791, Texas Government Code. The City and the LISD are 
committed to cooperating with one another in undertaking this Project which is in the 
common interest and for the mutual benefit of both parties. 

ARTICLE II. TERM; TERMINATION 

A. This Agreement is effective as of the date last signed by the parties to this 
Agreement and continues in effect for a period of five years or until terminated by either 
party, whichever occurs first. Following expiration of the initial five-year period, this 
Agreement automatically renews annually until terminated by either party. 

B. Should either party desire to terminate this Agreement without cause prior to its 
initial expiration date or any annual renewal, notice to the non-terminating party must be 
provided as set out in Article IX and not less than 180 days prior to the annual 
anniversary date of the execution of this Agreement. 

C. In the event of a termination of this Agreement, the fiber optic interconnection points 
on the shared network will be disconnected by the LISD. The party requesting 

Page 1 of 7 



termination bears the cost and expense of disconnection and reconnection of their fiber 
optic cables. 

ARTICLE Ill. SHARED NETWORK 

A. The parties agree to allow the connection of fiber optic cable strands at 
interconnection points, in order to expand the capabilities of each party's individual 
networks in the initial Project as outlined in Exhibit A. The parties expressly agree that 
increased numbers of fiber strands may be necessary and required for installation 
between select buildings of each of the parties due to technology requirements and 
larger capacity demands of specific sites, and that the parties' may agree upon 
connection of additional strands in accordance with Section 111.B. 

B. In order to provide and achieve the most efficient shared network capabilities of this 
Project, the parties agree that the required interconnection points, the use of dark fiber, 
and other necessary and related matters will be negotiated and determined by the 
respective directors of the information technology ("IT") departments of each party, with 
the mutual consent of the authorized representatives of both parties to this Agreement.. 

C. For the purposes of this Agreement, the City Manager is the authorized 
representative of the City, and the Superintendent is the authorized representative of 
the LISD. 

D. This Agreement expressly authorizes the use and interconnection of dark fiber at the 
network site location(s) of one or both parties, as may be deemed necessary by the 
parties' authorized representatives for the completion of this Project. LISD shall have 
the right to inspect the fiber optic interconnections and to be present when connection is 
made to LISD's dark fiber. The parties shall coordinate on the timing of connection of 
the City's fiber optic interconnections to LISD's dark fiber. 

ARTICLE IV. ALLOCATION AND OCCUPATION OF NETWORK AND RACK SPACE 

A. The parties agree that certain areas of the fiber optic network infrastructure are or 
will be designated for the sole and exclusive use and control of the City or the sole and 
exclusive use and control of the LISD. Such exclusively occupied network areas of 
each party are as mapped, designated, and depicted in Exhibit "B" to this Agreement, 
which exhibit is attached to this Agreement and its content incorporated by reference as 
if fully set out herein in its entirety. 

B. LISD shall, at all times during the pendency of this Agreement, retain and exercise 
full control over the operation and use of its existing and future Data Centers, 
Telecommunications Closets, Equipment and Fiber Optic Network Infrastructure and 
agrees to notify the City of any issues that may arise pertaining to the City's use of the 
fiber optic network infrastructure. Each of the parties has a corresponding duty and 
obligation to use reasonable care in the use of the fiber optic network infrastructure. 

Page 2 of 7 



LISD shall allow authorized City personnel access to the Data Centers and 
Telecommunications Closets to install and maintain the City's fiber optic cable, network 
equipment, servers and computer equipment during normal LISD work hours. The City 
shall maintain with LISD a list of City personnel who are authorized to access the City's 
servers and computer equipment, and only those personnel will be allowed access. 
Any subcontractors used for this project by the City must be approved in advance by 
LISD. 

ARTICLE V. ALLOCATION OF COSTS AND EXPENSES 

A. Allocation of Operating and Maintenance Costs. The parties agree that they will 
mutually share and be responsible for the costs of operation and continuing 
maintenance of the shared network as set forth in Exhibit A and any subsequent 
addenda, and each party will be responsible for the cost and expense of replacement or 
repair of equipment, materials, and fiber optic cable within their respective property lines 
up to the interconnection points. 

B. Any maintenance fees or expenses charged or levied by third parties, such as 
telecommunication providers, and that are directly attributable to the interconnected 
shared network utilized by the parties will be shared on an equal basis, with each party 
responsible for paying their respective portion as set forth in Exhibit A and any 
subsequent addenda. 

ARTICLE VI. FUTURE SUPPLEMENTARY ADDENDA 

The parties to this Agreement specifically contemplate that, once the initial Project has 
been completed and is operational, the parties may determine that additional and 
expanded future uses may be beneficially made of the interconnected shared network. 
Therefore, the parties expressly recognize that this Agreement may be supplemented in 
writing, without changing the substantive terms and conditions set out in this 
Agreement, to add future as-yet-unidentified locations, installations, and functional uses 
to the shared network. Any written supplement to this Agreement must be executed by 
both parties' authorized representatives and must include (1) the cost allocation method 
required to be undertaken by and attributable to each party, (2) the party responsible 
for construction of the installation; (3) the agreement as to the ownership and parties' 
shared use of the installation; (4) the graphical depiction of the additional shared 
network areas being mapped and added as an enhancement to Exhibit B, (5) a 
statement as to which party is responsible for installing the fiber and interconnection 
points for the new location/use, (6) the effective date on which the new location or use 
will be functional and added to the shared network, and (7) any other relevant terms. 
Any and all supplements to this Agreement must be mutually agreed to and fully 
executed in the manner immediately set forth prior to fiber optic installation at (and 
interconnectivity of) the newly identified location(s) or use(s). 

Page 3 of 7 



ARTICLE VII. CURRENT REVENUES OF THE PARTIES 

Each party paying for the performance of governmental functions pursuant to this 
Agreement must make those payments from current revenues available to the paying 
party, as required by the lnterlocal Cooperation Act. 

ARTICLE VIII. INDEMNIFICATION 

To the extent allowed by Texas law and without wa1v1ng its 
governmental immunity, each party agrees to indemnify and hold 
harmless each other and their respective officers, employees, 
representatives, and agents from any and all loss, liability, injury, 
damage, and expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees and 
expenses of litigation) caused or asserted to have been caused 
directly or indirectly by the party, or its officers, employees, 
representatives, or agents, or as a result of its performance or the 
performance of its officers, employees, representatives, or agents 
related to this Agreement. 

ARTICLE IX. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

A. Good Faith and Best Efforts. Each party to this Agreement shall exercise good faith 
and use its best efforts in the performance of its obligations set out in this Agreement. 

B. Notices. All notices and communications provided for under this Agreement must be 
addressed and mailed to the parties as follows: 

IF TO THE CITY: 
City of Leander 
Attn: City Manager 
P. 0. Box 319 
Leander, TX 78646-0319 

IF TO THE LISD: 
Leander Independent School District 
Attn: Superintendent 
P. 0. Box 218 
Leander, TX 78646-0218 

Either party may change the address to which notices or communications are sent by 
providing the other party with the changed address information, in writing, at least 10 
days in advance of the change. 

C. Authority; Binding Effect; No Third Party Benefit. The City and the LISD mutually 
represent and warrant that they have the authority to enter into and perform this 
Agreement and that this Agreement is a legal, valid, and binding obligation enforceable 
in accordance with its terms. This Agreement is binding upon and inures for the benefit 
of the parties and their respective permitted successors and assigns. Unless expressly 
stated, this Agreement confers no rights upon or to the benefit of any person or entity 
that is not a party to this Agreement. 

Page 4 of 7 



D. Assignment. This Agreement may not be assigned in whole or in part without the 
prior written consent of both parties to this Agreement. Any assignment made in 
violation of the requirement to obtain the prior written consent of the other party is void, 
and the Agreement between the parties survives intact as if the invalid assignment had 
never been executed. 

E. Severability. In the event any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph, or other provision 
or portion of this Agreement is construed to be unlawful or unenforceable by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, such circumstance will not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of this Agreement, as they will remain in full force and effect. 

F. Dispute Resolution. The parties agree that they will attempt to resolve any dispute 
arising from or related to the Project or the substance of any executed addenda in an 
amicable and informal manner. If any dispute cannot be resolved informally, the parties 
shall attempt to resolve the dispute through a joint committee consisting of the parties' 
authorized representatives and the respective directors of the IT departments. If any 
dispute cannot be resolved informally or through a joint committee, the dispute will be 
submitted to mediation before a qualified mediator who is mutually agreed upon by the 
parties. If the dispute is not resolved by way of mediation, the parties may agree to 
resolve the dispute by way of binding or non-binding arbitration. 

G. Governing Law & Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by, and its provisions 
construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of Texas. Venue for any action 
arising from or related to this Agreement shall be in Williamson County, Texas. 

H. Amendments. No amendment of any provision of this Agreement is effective or 
binding unless and until set forth in a writing signed by each party. As specified in this 
Agreement, the parties acknowledge that any properly executed addenda to this 
Agreement may serve only to supplement the scope of the shared network and cannot 
act to change or modify substantive provisions of this Agreement. 

I. Legal Construction. Unless the context requires otherwise, words of the masculine 
gender are to be construed to include correlative words of feminine and neuter genders 
and vice versa, and words of the singular number are to be construed to include the 
plural number and vice versa, unless otherwise specified in context or as set out 
elsewhere in this Agreement. Furthermore, no provision of this Agreement may be 
construed in favor of or against any party on the basis that the party did or did not 
author this Agreement or any specific provision included in this Agreement. The parties 
mutually agree that this Agreement and all of the terms and provisions included in this 
instrument must be liberally construed to effectuate the purpose and intent set forth by 
the parties and in a manner to sustain the validity of this Agreement. 

J. Force Majeure. If the performance by either party of any term, condition, or 
covenant of this Agreement is delayed or prevented by an act of God, declared war or 
insurrection, labor strike or lockout, shortage of material or labor, restriction by any 
governmental authority, civil riot, severe inclement weather, or any other cause not 

Page 5 of 7 



within the reasonable control of a party, any period for performance of any term, 
condition, or covenant in this Agreement is extended for a period equal to the period the 
party's performance was delayed or prevented. 

K. Captions. The captions of this Agreement are inserted for convenience only and 
are in no way intended to define, limit, or prescribe the scope nor the intent of this 
Agreement or any specific part of this Agreement. 

L. No Waiver. The failure of either party to seek redress for a violation of this 
Agreement against the other party or to insist upon the strict performance of any 
covenant, provision, or condition of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of such 
strict performance, and the parties shall have all remedies provided in this Agreement 
and under applicable law with respect to any subsequent act which would have 
originally constituted a violation. 

M. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the 
parties, and there exists no written or oral understandings, agreements, or assurances 
with respect to any matters except as set forth in this Agreement. 

Executed in duplicate by both parties, each of which is deemed an original for all 
purposes: 

CITY OF LEANDER ATTEST: 

Christopher Fielder, Mayor Debbie Haile, City Secretary 

Date Date 

LEANDER INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Will Streit, President 
LISD Board of Trustees 

Date 

ATTACHED AND INCORPORATED: 

Page 6 of 7 



Exhibit A - Initial Project 
Exhibit B - Network Map 

Page 7 of 7 



Exhibit A 

1. LISD agrees to share a conduit subsystem with the City, as depicted on Exhibit 

B, located from a pull box on the northwest corner of 306 W. South Street 

continuing southward to a pull box located on the southeast section of the 

Technology Building property located at 301 S. West Drive and thence extending 

to a conduit ductbank on Municipal Drive and to the LISD Data Center. 

2. The use of the conduit subsystem by the City shall be limited to the placement, 

splicing and use of one (1) 96-strand fiber optic cable from point A to point B; two 

(2) 24-strand fiber optic cables from point B to the existing ductbank on Municipal 

Drive point C; and one (1) 48-strand fiber optic cable from point B to the LISD 

Data Center point D. 

3. All work within the conduit subsystem colocated with LISD fiber optic cable must 

be coordinated. 

4. LISD will provide and make available to the City one (1) 19" data cabinet within 

the LISD Data Center located at 301 S. West Drive, for placement and use of the 

City's equipment. In consideration, the City will pay LISD a fee of $6,000.00 per 

year for the use of the data cabinet to help offset the costs for electrical power 

and environmental conditioning. The City's equipment shall be limited to one (1) 

network switch and three (3) servers. The Parties agree to review, on an annual 

basis or as requested by either Party, and make any equitable adjustments of the 

fee due to changes in equipment type, equipment number or costs to LISD. The 

initial payment is to be prorated and due when the City's equipment is placed. 

Subsequent annual payments will be due in advance on October t'" of that year. 
In the event this Agreement is terminated before the end of the term, the $6000 

payment (or such annual fee agreed upon by the parties after the first year of the 

Agreement) (the "Annual Payment") shall be pro-rated over a 12 month period, 

and LISD shall repay the City a prorated amount of the Annual Payment for the 

months following the date of termination within thirty days of termination of this 

Agreement. For example, for a $6000 Annual Payment and a termination date 

occurring at the end of the 6th month during the year for which the Annual 

Payment was made, LISD would repay the City $3000. 



Exhibit B 

- LISD Conduit System 
- Municipal Dr. Conduit System 
A LISD Pull box 
B LISD Pull box 
C Municipal Dr. Ductbank 
D LISD Data Center 



AGENDA ITEM # 22 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
November 05, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 15-Z-025: Hold a public hearing and consider action 

on the rezoning of a tracts of land, for 18.598 acres more or less, 
located to the northwest of the intersection of RM 1431 & Travisso 
Pkwy, Travis Parcel 447948. Currently, the property is zoned 
Interim SFR-1-B (Single Family Rural) and the applicant is 
proposing to zone the property PUD (Planned Unit Development), 
Leander, Travis County, Texas. 

 
Background: This request is the second step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: Nancy Stroder on behalf of Travisso, LTD (Taylor 

Morrison of Texas is the Managing partner) 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis. The Planning & Zoning Commission 

unanimously recommended approval with staff recommendation 
and the condition that the current tree ordinance applies to this 
property at the October 22, 2015 meeting. 

 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3. Proposed Zoning Map 
 4.   Aerial Map 
 5. Notification Map 
 6. PUD Notes & Conceptual Site Layout & Land Use Plan 
 7.  Letter of Intent 
 8. Ordinance  
 9. Minutes-Planning & Zoning Commission October 22, 2015 
  
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 10/27/2015 



Attachment # 1                 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 15-Z-025 

TRAVISSO PUD 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: Travisso, LTD (Taylor Morrison Homes of Texas, Inc) 
 
Current Zoning: Interim SFR-1-B (Single-Family Rural) 
    
Proposed Zoning: PUD (Planned Unit Development) 
  
Size and Location: The property is generally located to the northwest of the intersection of 

RM 1431 & Travisso Pkwy and is approximately 18.598 acres in size. 
 
Staff Contact:   Robin M. Griffin, AICP   
 Senior Planner      
   
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH PUD Proposed Travisso Subdivision 

EAST PUD Proposed Travisso Subdivision 

SOUTH OCL Existing non-residential use 

WEST OCL Established Single-Family Homes located outside the City 
Limits 

        

  

1 
 



Attachment # 1                 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 
USE COMPONENTS:   

PUD – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT: 
The purpose and intent of the Planned Unit Development (PUD) district is to design unified 
standards for development in order to facilitate flexible, customized zoning and subdivision 
standards which encourage imaginative and innovative designs for the development of 
property within the City.  The intent of this zoning request is to provide for the design of a 
development which permits a mixed-residential community.  This integrated project will 
include a blend of single-family, multiple family housing types and commercial 
development.  The intent of this zoning district is to cohesively regulate the development to 
assure compatibility with adjacent single-family residences, neighborhoods, and commercial 
properties within the region. 

  
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 
The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Provide for a variety of sustainable housing options for all age groups and economic 

levels.  Determine ways to successfully integrate this variety within neighborhoods so as 
to accommodate the different needs of families throughout their life cycle.  Create more 
desirable and livable neighborhoods while respecting the goal of maintaining stable real 
estate values and housing marketability. 

 Establish high standards for development. 
 

 

ANALYSIS: 
 
The applicant is requesting rezone this property to PUD (Planned Unit Development) district in 
order to allow for the development of a mixed residential community.  The proposal includes 
residential lot widths ranging from as narrow as forty (40’) feet to over one hundred twenty 
(120’) feet wide.  The intent is to incorporate this property into the current Travisso PUD.  The 
property is currently subject to a boundary agreement with the City of Jonestown.  Once this 
boundary agreement is executed, the property will be located within the City of Leander’s City 
Limits.  The second reading of the ordinance cannot occur until after the property is within the 
City Limits. 
 
PROPOSED USE COMPONENTS 
The PUD proposal includes one zoning district:  RES (Residential).  The RES district permits the 
uses allowed in the SFC (Single-Family Compact), SFU (Single-Family Urban), SFS (Single-
Family Suburban), SFE (Single-Family Estate), and SFR (Single-Family Rural) use components.  
The overall Travisso Subdivision property will be developed to include not less than 2,100 and 
not more than 3,173 single-family residential lots.  The Development Agreement limits the 
maximum density to 3,173 units.   
 

2 
 



Attachment # 1                 

The table below identifies the permitted percentages of the residential use components. 
 

Use RES 
District 

Allowed 
Percent 

Single Family Compact (SFC) X 20% max 
Single Family Urban (SFU) X N/A 
Single Family Suburban (SFS) X 20% min 
Single Family Estate (SFE) X 25% min 
Single Family Rural (SFR) X 

 
 
PROPOSED SITE & ARCHITECTURAL COMPONENTS 
The site component for the RES District will comply with the Type 2 site component.  The 
proposed architectural component will include 65% masonry overall, 85% masonry for the front 
elevation, 100% masonry for the first floor all sides, and 100% masonry for the second floor side 
and rear facing walls when facing a street or greenbelt.  The Type A architectural component as 
listed in the Composite Zoning Ordinance requires 85% masonry for the entire structure. 
 
This proposed PUD will follow the established standards for the existing Travisso PUD. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the requested PUD.  The proposed PUD meets the intent of the 
current zoning, while allowing more flexibility with the location of the single-family districts.  
This application effectively utilizes composite zoning to incorporate a variety of land uses while 
maintaining high form standards.  The modification to the architectural requirements increases 
the amount of masonry for the portion of the homes that is visible from the street and greenbelt 
areas.  This requirement is reduced to a percentage that is between the Type A and Type B, 
however, the homes visible from the streets and greenbelts will be 100% masonry.  The 
requested PUD is consistent with the current Travisso PUD standards, and meets the intent 
statements of the Composite Zoning Ordinance and the goals of the Comprehensive Plan. 
 

3 
 



! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! ! !

! ! ! !! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! !

! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !
! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! !

! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 5

TRAVISSOSEC 1

FM 1431 RD

TRAVISSO PKWY

VENEZIA VW
BENETTON WAY

PIANA PL

GOOD NIGHT TRL

AN
GE

L S
ID

E D
R

LONE MOUNTAIN PASS

AN
GE

L S
PR

IN
GS

 D
R

CASTELLA CV

BELLADOMA CV

PAVIA PASS

MO
NT

EL
LO

 CT

VE
NE

TO
 CI

R

LIV
ENZA PL

VENEZIA VWTRAVISSO PKWY

VENEZIA VW

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-025  Attachment #2 Current Zoning Map - Travisso

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits ! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Commercial

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! ! !

! ! ! !! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! !

! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

!
!

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !
! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! !

! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 5

TRAVISSOSEC 1

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

FM 1431 RD

TRAVISSO PKWY

VENEZIA VW
BENETTON WAY

PIANA PL

LONE MOUNTAIN PASS

GOOD NIGHT TRL

AN
GE

L S
ID

E D
R

AN
GE

L S
PR

IN
GS

 D
R

CASTELLA CV

BELLADOMA CV

PAVIA PASS

VE
NE

TO
 CI

R

LIV
ENZA PL

VENEZIA VW

TRAVISSO PKWY

VENEZIA VW

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-025  Attachment #3 Proposed Zoning Map - Travisso

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits ! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Commercial

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! ! PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



FM 1431 RD

TRAVISSO PKWY

ANGEL SIDE DR

AN
GE

L S
PR

IN
GS

 D
R

CASTELLA CV

BENETTON WAY

ANGEL WING DR

VENEZIA VW

TRAVISSO PKWY

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 200

Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

ZONING CASE 15-Z-025 Attachment #4
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Travisso PUD - 18 Acres

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



863593

857393

353024

447948

447947

860693

842650

447961

819093

557123

447960

447939

842580
447938

447959

447940

447944

447956
447951

447949

447950

447945

447942

447941

557124 844578

447943

842579

84
45

88844587

842
560

84
45

81
84

45
49

844586

860678

844583
844582

844580

860671

842564

844740

844545

860651

860669
860670

844548

447946

844585

860652

844547

860668
860667

860653

860666

860658
860657

860654
860660 860655

860656

860659

860665

844595

860664860663
860662

844579

353032

431220

844550

844596

TRAVISSO PKWY

AN
GE

L S
PR

IN
GS

 D
R

VENEZIA VW

AN
GE

L S
ID

E 
DR

ANGEL WING DR

PAVIA PASS

TRAVISSO PKWY

TRAVISSO PKWY

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-025 

Attachment #5
Notification Map
Travisso PUD - 18 Acres

CITY MAPË

Public Notification Boundary
Subject Property
TCAD Parcels

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



EXHIBIT C 

 
Travisso Planned Unit Development  

 
I. General Notes 

 
A. The PUD consists of approximately 18.598 acres (the “Property”) located in Travis 

County, Leander, Texas, as particularly described in Exhibit A

 

 attached to this PUD 
ordinance. 

B. Except as otherwise provided in this PUD ordinance, the Property and PUD shall be 
governed by the Composite Zoning Ordinance of the City of Leander in effect as of the 
date of this PUD Ordinance (the “Zoning Ordinance

II. Zoning Districts 

”).  Any capitalized terms used 
herein but not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Zoning 
Ordinance. 

A. The PUD consists of one use district depicted on Exhibit 1, the Conceptual Site Layout & 
Land Use Plan
1. RES (Residential) containing approximately 18.598 acres. 

 attached hereto, including:  

III. Use Components  

A. 

1. The Overall Travisso Subdivision will be developed to include not less than 2,100 
and not more than 3,173 single-family residential lots. 

RES District Permitted Uses and Limitations for the overall Travisso Subdivision 

2. Single-family residential lots in the RES District may be developed by the owner of 
the Property utilizing SFC, SFE, SFR, SFU and SFS Use Components, as more 
particularly set forth in Exhibit 2

(a) SFC – the maximum percentage of SFC lots allowed to be developed in the 
project is 20% of the total lots developed in the PUD (635 lots, if the maximum 
3,173 single-family residential lots are developed in the PUD); 

 attached to this PUD ordinance, in accordance with 
the following requirements.  This 18.598 acre tract will be developed as part of the 
overall Travisso Subdivision.  The percentage of residential use components shall be 
calculated for the overall Travisso Subdivision as follows: 

(b) SFE and SFR – the minimum percentage of SFE and SFR lots is 25% of the total 
lots developed in the PUD (793 lots, if the maximum 3,173 single-family 
residential lots are developed in the PUD); and  

(c) SFU and SFS –any lots not developed as SFC lots may be developed as SFU, 
SFS, SFE, and SFR lots; the minimum percentage of SFS lots is 20% of the total 
lots developed in the PUD, provided the PUD shall not include more than 3,173 
single-family residential lots. 



 
IV. Site and Architectural Components and Standards 

A. RES District
1. Development Standards for each Use Component are shown on the table attached as 

.   

Exhibit 2 to this PUD ordinance.  This table sets out lot size, home size, setback, 
architectural, masonry, and landscaping, increasing the standards of many traditional 
zoning categories.  To the extent that these requirements are inconsistent with the 
requirements of Article V (Site Components), Article VI (Site Standards), Article VII 
(Architectural Components), and Article VIII (Architectural Standards) of the Zoning 
Ordinance, the Development Standards set forth in this PUD ordinance and Exhibit 2

2. Development in the RES District of the PUD will comply with the Type 2 site 
component. 

 
attached hereto will apply.   

3. Garages associated with lots designated with the SFC use component shall be able to 
protrude five feet in front of the dwelling regardless of the lot width. 

 
V. Signage 

 
A. Tertiary entrance signs constructed within the PUD shall be regulated by Ordinance No. 

03-023-00 and the Zoning Ordinance, with the following exceptions.  Tertiary entrance 
signs may be located at the entryway into sections within the PUD and are permitted only 
in subdivisions that exceed fifty (50) acres. They may be used to identify various sections 
that are fifteen (15) acres or greater in size in order to enhance direction within the 
PUD.Tertiary entrance signs shall be comprised entirely of stone or masonry, with 
engraved lettering set within the stone or with pin-mounted aluminum or steel letters.  
The sign face of tertiary entrance signs shall be limited to a total size of twelve (12) 
square feet.  The owner shall submit to the city restrictive covenants providing for 
perpetual maintenance of such signs by the homeowners’ association for Travisso before 
a permit will be issued for such signs. 
 

VI. Lighting  
 
A. Lighting constructed or installed within the PUD shall be regulated by Section 12 of 

Article V (Site Component) of the Zoning Ordinance in effect as of the date of this PUD 
Ordinance; provided, however, that all street lighting along Travisso Parkway will be 
decorative poles with energy efficient LED light fixtures. 
 

VII. Fencing 
A. Fencing will be limited to wrought iron or tubular metal when constructed along 

greenbelts. 



 
Exhibit 1 

Conceptual Site Layout & Land Use Plan 
 

  





Exhibit 2 
 

RES District Development Standards 
 

 

 



Zoning Use 
Component

Lot 
Width

Lot 
Depth 

Lot 
Area

Lot 
Width

Lot 
Depth 

Lot 
Area

Building 
Sq Foot Front Setback

Side 
Setbacks

Street 
Side 

Setback
Rear 

Setback Architectural / Masonry Req Landscaping

65% - Overall Trees: 2 x 3" hardwood

85%  Front Elev Shrubs - 20 x 5 Gal

100% - Sides & rear on one story homes Shrubs - 20 x 1 Gal - OG, GC, P

100% - 1st Floor all sides on two story homes Turf - Bermuda or Zoysia

100% - 2nd Floor Side & Rear facing street & 
greenbelts

AC Units, Dry Utility pedestals must be screened.  24" min 
ht at planting 36" w/in 1-2 years

65% - Overall Trees: 2 x 3" hardwood, 1 x 2" ornamental 

85%  Front Elev Shrubs - 20 x 5 Gal

100% - Sides & rear on one story homes Shrubs - 20 x 1 Gal - OG, GC, P

100% - 1st Floor all sides on two story homes Turf - Bermuda or Zoysia

100% - 2nd Floor Side & Rear facing street & 
greenbelts

AC Units, Dry Utility pedestals must be screened.  24" min 
ht at planting 36" w/in 1-2 years

65% - Overall Trees: 3 x 3" hardwood, 1 x 2" ornamental

85%  Front Elev Shrubs - 25 x 5 Gal

100% - Sides & rear on one story homes Shrubs - 25 x 1 Gal - OG, GC, P

100% - 1st Floor all sides on two story homes Turf - Bermuda or Zoysia

100% - 2nd Floor Side & Rear facing street & 
greenbelts

AC Units, Dry Utility pedestals must be screened.  24" min 
ht at planting 36" w/in 1-2 years

65% - Overall Trees: 4 x 3" hardwood, 1 x 2" ornamental

85%  Front Elev Shrubs - 30 x 5 Gal

100% - Sides & rear on one story homes Shrubs - 30 x 1 Gal - OG, GC, P

100% - 1st Floor all sides on two story homes Turf - Bermuda or Zoysia

100% - 2nd Floor Side & Rear facing street & 
greenbelts

AC Units, Dry Utility pedestals must be screened.  24" min 
ht at planting 36" w/in 1-2 years

65% - Overall Trees: 4 x 3" hardwood, 2 x 2" ornamental

85%  Front Elev Shrubs - 40 x 5 Gal

100% - Sides & rear on one story homes Shrubs - 40 x 1 Gal - OG, GC, P

100% - 1st Floor all sides on two story homes Turf - Bermuda or Zoysia

100% - 2nd Floor Side & Rear facing street & 
greenbelts

AC Units, Dry Utility pedestals must be screened.  24" min 
ht at planting 36" w/in 1-2 years

GENERAL NOTES OG - Ornamental Grasses
GC - Ground Cover 
P - Perennials

SFR 120 160 19200 3000120 160 19200 1525 (30 street facing 
garage) 7.5

15 (20 
street 
facing 

garage)

15SFE 80 150 12000 260090 150 13500

20 (25 street facing 
garage) 5

15 (20 
street 
facing 

garage)

20 (25 street facing 
garage) 7.5

15 (20 
street 
facing 

garage)

15

SFS 70 130 9100 2400 20 (25 street facing 
garage) 5

15 (20 
street 
facing 

garage)

15

SFU 60 130 7800 185070

RES DISTRICT MINIMUM STANDARDS

SFC 50 130 6500 1400 20 (25 street facing 
garage) 5

15 (20 
street 
facing 

garage)

107800

Interior Corner

60 130

130 9100

80 130 10400



rstover
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 7





Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

ORDINANCE NO #  
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING A PARCEL OF LAND FROM 
INTERIM SFR-1-B (SINGLE-FAMILY RURAL) TO PUD (PLANNED 
UNIT DEVELOPMENT); MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND 
PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Zoning Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 05-018, as amended, the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and 
amended by rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability. This ordinance applies to the following parcel of land, which is herein 
referred to as the “Property:”  That certain parcels of land being 18.598 acres, more or less, located 
in Leander, Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly described in Exhibit “B”, generally 
located to the northwest of the intersection of RM 1431 and Travisso Parkway; legally described 
as 18.598 acres more or less out of the Jose Antonio Ybarbo Survey 421 more particularly described 
in Document Number 2012217299 Official Public Records of Travis County, Texas, and identified 
by tax identification number 447948.  
 
Section 4.  Property Rezoned.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
district for the Property from Interim SFR-1-B (Single-Family Rural) to PUD (Planned Unit 
Development) known as the Travisso II PUD.  The PUD shall be developed and occupied in 
accordance with this Ordinance, the PUD plan attached as Exhibits “A”, “B”, and “C”, which are 
hereby adopted and incorporated herein for all purposes, and the Composite Zoning Ordinance to 
the extent not amended by this Ordinance.  In the event of a conflict between the Composite 
Zoning Ordinance and the requirements for the Property set forth in this Ordinance, this 
Ordinance shall control.   
 



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
 
Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 5th day of November, 2015. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 19th day of November, 2015. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 





! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! ! !

! ! ! !! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! !

! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

!
!

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !
! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! !

! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 5

TRAVISSOSEC 1

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

FM 1431 RD

TRAVISSO PKWY

VENEZIA VW
BENETTON WAY

PIANA PL

LONE MOUNTAIN PASS

GOOD NIGHT TRL

AN
GE

L S
ID

E D
R

AN
GE

L S
PR

IN
GS

 D
R

CASTELLA CV

BELLADOMA CV

PAVIA PASS

VE
NE

TO
 CI

R

LIV
ENZA PL

VENEZIA VW

TRAVISSO PKWY

VENEZIA VW

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-025  Exhibit B Zoning Map - Travisso

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits ! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Commercial

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! ! PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



EXHIBIT C 

 
Travisso Planned Unit Development  

 
I. General Notes 

 
A. The PUD consists of approximately 18.598 acres (the “Property”) located in Travis 

County, Leander, Texas, as particularly described in Exhibit A

 

 attached to this PUD 
ordinance. 

B. Except as otherwise provided in this PUD ordinance, the Property and PUD shall be 
governed by the Composite Zoning Ordinance of the City of Leander in effect as of the 
date of this PUD Ordinance (the “Zoning Ordinance

II. Zoning Districts 

”).  Any capitalized terms used 
herein but not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Zoning 
Ordinance. 

A. The PUD consists of one use district depicted on Exhibit 1, the Conceptual Site Layout & 
Land Use Plan
1. RES (Residential) containing approximately 18.598 acres. 

 attached hereto, including:  

III. Use Components  

A. 

1. The Overall Travisso Subdivision will be developed to include not less than 2,100 
and not more than 3,173 single-family residential lots. 

RES District Permitted Uses and Limitations for the overall Travisso Subdivision 

2. Single-family residential lots in the RES District may be developed by the owner of 
the Property utilizing SFC, SFE, SFR, SFU and SFS Use Components, as more 
particularly set forth in Exhibit 2

(a) SFC – the maximum percentage of SFC lots allowed to be developed in the 
project is 20% of the total lots developed in the PUD (635 lots, if the maximum 
3,173 single-family residential lots are developed in the PUD); 

 attached to this PUD ordinance, in accordance with 
the following requirements.  This 18.598 acre tract will be developed as part of the 
overall Travisso Subdivision.  The percentage of residential use components shall be 
calculated for the overall Travisso Subdivision as follows: 

(b) SFE and SFR – the minimum percentage of SFE and SFR lots is 25% of the total 
lots developed in the PUD (793 lots, if the maximum 3,173 single-family 
residential lots are developed in the PUD); and  

(c) SFU and SFS –any lots not developed as SFC lots may be developed as SFU, 
SFS, SFE, and SFR lots; the minimum percentage of SFS lots is 20% of the total 
lots developed in the PUD, provided the PUD shall not include more than 3,173 
single-family residential lots. 



 
IV. Site and Architectural Components and Standards 

A. RES District
1. Development Standards for each Use Component are shown on the table attached as 

.   

Exhibit 2 to this PUD ordinance.  This table sets out lot size, home size, setback, 
architectural, masonry, and landscaping, increasing the standards of many traditional 
zoning categories.  To the extent that these requirements are inconsistent with the 
requirements of Article V (Site Components), Article VI (Site Standards), Article VII 
(Architectural Components), and Article VIII (Architectural Standards) of the Zoning 
Ordinance, the Development Standards set forth in this PUD ordinance and Exhibit 2

2. Development in the RES District of the PUD will comply with the Type 2 site 
component. 

 
attached hereto will apply.   

3. Garages associated with lots designated with the SFC use component shall be able to 
protrude five feet in front of the dwelling regardless of the lot width. 

 
V. Signage 

 
A. Tertiary entrance signs constructed within the PUD shall be regulated by Ordinance No. 

03-023-00 and the Zoning Ordinance, with the following exceptions.  Tertiary entrance 
signs may be located at the entryway into sections within the PUD and are permitted only 
in subdivisions that exceed fifty (50) acres. They may be used to identify various sections 
that are fifteen (15) acres or greater in size in order to enhance direction within the 
PUD.Tertiary entrance signs shall be comprised entirely of stone or masonry, with 
engraved lettering set within the stone or with pin-mounted aluminum or steel letters.  
The sign face of tertiary entrance signs shall be limited to a total size of twelve (12) 
square feet.  The owner shall submit to the city restrictive covenants providing for 
perpetual maintenance of such signs by the homeowners’ association for Travisso before 
a permit will be issued for such signs. 
 

VI. Lighting  
 
A. Lighting constructed or installed within the PUD shall be regulated by Section 12 of 

Article V (Site Component) of the Zoning Ordinance in effect as of the date of this PUD 
Ordinance; provided, however, that all street lighting along Travisso Parkway will be 
decorative poles with energy efficient LED light fixtures. 
 

VII. Fencing 
A. Fencing will be limited to wrought iron or tubular metal when constructed along 

greenbelts. 



 
Exhibit 1 

Conceptual Site Layout & Land Use Plan 
 

  





Exhibit 2 
 

RES District Development Standards 
 

 

 



Zoning Use 
Component

Lot 
Width

Lot 
Depth 

Lot 
Area

Lot 
Width

Lot 
Depth 

Lot 
Area

Building 
Sq Foot Front Setback

Side 
Setbacks

Street 
Side 

Setback
Rear 

Setback Architectural / Masonry Req Landscaping

65% - Overall Trees: 2 x 3" hardwood

85%  Front Elev Shrubs - 20 x 5 Gal

100% - Sides & rear on one story homes Shrubs - 20 x 1 Gal - OG, GC, P

100% - 1st Floor all sides on two story homes Turf - Bermuda or Zoysia

100% - 2nd Floor Side & Rear facing street & 
greenbelts

AC Units, Dry Utility pedestals must be screened.  24" min 
ht at planting 36" w/in 1-2 years

65% - Overall Trees: 2 x 3" hardwood, 1 x 2" ornamental 

85%  Front Elev Shrubs - 20 x 5 Gal

100% - Sides & rear on one story homes Shrubs - 20 x 1 Gal - OG, GC, P

100% - 1st Floor all sides on two story homes Turf - Bermuda or Zoysia

100% - 2nd Floor Side & Rear facing street & 
greenbelts

AC Units, Dry Utility pedestals must be screened.  24" min 
ht at planting 36" w/in 1-2 years

65% - Overall Trees: 3 x 3" hardwood, 1 x 2" ornamental

85%  Front Elev Shrubs - 25 x 5 Gal

100% - Sides & rear on one story homes Shrubs - 25 x 1 Gal - OG, GC, P

100% - 1st Floor all sides on two story homes Turf - Bermuda or Zoysia

100% - 2nd Floor Side & Rear facing street & 
greenbelts

AC Units, Dry Utility pedestals must be screened.  24" min 
ht at planting 36" w/in 1-2 years

65% - Overall Trees: 4 x 3" hardwood, 1 x 2" ornamental

85%  Front Elev Shrubs - 30 x 5 Gal

100% - Sides & rear on one story homes Shrubs - 30 x 1 Gal - OG, GC, P

100% - 1st Floor all sides on two story homes Turf - Bermuda or Zoysia

100% - 2nd Floor Side & Rear facing street & 
greenbelts

AC Units, Dry Utility pedestals must be screened.  24" min 
ht at planting 36" w/in 1-2 years

65% - Overall Trees: 4 x 3" hardwood, 2 x 2" ornamental

85%  Front Elev Shrubs - 40 x 5 Gal

100% - Sides & rear on one story homes Shrubs - 40 x 1 Gal - OG, GC, P

100% - 1st Floor all sides on two story homes Turf - Bermuda or Zoysia

100% - 2nd Floor Side & Rear facing street & 
greenbelts

AC Units, Dry Utility pedestals must be screened.  24" min 
ht at planting 36" w/in 1-2 years

GENERAL NOTES OG - Ornamental Grasses
GC - Ground Cover 
P - Perennials

SFR 120 160 19200 3000120 160 19200 1525 (30 street facing 
garage) 7.5

15 (20 
street 
facing 

garage)

15SFE 80 150 12000 260090 150 13500

20 (25 street facing 
garage) 5

15 (20 
street 
facing 

garage)

20 (25 street facing 
garage) 7.5

15 (20 
street 
facing 

garage)

15

SFS 70 130 9100 2400 20 (25 street facing 
garage) 5

15 (20 
street 
facing 

garage)

15

SFU 60 130 7800 185070

RES DISTRICT MINIMUM STANDARDS

SFC 50 130 6500 1400 20 (25 street facing 
garage) 5

15 (20 
street 
facing 

garage)

107800

Interior Corner

60 130

130 9100

80 130 10400







AGENDA ITEM # 23 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
November 05, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 15-TOD-Z-022: Hold a public hearing and consider 

action on the rezoning of one tract of land, for 19 acres more or 
less, generally located 2,100 feet to the west of the intersection of 
US 183 and San Gabriel Pkwy on the north side of San Gabriel 
Pkwy, WCAD Parcel R522995. Currently, the property is zoned 
PUD/TOD (Planned Unit Development/Transit Oriented 
Development) and the applicant is proposing to amend the PUD to 
designate the base zoning district as SFR-3-A (Single-Family 
Rural) as permitted by the SmartCode, Leander, Williamson 
County, Texas. 

 
Background: This request is the second step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: Hill Country Bible Church. 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis. The Planning & Zoning Commission 

unanimously recommended approval of the request with staff’s 
recommendation at the October 22, 2015 meeting. 

 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3. Proposed Zoning Map 
 4.   Aerial Map 
 5. Notification Map 
 6. Conceptual Site Layout & Land Use Plan 
 7.  Letter of Intent 
 8. Ordinance  
 9. Minutes-Planning & Zoning Commission October 22, 2015 
  
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 10/27/2015 



Attachment # 1                 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 15-TOD-Z-022 

HILL COUNTRY BIBLE CHURCH PUD 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: Hill Country Bible Church 
 
Current Zoning: PUD/TOD (Planned Unit Development/Transit Oriented Development) 
    
Proposed Zoning: PUD/TOD (Planned Unit Development/Transit Oriented Development) 
  
Size and Location: The property is generally located 2,100 feet to the west of the intersection 

of US 183 and San Gabriel Pkwy on the north side of San Gabriel Pkwy. 
 
Staff Contact:   Robin M. Griffin, AICP   
 Senior Planner      
   
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH HC-4-C Undeveloped Property 

EAST PUD/TOD Proposed Maya Vista Subdivision 

SOUTH PUD/TOD Proposed Oak Creek Subdivision 

WEST LC-2-B Undeveloped Property zoned for local commercial and the 
Savanna Ranch Section 4 detention pond. 

        

  

1 
 



Attachment # 1                 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE & SMARTCODE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 

PUD/TOD – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT/TRANSIT ORIENTED 
DEVELOPMENT: 

The purpose and intent of the Planned Unit Development (PUD) district is to design unified 
standards for development in order to facilitate flexible, customized zoning and subdivision 
standards which encourage imaginative and innovative designs for the development of 
property within the City.  The intent of this zoning request is to provide for the design of a 
development which permits a mixed-residential community.  The intent of this zoning district 
is to cohesively regulate the development to assure compatibility with adjacent single-family 
residences, neighborhoods, and commercial properties within the region. 

 
CONVENTIONAL ZONE: 

The Conventional Development Sector allows conventional single-use and mixed-use 
development with some basic design standards to provide a transition to adjacent 
neighborhoods and pedestrian-oriented communities, and for the possibility of future retrofit 
of the area to a more pedestrian-oriented pattern. 
 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 
The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Establish high standards for development. 

 
 

ANALYSIS: 
 
The applicant is requesting an amendment to the TOD/PUD (Transit Oriented 
Development/Planned Unit Development) district in to order to develop a church campus.  The 
property to the east is part of the proposed Maya Vista Subdivision and to the south is Oak Creek 
Subdivision that is currently under construction.  The property to the north is undeveloped 
property zoned for heavy commercial uses and the property to west is undeveloped property 
zoned for local commercial uses.    
 
The proposed base zoning for this PUD is SFR-3-A (Single-Family Rural).  This zoning district 
permits large lot residential developments as well as places of worship.  The Type 3 site 
component will allow for the proposed church campus and not limit the size of the building.  The 
Type 2 site component limits and individual users to 40,000 gross square feet of floor area in a 
single building.  In addition, the Type A Architectural Component requires that all structures are 
eighty-five (85%) percent masonry. 
 
The Conventional Development (CD) Sector Standards will apply to this project including: 
 All buildings shall meet the Type A Architectural Component of the Composite Zoning 

Ordinance. 

2 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 Surface parking consisting of no more than one drive aisle with head-in parking spaces 
on each side of the drive aisle are permitted between the building and the right-of-way. A 
landscape screen or wall no taller than 4 feet in height shall be constructed and 
maintained to screen the view of the parking from the adjacent ROW.   

 All drive aisles shall be designed and easements conveyed to connect to existing or future 
drive aisles on adjacent properties. 

 Sidewalks and street trees in compliance with the Composite Zoning Ordinance shall be 
required between the parking lot and the right-of-way. 

 Sidewalks at least 12 feet wide shall be provided between the building facade and the 
parking lot, with trees in grates or planter boxes every 30 feet. 

 A continuous building frontage is required.  The frontage may only be broken by a street, 
pedestrian passage, courtyard or similar feature approved by the Planning Director.  For 
phased building construction within a block, a screen wall or landscape hedge shall be 
constructed at the building frontage line prior to building construction.  This provision 
shall be modified to allow for a break in the building frontage on the west and east sides 
of the building for the parking area.  This parking area may not exceed 40% of the lot 
frontage. 

 The provision of pedestrian amenities such as benches, outdoor dining areas, awnings 
over sidewalks and other similar features is encouraged.  The Planning Director may 
provide a reduction of the minimum parking or landscaping requirement of up to 15% for 
the provision of pedestrian amenities. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the requested TOD/PUD amendment.  The proposed land use is 
compatible with the neighboring properties.  This request meets the intent statements of the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance and complies with the Conventional Development (CD) Standards. 
 

3 
 



! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

BENBROOK
RANCH
PARK

BENBROOK RANCH,
SEC 1

PLAIN
ES

4C

5D

4C

4C

4C

US 183

W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

HERITAGE GROVE RD

W 
BR

OA
DE

 ST
MISTFLOWER SPRINGS DR

OA
K 

GR
OV

E 
RD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-TOD-Z-022  Attachment #2 Current Zoning Map - Hill Country Bible

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits ! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Commercial

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

SAVANNA RANCH,SEC 1

BENBROOK
RANCH
PARK

BENBROOK RANCH,
SEC 1

PLAIN
ES

EONCR,SEC 2

4C

5D

4C

4C

4C

US 183

W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

HERITAGE GROVE RD

W 
BR

OA
DE

 ST
MISTFLOWER SPRINGS DR

OA
K 

GR
OV

E 
RD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-TOD-Z-022  Attachment #3 Proposed Zoning Map - Hill Country Bible

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits ! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Commercial

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

HERITAGE GROVE RD

MISTFLOWER SPRINGS DR

OA
K G

RO
VE

 R
D

W 
BR

OA
DE

 ST

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 200

Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

ZONING CASE 15-TOD-Z-022 Attachment #4
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Hill Country Bible Church

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



R321825

R031694

R529005

R031728

R522995

R462849

R529012

R395787

R031640

R0
31

64
5

R529009

R0
31

72
2

R508012

R031721

R395875

R476719

R349069

R4
62

85
0

R462848

R031637

R529006

R048976

R031720

R476718
R0

99
99

1

R5
28

99
9

R5
29

00
0

R525192

R528759

R031642

R528758

W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

HERITAGE GROVE RD

MISTFLOWER SPRINGS DR

OA
K 

GR
OV

E 
RD

W 
BR

OA
DE

 ST

MUST
ANG BROOK LN

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-TOD-Z-022  

Attachment #5
Notification Map
Hill Country Bible Church

CITY MAPË

Public Notice Boundary
Subject Property
WCAD Parcels

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



EXHIBIT A 
 

Hill Country Bible Planned Unit Development 
 
 

A. Purpose and Intent 
 
The Hill Country Bible Church PUD is composed of approximately 19 acres, as 
described in Exhibit A (Field Notes). The development of this property is planned as a 
church campus. 
 
 
B. Applicability and Base Zoning 
 

1. All aspects regarding the development of this PUD shall comply the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance and the Conventional Development (CD) 
Sector Standards, except as established in this exhibit, titled Exhibit A. 
 

2. The Conventional Development (CD) Sector Standard regarding the continuous  
building frontage shall be modified as follows: 

 
A continuous building frontage is required.  The frontage may only be 
broken by a street, pedestrian passage, courtyard, parking area, or similar 
feature approved by the Planning Director.  The parking area may break 
the building frontage on the west and east sides of the building and shall 
not exceed 40% of the lot frontage.  For phased building construction 
within a block, a screen wall or landscape hedge shall be constructed at the 
building frontage line prior to building construction.   

 
3. For the purpose of establishing development standards for the PUD, the SFR-3-

A (Single-Family Rural) base zoning district has been selected from the Leander 
Composite Zoning Ordinance for the proposed church campus. 

 
 
C. Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan 
 
Exhibit B (attached) is a conceptual site layout and land use plan intended to visually 
convey the proposed location of the church campus.  This plan does not constitute plat or 
site plan approval. 
 



rstover
Text Box
EXHIBIT B:Conceptual Site Layout & Land Use PlanBase Zoning District:  SFR-3-A 

rstover
Line

rstover
Line



rstover
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 7



Amending Ordinance 14-042-00 

ORDINANCE NO #  
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT KNOWN AS THE TRANSIT 
ORIENTED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT FOR A PARCEL OF LAND BY 
CREATING THE HILL COUNTRY BIBLE CHURCH PLANNED UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT; MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING 
FOR RELATED MATTERS. 
 

 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property"), which is located 
within the planned unit development known as the Transit Oriented Development District (the 
“TODD”), has requested that the Property be rezoned and a planned unit development plan (the 
“PUD plan”) for the Hill Country Bible Church Planned Unit Development (“PUD”) be adopted; 
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
 
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1. Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2. Amendment of TODD Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 14-042-00, as amended, the City of 
Leander TODD Ordinance, is hereby modified and amended for these Properties as set forth in 
Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability.  The TODD Ordinance is hereby amended by creation of the Hill Country 
Bible PUD, which are herein referred to as the “Property,” generally located 2,100 feet to the west 
of the intersection of US 183 and San Gabriel Pkwy on the north side of San Gabriel Pkwy, and 
more particularly described as follows:  19.0 acres out of the Charles Cochran Survey, Abstract 
Number 134, located in Leander, Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly shown and 
described in Exhibits “C” and “D”; and identified by tax identification number R522995; more 
particularly described in document number 2013018966 recorded in the Williamson County 
Official Public Records.   
 
Section 4. Property Rezoned. The Property is zoned to the planned unit development district 
known as the Hill Country Bible PUD within the TODD.  The Property shall be developed and 
occupied in compliance with the PUD plan attached hereto as Exhibits “A” and “B”, the 
Conventional Development Sector Standards of the Smart Code (defined in the TODD 
Ordinance), the Composite Zoning Ordinance, and other applicable regulations of the City.   



Amending Ordinance 14-042-00 

Section 4. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
 
Section 5.Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 6.Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 5th day of November, 2015. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 19th day of November, 2015. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



EXHIBIT A 
 

Hill Country Bible Planned Unit Development 
 
 

A. Purpose and Intent 
 
The Hill Country Bible Church PUD is composed of approximately 19 acres, as 
described in Exhibit C (Field Notes). The development of this property is planned as a 
church campus. 
 
 
B. Applicability and Base Zoning 
 

1. All aspects regarding the development of this PUD shall comply the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance and the Conventional Development (CD) 
Sector Standards, except as established in this exhibit, titled Exhibit A. 
 

2. The Conventional Development (CD) Sector Standard regarding the continuous  
building frontage shall be modified as follows: 

 
A continuous building frontage is required.  The frontage may only be 
broken by a street, pedestrian passage, courtyard, parking area, or similar 
feature approved by the Planning Director.  The parking area may break 
the building frontage on the west and east sides of the building and shall 
not exceed 40% of the lot frontage.  For phased building construction 
within a block, a screen wall or landscape hedge shall be constructed at the 
building frontage line prior to building construction.   

 
3. For the purpose of establishing development standards for the PUD, the SFR-3-

A (Single-Family Rural) base zoning district has been selected from the Leander 
Composite Zoning Ordinance for the proposed church campus. 

 
 
C. Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan 
 
Exhibit B (attached) is a conceptual site layout and land use plan intended to visually 
convey the proposed location of the church campus.  This plan does not constitute plat or 
site plan approval. 
 



rstover
Text Box
EXHIBIT B:Conceptual Site Layout & Land Use PlanBase Zoning District:  SFR-3-A 

rstover
Line

rstover
Line



rstover
Text Box
EXHIBIT C





! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

SAVANNA RANCH,SEC 1

BENBROOK
RANCH
PARK

BENBROOK RANCH,
SEC 1

PLAIN
ES

EONCR,SEC 2

4C

5D

4C

4C

4C

US 183

W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

HERITAGE GROVE RD

W 
BR

OA
DE

 ST
MISTFLOWER SPRINGS DR

PALMILLA ST

OA
K 

GR
OV

E 
RD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-TOD-Z-022  Exhibit D Zoning Map - Hill Country Bible

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits ! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Commercial

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.





AGENDA ITEM # 24 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
November 05, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 14-Z-029: Hold a public hearing and consider action 

on the rezoning of two tracts of land, for 53.985 acres more or less, 
located at 10744 E. Crystal Falls Parkway, WCAD Parcels 
R031201 & R080605. Currently, the property is zoned Interim 
SFR-1-B Single Family Rural) and the applicant is proposing to 
zone the property GC-2-A (General Commercial), Leander, 
Williamson County, Texas.  

 
Background: This request is the second step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: Bowman Consulting (W.L. Gabler) on behalf of Premas 

Global Leander, LLC 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis. The Planning & Zoning Commission 

unanimously recommended approval of the staff recommendation 
of GC-2-A, LC-2-A, LO-2-A, and SFT-2-A as shown in 
Attachment 6  at the October 22, 2015 meeting. 

 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3. Proposed Zoning Map 
 4.   Aerial Map 
 5. Location Map 
 6. Staff Proposed Zoning Map 
 7. Notification Map  
 8. Letter of Intent  
 9. Ordinance  
 10. Minutes-Planning & Zoning Commission October 22, 2015 
  
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 10/26/2015 



Attachment # 1                 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 14-Z-029 

GLOBAL VILLAGE REZONING 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: Premas Global Leander, LLC 
 
Current Zoning: Interim SFR-1-B (Single Family Rural) 
 
Proposed Zoning: GC-2-A (General Commercial) 
  
Size and Location: The property is located at 10744 E. Crystal Falls Parkway and includes 

approximately 53.985 acres. 
 
Staff Contact:   Robin M. Griffin, AICP   
 Senior Planner      
   
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH GC-2-A Undeveloped Land Zoned for Commercial Use 

EAST 
GC-2-A 
LC-1-B 

Interim SFR-1-B 

Undeveloped Land Zoned for Commercial, Local Commercial 
and Interim Single Family Uses 

SOUTH OCL Undeveloped Land located outside of the City Limits & ETJ 

WEST 

GC-3-A 
LC-3-A 
LO-2-A 
SFU-2-B 

Undeveloped Land Zoned for Commercial, Local Commercial 
and Local Office Uses 
 
Established Single-Family Subdivision (Ridgewood South) 

        

  

1 
 



Attachment # 1                 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 
SFT – SINGLE FAMILY TOWNHOUSE:   

Features:  2,000 sq. ft. lot min; 900 sq. ft. living area min. 
Intent:  development of single-family attached dwellings on very small sized lots and for other uses 

that are compatible and complimentary to attached residential development. This component is 
generally intended as follows: 

(1) To provide an orderly transition and serve as a buffer between larger lot neighborhoods and more 
intensive uses such as multi-family or commercial uses or arterial roadways. 

(2) To create more variety in housing opportunities and in the fabric of the neighborhoods. 
(3) To include or be located within six hundred feet of parkland or other recreational open space. 
(4) To be located in planned communities of greater than 100 acres and comprising less than ten 

percent (10%) of the lots, or to provide infill opportunities in appropriate areas of the City such as 
in areas under transition. 

Frontage for such lots shall be provided by a street with a ROW of fifty-six (56) feet or greater 
and a pavement width of thirty-six (36) feet or greater unless access to garages on such lots is 
from an alley. 

 
LO – LOCAL OFFICE:   

Features:  Office, assisted living, day care.  Hours of operation: 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 Sun.-Thurs., 
7:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. Fri. and Sat. 

Intent:  Development of small scale, limited impact office uses or similar uses which may be 
located adjacent to residential neighborhoods.  Access should be provided by a collector or 
higher classification street.  This component is intended to help provide for land use transitions 
from local or general commercial or from arterial streets to residential development. 

 
LC – LOCAL COMMERCIAL:   

Features: Any use in LO plus retail sales and services, restaurants, banks, nursery or greenhouse, 
grocery sales, pharmacies, fitness centers, dance and music academies, artist studio, colleges 
and universities, bed and breakfast.  Hours of operation: 5:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. Sun.-Thurs., 
5:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. Fri. and Sat. 

Intent:  Development of small scale, limited impact commercial, retail, personal services and 
office uses located in close proximity to their primary customers, which cater to the everyday 
needs of the nearby residents, and which may be located near residential neighborhoods.  
Access should be provided by a collector or higher classification street. 

 
GC – GENERAL COMMERCIAL:   

Features:  Any use in LC plus bar, nightclub, entertainment venues, hospital, hotel, liquor store, 
office/warehouse, vehicle and equipment sales, leasing and repair, furniture sales, pet shop, 
wholesale activities less than 3,500 sq. ft. 

Intent:  Development of small to large scale commercial, retail, and commercial service uses 
located in high traffic areas.  Access to this component should be provided by an arterial street.  
The heaviest concentration of this component should be located at intersections of arterial 
streets. 

 
  

2 
 



Attachment # 1                 

TYPE 2:   
Features:  Accessory buildings greater of 10% of primary building or 120 sq. ft.; accessory 

dwellings for SFR, SFE and SFS; drive-thru service lanes; uses not to exceed 40,000 sq. ft.; 
multi-family provides at least 35% of units with an enclosed garage parking space. 

Intent:   
(1) The Type 2 site component may be utilized with non-residential developments that are adjacent to 

a residential district or other more restrictive district to help reduce potential negative impacts to 
the more restrictive district and to provide for an orderly transition of development intensity.   

(2) The Type 2 site component is intended to be utilized for residential development not meeting the 
intent of a Type 1 site component and not requiring the additional accessory structure or accessory 
dwelling privileges of the Type 3 site component. 

(3) This component is intended to be utilized with the majority of LO and LC use components except 
those that meet the intent of the Type 1 or Type 3 site component or with any use requiring drive-
through service lanes. 

(4) This component is generally not intended to be utilized with LI and HI use components except 
where such component is adjacent to, and not adequately buffered from, residential districts or 
other more restricted districts, and except as requested by the land owner. 

 
TYPE A:   

Features:  85% masonry; 5 or more architectural features. 
Intent:   
(1) The Type A architectural component is intended to be utilized for high quality developments or to 

provide variety as an additional option for portions of a residential development and may be 
utilized in or adjacent to single-family uses.   

(2) This component is intended to be utilized for single-family development that backs up to, or sides 
to, a major thoroughfare. 

(3) Combined with appropriate use and site components, this component is intended to help provide 
for harmonious land use transitions by applying this component to a less restrictive use or site 
component adjacent to a more restrictive use or site component.  This standard may be utilized to 
help ensure compatibility for non-residential uses, multi-family, two-family, townhouse or small 
lot residential development with adjacent property that is more restricted.   

(4) This component is intended to be utilized for buildings requiring heights greater than those 
provided in other architectural components.   

(5) This component may be utilized for any high profile development, for any property in a prominent 
location or at an important gateway to the community. 

(6) This component is not intended to become an involuntary standard for the majority of a single-
family subdivision, especially with SFR, SFE, SFS, SFU and SFC components. 

  

3 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 
The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Plan for future development that is compatible with existing residential neighborhoods. 
 The Community Center provides the same uses and services offered by a Neighborhood 

Center including small professional offices, small-lot single-family, townhouses, 
duplexes and quadplexes, churches, gyms, child care centers, and other civic uses, etc. 
Additionally, Community Centers include uses that are demanded less frequently than 
daily, and are typically anchored by grocery stores. Community Centers should have an 
internal network of streets and promote walkability within the Center. 

 Mixed Use Corridors are areas along arterials between Centers that have available land 
and should be developed to preserve the integrity of the corridor and maintain mobility.  
These corridors include land within approximately 500 feet of the outer edge of the right-
of-way (typically one block deep). 
   

ANALYSIS: 
 
The applicant is requesting to rezone the property to GC-2-A (General Commercial) in order to 
allow for a commercial development at this location.  This property was involuntarily annexed in 
to the City on January 17, 2013 and the current Interim SFR-1-B (Single-Family Rural) zoning 
was established.  The adjacent property to the north is associated with this project and was 
rezoned to the GC-2-A district on September 16, 2010 by the City Council.  The properties to the 
west currently include the Ridgewood South Subdivision and undeveloped commercial.  The 
property to the south is not located within the City Limits or ETJ.  The property to the east is 
zoned GC-2-A and LC-1-B and is currently undeveloped.  The Crystal Springs Subdivision is 
also proposed to the east of the subject property. 
 
The General Commercial use component permits the development of small to large scale 
commercial, retail, and commercial service uses located in high traffic areas.  The Composite 
Zoning Ordinance states that access to this component should be provided by an arterial street 
and that the heaviest concentration of this component should be located at intersections of 
arterial streets.  In this situation, the proposed zoning is located approximately 500 feet from the 
intersection of 183A Toll Road and East Crystal Falls Parkway. 
 
The Type 2 site component is intended to be used with non-residential developments that are 
adjacent to a residential district or other more restrictive district to help reduce potential negative 
impacts to the more restrictive district and to provide for an orderly transition of development 
intensity.  This site component does allow for drive through service lanes and accessory 
buildings.  This site component does not allow outdoor storage, display, overhead service doors, 
carwashes or fueling stations.  In addition, the Type A Architectural Component requires that all 
structures are eight five (85%) percent masonry and have a minimum of five different design 
features. 

4 
 



Attachment # 1                 

This property is located within a Community Center.  The Community Center provides the same 
uses and services offered by a Neighborhood Center including small professional offices, small-
lot single-family, townhouses, duplexes and quadplexes, churches, gyms, child care centers, and 
other civic uses, etcetera. Additionally, Community Centers include uses that are demanded less 
frequently than daily, and are typically anchored by grocery stores. Community Centers should 
have an internal network of streets and promote walkability within the Center.  The target land 
use mix for a Community Center is 50% residential and 50% non-residential.  Currently, this 
Community Center is zoned 32% residential and 68% non-residential. 
 
This property is also located within a Mixed Use Corridor.  Mixed Use Corridors are areas along 
arterials between Centers that have available land and should be developed to preserve the 
integrity of the corridor and maintain mobility.  These corridors include land within 
approximately 500 feet of the outer edge of the right-of-way (typically one block deep).  This 
corridor extends along 183A Toll Road to the south along the property. 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the following districts as shown in Attachment 6: 
 
 GC-2-A (General Commercial) – 29.73 acres 
 LC-2-A (Local Commercial) – 4.92 acres 
 LO-2-A (Local Office) – 5.11 acres 
 SFT-2-A (Single-Family Townhome) – 13.3 acres  

 
The applicant’s request does not comply with the Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use 
Map.  The staff proposal modifies the request to incorporate general commercial, local 
commercial, local office, and high density single-family uses.  The GC-2-A district is located 
within and adjacent to the Community Center boundaries.  The LC-2-A, LO-2-A, and SFT-2-A 
districts are located within and adjacent to a Mixed Use Corridor.  As stated in the 
Comprehensive Plan, the LC-2-A is proposed to be located at the intersection of the proposed 
extension of Raider Way and 183A Toll Road.  The LO-2-A is located along the 183A Toll Road 
frontage not adjacent to an intersection.  This arrangement provides for a transition of land uses 
from the major intersection to the proposed single-family zoning to the east.  The staff 
recommendation complies with the Comprehensive Plan and the intent statements of the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance. 

5 
 



LEANDER CROSSING

ROUSE
HS

WYLIE
MS

CRYSTALCROSSINGPH 1

RIDGEWOODNORTH

RIDGEWOODSOUTHPH 1

OAKRIDGE,SEC4

OAKRIDGE,SEC3

PLEASANTHILLESTATES

HORIZONPARK, SEC 5

HORIZONPARK, SEC 3

PLEASANT
HILL
ES

RIDGEWOODSOUTHPH 2

COLD SPRINGS,SEC 3

COLD SPRINGS,SEC 4

CRYSTAL SPRINGS

COLD SPRINGS,SEC 5

3A

2A

3A

2A
2A 2A 3B

2A

2A

1B

3A

1C2A

1B

2A
2A

3A

3A

3A

2A

3A

3A

3A

3A

3A

2A

3A

3A

183A TOLL RD SB

183A TOLL RD NB

183A TOLL RD FR SB

183A TOLL RD FR NB

RA
ID

ER
 W

AY

PVR 921PVR 920

VINTA
GE DR

CA
LL

A 
LIL

Y B
LV

D

RUTHERFORD DR

CHARDONNAY XING

E WOODVIEW DR

E CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

RI
DG

EW
OO

D 
DR

DOWNRIDGE DR

YE
LL

OW
 IR

IS
 R

D

BLOCK HOUSE DR

ST HELENA DR

CALISTOGA DR

LA
MB

RU
SC

O 
LN

LILY PAD LANE

BA
RD

OL
IN

O 
LN

BORDEAUX DR

YOUNTVILLE DR

SPUMANTI LN

NAPA CV

WA
TE

R 
HY

SS
OP

 LO
OP

WA
TE

R 
HY

AC
IN

TH
 LO

OP

JO
RD

AN
 C

V

MADEIRA CV

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-029

Attachment #2
Current Zoning Map
Global Village

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction

Community
Center Node

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



LEANDER CROSSING

ROUSE
HS

WYLIE
MS

CRYSTALCROSSINGPH 1

RIDGEWOODNORTH

RIDGEWOODSOUTHPH 1

OAKRIDGE,SEC4

PLEASANTHILLESTATES

HORIZONPARK, SEC 3

RIDGEWOODSOUTHPH 2

COLD SPRINGS,SEC 2

COLD SPRINGS,SEC 3

COLD SPRINGS,SEC 4

CRYSTAL SPRINGS

COLD SPRINGS,SEC 5

3A

3A
2A

2A

2A

1B

2A3B2A

3A

1C2A

1B

2A

2A

2A

3C3A

2A

3A
3A

3C

3A

3A

2A
183A TOLL RD SB

183A TOLL RD NB

183A TOLL RD FR SB

183A TOLL RD FR NB

RA
ID

ER
 W

AY

CA
LL

A 
LIL

Y B
LV

D

PVR 921PVR 920

RUTHERFORD DR

E CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

E WOODVIEW DR
VINTA

GE DR

RI
DG

MA
R 

RD

CHARDONNAY XING

CA
CT

US
 M

OU
ND

 D
R

BLOCK HOUSE DR

CALISTOGA DR

LA
MB

RU
SC

O 
LN

YELLOW IRIS RD

BA
RD

OL
IN

O 
LN

LILY PAD LANE

YOUNTVILLE DR

183A TOLL RD

SPUMANTI LN

GRAND LAKE PKW
Y

WA
TE

R 
HY

SS
OP

 LO
OP

JO
RD

AN
 C

V

WOODVIEW DR

PICTON CT

183A TOLL RD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-029

Attachment #3
Proposed Zoning Map
Global Village

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction

2A

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



183A TOLL RD SB
183A TOLL RD NB

183A TOLL RD FR SB

183A TOLL RD FR NB

E CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

RA
ID

ER
 W

AY

RUTHERFORD DR

183A TOLL RD

CHARDONNAY XING

YOUNTVILLE DR

SPUMANTI LNJO
RD

AN
 C

V

183A TOLL RD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 200

Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

ZONING CASE 14-Z-029 Attachment #4
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Global Village

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



3A

2A

3A

2A
2A 2A 3B

2A

2A

1B

3A

1C2A

1B

2A
2A

3A

3A

3A

2A

3A

3A

3A

3A

3A

2A

3A

3A

183A TOLL RD SB

183A TOLL RD NB

183A TOLL RD FR SB

183A TOLL RD FR NB

RA
ID

ER
 W

AY

PVR 921PVR 920

VINTA
GE DR

CA
LL

A 
LIL

Y B
LV

D

RUTHERFORD DR

CHARDONNAY XING

E WOODVIEW DR

E CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

RI
DG

EW
OO

D 
DR

DOWNRIDGE DR

YE
LL

OW
 IR

IS
 R

D

BLOCK HOUSE DR

ST HELENA DR

CALISTOGA DR

LA
MB

RU
SC

O 
LN

LILY PAD LANE

BA
RD

OL
IN

O 
LN

BORDEAUX DR

YOUNTVILLE DR

SPUMANTI LN

NAPA CV

WA
TE

R 
HY

SS
OP

 LO
OP

WA
TE

R 
HY

AC
IN

TH
 LO

OP

JO
RD

AN
 C

V

MADEIRA CV

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-029

Attachment #5
Location Map
Global Village

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction

Mixed Use
Corridor

Community
Center Node

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

Community 
Center 



RA
ID

ER
 W

AY

183A TOLL RD SB

183A TOLL RD NB

183A TOLL RD FR SB

183A TOLL RD FR NB

RA
ID

ER
 W

AY

E CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

RUTHERFORD DR

CHARDONNAY XING

YOUNTVILLE DR

SPUMANTI LN

183A TOLL RD

JO
RD

AN
 C

V

SO
LA

NO
 C

V

183A TOLL RD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-029

Attachment #6
Staff Recommendation
Global Village

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction

Mixed Use
Corridor

Community
Center Node

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

Community 
Center 

GC-2-A
29.73 acres

SFT-2-A
13.3 acres

LC-2-A
4.92 acres

LO-2-A
5.11 acres



R031201

R031265

R031199

R0
31

20
4

R353242

R526
321

R497327

R523989

R031213

R031744

R3
24

54
9

R497326

R432787

R0
31

20
6

R0
31

24
8

R0
31

21
5

R5
23

99
1

R031270

R0
51

45
8

R080605

R310336

R426702

R432786 R526319

R5
10

43
0

R4
32

78
5

R354
007

R525358

R526320 R526322
R320075

R0
31

20
0

R0
31

26
9

R0
31

74
3

R3
53

24
1

R5
10

44
9

R525360
R525359

R031205

R0
31

20
3

R031214

R328
187

R525361

R4
32

77
7

R0
31

20
2

R525362

R398592

R430109

R398517

R031346

R426654

R398538

R398560

R398535

R426677

R398502 R398527
R398513

R426696

R398530

R437431

R426669
R426670

R398507

R426675

R437434
R437433

R387033

R426647

R398529

R426655

R426648

R398518

R398528

R398547

R398534

R426674

R398548

R437432

R426695

R437435

R398536

R426676

R437461

R398596

R426672
R426684

R426652

R426665

R398506

R398553

R303343

R426634

R426678

R426660

R426673

R398595

R426679

R398511

R426659

R398512

R426635

R398607

R510443

R426694

R398593

R426680

R398509

R398524

R426656

R426668

R426651

R398559

R437441

R398590

R398549

R426685

R426653

R398520

R426666

R398519

R510442

R398606

R398521

R398537

R426664

R398522R398505

R437442

R398514

R426661

R398556

R426691

R398531

R426650

R398605

R398510

R427441

R426693

R426641

R398558 R427442
R398557 R398561

R426637
R426686

R398554

R437437

R426638

R437436
R426645

R426639

R426644

R426681

R426624

R426640

R426643

R426626
R426625R426627

R398543

R426628
R426629
R426630

R398541

R426632R426619

R398544

R426636

R426620

R398540

R426667

R398542

R437438
R437439

R426642

R426621

R398545

R398539

R437452

R398533
R398532

R398589

R398526

R398585

R398588

R303342

R398546

R398587
R398594

R426646

R398515

R398584R398586
R398581R398583

R426608

R398582

R510436

R510439

R426609

R510440

R510435

R510438

R510433
R510432
R510431

R432784

R510441

R521860

R426611
R426610

R426612
R426613

R437463

R426614
R426615

R426617

R451759R451758

R387034

R398591

183A TOLL RD SB

183A TOLL RD NB

183A TOLL RD FR SB

183A TOLL RD FR NB

RA
ID

ER
 W

AY

E CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

183A TOLL RD

183A TOLL RD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-029  

Attachment #7
Notification Map
Global Village

CITY MAPË

Public Notice Boundary
Subject Property
WCAD Parcels

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



rstover
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 8





Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

 
ORDINANCE NO # 

 
ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING TWO PARCELS OF LAND 
FROM INTERIM SFR-1-B (SINGLE-FAMILY RURAL) TO GC-2-A 
(GENERAL COMMERCIAL); MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND 
PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Zoning Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 05-018, as amended, the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and 
amended by rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability. This ordinance applies to the following tract of land, which is herein 
referred to as the “Property.”  That certain parcels of land being 53.985 acres, more or less, located 
at 10744 E Crystal Falls Pkwy and 7712 183A Toll, Williamson County, Texas, being more 
particularly described in Exhibit “A”, legally described as 53.985 acres out of the Walter Campbell 
Survey, Abstract 3; identified by Williamson County tax identification numbers R031201 and 
R080605; more particularly described in document number 2009000970 recorded in the 
Williamson County Official Public Records. 
 
Section 4.  Property Rezoned.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
district for the Property from Interim SFR-1-B (Single-Family Rural) to GC-2-A (General  
Commercial) as shown in Exhibit “A”.  
 
Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
  



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 5th day of November, 2015. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 19th day of November, 2015. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



WYLIE
MS

RIDGEWOODSOUTHPH 1

RIDGEWOODSOUTHPH 2

COLD SPRINGS,SEC 4

CRYSTAL SPRINGS

COLD SPRINGS,SEC 5RA
ID

ER
 W

AY

183A TOLL RD SB

183A TOLL RD NB

183A TOLL RD FR SB

183A TOLL RD FR NB

RA
ID

ER
 W

AY

E CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

RUTHERFORD DR

CHARDONNAY XING

YOUNTVILLE DR

SPUMANTI LN

183A TOLL RD

JO
RD

AN
 C

V

SO
LA

NO
 C

V

183A TOLL RD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-029

Exhibit A
Global Village

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction

Community
Center Node

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

GC-2-A







AGENDA ITEM # 25 

 

 

 

 

 

Executive Summary 

November 5, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Public Hearing on an application for a franchise for Austin 
Wood Recycling, Cedar Park, Texas to provide brush and mulch recycling services 
within the jurisdiction of the City of Leander. 
 
Background: On October 15, 2015, City Council was presented with a request from 
Austin Wood Recycling for a franchise to provide brush and mulch recycling services 
within the city limits and portions of the ETJ where applicable.  The City Charter requires 
published notice of a public hearing and two readings of any ordinance granting a 
franchise.  The public hearing has been advertised for this meeting and the second 
reading is scheduled for November 19, 2015.  A draft ordinance granting the franchise 
has been prepared and sets forth its terms and conditions. 
 
Origination: Robert G. Powers, Finance Director 
 
Financial Consideration: The franchise fee would be equal to 10% of gross receipts 
from the company’s disposal charges applied to its brush and mulch recycling services. 
 
Recommendation: Conduct Public Hearing 
 
Attachments: Please refer to ordinance provided under First Reading of the ordinance 
granting a franchise elsewhere on the agenda. 
 
Prepared by: Robert G. Powers, Finance Director 
 



AGENDA ITEM # 25 

 

 

 

 

 

Executive Summary 

November 5, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  An ordinance granting Austin Wood Recycling certain 
powers, licenses, privileges and franchise to operate a business to collect and haul brush, 
trees, and mulch within the city and designated area of the city’s ETJ for the purpose of 
recycling such materials; to use the streets, avenues, easements, rights-of-way, alleys, 
highways, sidewalks, and bridges in said city for a period of five (5) years; prescribing 
certain rights, duties, terms and conditions; providing for the payment to the City of a 
percentage of gross receipts of grantee from its operations; providing for acceptance; and 
providing for certain related matters. 
 
Background: On October 15, 2015, City Council was presented with a request from 
Austin Wood Recycling for a franchise to provide brush and mulch recycling services 
within the city limits and portions of the ETJ where applicable.  The City Charter requires 
published notice of a public hearing and two readings of any ordinance granting a 
franchise.  A draft ordinance granting the franchise has been prepared and sets forth its 
terms and conditions. 
 
Origination: Robert G. Powers, Finance Director 
 
Financial Consideration: The franchise fee would be equal to 10% of gross receipts 
from the company’s charges applied to its brush and mulch recycling services. 
 
Recommendation: Approval of First Reading 
 
Attachments: Draft Ordinance 
 
Prepared by: Robert G. Powers, Finance Director 
 



ORDINANCE NO.         
 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, GRANTING 

AUSTIN WOOD RECYCLING CERTAIN POWERS, LICENSES, 
PRIVILEGES AND FRANCHISE TO OPERATE A BUSINESS TO 
COLLECT AND HAUL BRUSH, TREES, AND MULCH WITHIN THE 
CITY AND DESIGNATED AREA OF THE CITY’S ETJ FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF RECYCLING SUCH MATERIALS; TO USE THE 
STREETS, AVENUES, EASEMENTS, RIGHTS-OF-WAY, ALLEYS, 
HIGHWAYS, SIDEWALKS, AND BRIDGES IN SAID CITY FOR A 
PERIOD OF FIVE (5) YEARS; PRESCRIBING CERTAIN RIGHTS, 
DUTIES, TERMS AND CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR THE 
PAYMENT TO THE CITY OF A PERCENTAGE OF GROSS RECEIPTS 
OF GRANTEE FROM ITS OPERATIONS; PROVIDING FOR 
ACCEPTANCE; AND PROVIDING FOR CERTAIN RELATED 
MATTERS. 

 
 WHEREAS, S & M Businesses, Inc. d/b/a Austin Wood Recycling (the "Company") 
collects and hauls brush, trees, and mulch within the City of Leander (the "City") and its 
extraterritorial jurisdiction (the “ ETJ” ) for the purpose of recycling said materials; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council believes it is in the best interest of the City to offer the 
Company a franchise on the terms and conditions set forth in this ordinance;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Definitions. 
 
 1.0  For the purposes of this ordinance, when not inconsistent with the context, words, 
used in the present tense include the future tense, words in the plural include the singular, and 
words in the singular include the plural, and the use of any gender shall be applicable to all 
genders whenever the sense requires.  The words "shall"  and "will"  are mandatory and the word 
"may" is permissive.  Words not defined in this Section 1 shall be given their common and 
ordinary meaning. 
 
 1.1  For the purposes of this ordinance, the following words, terms, phrases and their 
derivations shall have the meaning given in this Section 1.1, whether such terms appear in 
capitalized or lowercase text in this Franchise. 
 
 1.1.2  "City" shall mean the City of Leander Texas, a home rule municipal corporation 

in the State of Texas. 
 

 

 
 
 1 



 1.1.3  "Company" shall mean S & M Businesses, Inc. d/b/a Austin Wood Recycling its 
legal representatives, successors, lessees and assigns. 

 
 1.1.4  "City Secretary" shall mean the City Secretary/City Clerk of the City. 
 
 1.1.5  "Consumer" or "Customer" shall mean any person or organization within the City 

limits of the City or within the Designated Areas of the ETJ that contracts with the 
Company for recycling collection and disposal services. 

 
 1.1.6  "Council"  shall mean the governing body of the City. 
 
 1.1.7  “ Designated Areas of the ETJ”  shall mean those subdivisions within which the 

City holds an easement over the streets and/or contracts with a municipal utility district to 
regulate and enter franchise agreements with service providers such as the Company. The 
City will maintain with the Company a list of said subdivisions. 

 
 1.1.8 “ ETJ”  shall mean the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City. 
 
 1.1.9 "Franchise" shall mean this Ordinance, and all rights and obligations established 

herein to provide Recycling Services or as it may be amended. 
 
 1.1.10  "Gross receipts" shall mean the total amount collected by Company from any and 

all customers for recycling collection and services within the boundaries of the City. 
 
 1.1.11 “ Recyclable Material”  shall mean brush, trees, and mulch. 
 
 1.1.12 “ Recycle”  or “ Recycling”  means any process or portion thereof by which the 

Recyclable Materials which would otherwise become solid waste are separated, collected 
and processed for reuse or returned to use or to market in the form of raw materials or 
products. 

 
 1.1.13  “ Recycling Facilities”  shall mean the facilities owned by Company, at which 

Company will recycle the Recyclable Material, located at:  3875 E. Whitestone 
Boulevard, Cedar Park, Texas, and 9201 FM 812, Austin, Texas. 

 
 1.1.14  “ AWR Construction Projects”  shall mean on-site construction projects performed 

by the Company that includes the clearing, grinding, and hauling of trees and brush that 
may result in the production of Recyclable Material.  The City agrees and acknowledges 
that the Company does not charge or collect from customers a fee for the hauling of 
Recyclable Materials from AWR Construction Projects. 

 
 1.1.15  “ Recycling Services”  shall mean the collection and hauling of the Recyclable 

Material for recycling at one of the Company’s Recycling Facilities, and the actions and 

 

 
 
 2 



services directly related thereto or necessary for the provision of such services to the 
Customers in the City and the Designated Areas of the City’s ETJ as applicable.  
“ Recycling Services”  shall include the hauling of Recyclable Materials from AWR 
Construction Projects but shall not include other aspects of the AWR Construction 
Projects, such as the clearing and grinding of trees and brush that may result in the 
production of Recyclable Material.   

 
 1.1.16  "Street" or "alley" shall mean a publicly dedicated or maintained right-of-way, a 

portion of which is open to use by the public or vehicular travel, or those private streets 
over which the City holds an easement authorizing access by service providers such as 
the Company and collection of franchise fees. 

 
 1.1.17  “ TCEQ”  shall mean the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality or 

successor agency. 
 
Section 2.  Grant of Franchise. 
 
 2.1  There is hereby granted to Company a non-exclusive franchise to maintain, establish 
and operate in the City, as constituted as of the effective date of this ordinance, or as may 
hereafter be constituted, Recycling Services as appropriate to sell, serve, supply and furnish the 
customers, and to the City, whenever the City may desire to contract therefor, Recycling 
Services and said Company is hereby granted passage and right-of-way in, along, over and 
across the streets, avenues, easements, right-of-way, alleys, highways, sidewalks, bridges and 
other transportation structures of the City, and the right to use in any lawful way during the term 
of this Franchise said streets, avenues, easements, right-of-way, alleys, highways, sidewalks, 
bridges and other transportation structures of the City, as they now or hereafter may exist, for 
the purpose of operating vehicles for the purpose of providing the Recycling Services as herein 
mentioned; provided that all such work, activity and undertakings by the Company shall be 
subject to the terms and provisions of this Franchise and the continuing exercise by the City of 
its governmental and police powers; and provided further that nothing herein shall be construed 
to require or authorize Company to exceed any rights granted herein or by state or federal law. 
 
 2.2  Company acknowledges and understands that the City contracts exclusively with 
another company to collect and dispose of solid waste.  Company agrees and warrants that 
Company will collect and haul Recyclable Materials only and will recycle 100% of Recyclable 
Materials that Company collects and hauls.   All Recyclable Material will be hauled to a 
Recycling Facility. 
 
 2.3  The maintenance, and operation of the Recycling Services and property of Company 
within the City shall be subject to this Franchise and the ordinances and regulations adopted by 
the Council in the exercise of the City' s police and regulatory powers. 
 

 

 
 
 3 



 2.4  The term of this Franchise shall be for a period of five (5) years from the date this 
Ordinance is finally adopted by the Council upon acceptance by Company as herein provided. 
 
 2.5  The Company shall not transfer this Franchise nor any rights and privileges granted 
herein without the written approval of the Council expressed by Ordinance.  Such approval shall 
not be unreasonably withheld. 
 
 2.5  Nothing contained in this Franchise shall be construed as granting any exclusive 
franchise or right. 
 
Section 3.  Use of Streets and Easements.  The Company is hereby authorized, licensed and 
empowered to do any and all things necessary and proper to be done and performed in executing 
the powers and utilizing the privileges herein mentioned and granted by this Franchise, provided 
the same do not conflict with traffic codes and ordinances, with existing sewers, electric power 
lines, telephone lines, cable television lines and other authorized installations, and provided that 
all work done in said streets, avenues, easements, rights-of-way, alleys, highways, sidewalks, 
bridges and other structures and places and public grounds by the Company shall be limited to 
the collection, hauling, and recycling of the Recyclable Material with reasonable diligence and 
without unnecessary inconvenience to the public or individuals.  
 
Section 4.  Service to be Provided by Company. 
 
 4.1  Service may be provided by means of hauling, collection and travel in the streets, 
alleys, easements, and other public rights-of-way.  The Company shall not place its equipment 
and appurtenances where the same will obstruct or interfere with motor vehicle traffic, or any 
existing television cable, electric, drainage, sewer or telephone facilities, traffic control 
signalization, street lights, fire lines or communications lines, be unsightly, or constitute a 
nuisance.  The Council may require the relocation or screening of any containers or bins.   
 
 4.2  Containers shall not be located in or on any public or City property, easements, or 
rights-of-way; provided that Company may request a waiver of this Section 4.2 on a case-by-case 
basis by submitting a waiver request to the City Secretary. 
 
 4.3  The Company shall furnish service consistent with the requirements and intent of this 
Franchise and its "service regulations" as now or hereafter adopted by the Company; provided 
the Company shall be subject to the police powers and regulations of the City. 
 
 4.4  The Company's trucks, equipment and appurtenances shall be used and operated so 
that none of such shall unreasonably endanger the lives of persons, unreasonably interfere with 
any public improvements the City may deem proper to make, be unsightly or constitute a 
nuisance, or obstruct the free use of the streets, alleys, bridges, easements or public property. 
 

 

 
 
 4 



 4.5  The Company shall inspect each container and remove any material other than 
Recyclable Material prior to hauling the container from a site.  Any material removed from a 
container shall be placed in an appropriate trash receptacle, or left on site.  In the event the 
Company fails to comply with this Section, the Company shall pay a fee of $200.00 for each 
occurrence and shall include this fee in the first quarterly franchise fee payment following the 
date of the occurrence. 
 
 4.6  All Recyclable Material hauled by the Company shall be so contained, tied or 
enclosed that spilling or blowing are minimized. 
 
 4.7  The Company shall maintain an office or such other facilities through which it can 
be contacted and shall maintain a current contact with the City.   
 
 4.8  All complaints shall be made directly to the Company and shall be given prompt 
and courteous attention.  In the case of alleged collection and/or hauling of materials other 
than Recyclable Materials, the Company shall investigate and, if such allegations are verified, 
shall pay the $200 fee per occurrence required by this Ordinance. The Company shall keep 
and maintain a record of all complaints received during the Term and any extended Term of 
this Contract. 
 
 4.9  The Company shall conduct operations under this contract in compliance with all  
applicable local, state and federal laws, rule, regulations and ordinances, including 
specifically, but not limited to the City’s tree protection and removal regulations.  The 
Company shall perform all services under this Franchise with qualified personnel.   
 
 4.10  The Company shall promptly repair any damage to City or public property 
caused by Company’s activities under this Franchise at Company’s expense. 
 
Section 5.  Company Rules and Regulations. 
 
 5.1  The Company's rates, rules and regulations shall be and remain in effect as adopted 
and amended from time to time; provided that should such conflict with an ordinance of the City, 
the requirements of the ordinance shall govern.  Nothing in this Agreement shall impair the 
Company’s right or ability to increase or decrease the rates charged to customers for Recycling 
Services, which will be made at its sole discretion.  
 
 5.2  Company shall be entitled to require from each and every customer to make such 
deposits and payments as required by the Company, and to comply with the rules and regulations 
adopted by the Company. 
 
Section 6.  Franchise Fees; Reports. 
 

 

 
 
 5 



 6.1  The streets, rights-of-way, and public easements to be used by the Company in the 
operation of its system within the boundaries of the City as such boundaries exist as of the 
effective date of this ordinance, are valuable public properties acquired and maintained by the 
City at great expense to its taxpayers, without which the Company would be required to invest in 
right-of-way costs and acquisitions, and the City will incur costs in regulating and administering 
this Franchise in such public ways and in the Designated Areas of the ETJ; therefore, the 
Company shall through the term of this Franchise pay to the City ten percent (10%) of the 
Company's total gross receipts arising from Recycling Services (exclusive of Texas Limited 
Sales Tax) each calendar quarter collected from customers and consumers within the corporate 
limits of the City under the Company's rates effective from time to time.  Franchise fees shall be 
due on May 15, August 15, November 15, and February 15 for the preceding calendar quarters 
of March 31, June 30, September 30, and December 31, respectively.   
 
 6.2  Each franchise fee payment shall be accompanied by a report of all accounts served 
during the quarter for which the franchise fee is paid.  The report shall include: (a) the account 
information for each customer (including customer name and location of service provided); (b) 
records of the disposal of each container at a Recycling Facility; and (c) any reports filed with 
TCEQ in the prior quarter in relation to recycling the Recyclable Materials.  The Company shall 
maintain records regarding the gross revenues collected under this Franchise and disposal of the 
Recyclable Material for period of at least twenty-four (24) months and shall make such records 
available to the City for copying and inspection during normal business hours upon request by 
the City. 
 
 6.3  The franchise fee shall be in lieu of any and all other city imposed rentals or 
compensation or franchise, license, privilege, instrument, occupation, excise or revenue taxes or 
fees and all other exactions or charges (except as and when applicable ad valorem property taxes, 
special assessments for local improvements, city sales tax, and such other charges imposed 
uniformly upon persons, firms or corporations then engaged in business within the City) or 
permits upon or relating to the business, revenue, equipment and all other property of the 
Company and its activities, or any part thereof, in the City which relate to the operations of the 
Company's Recycling Services. 
 
 6.4  Should the City not have the legal power to agree that the payment of the foregoing 
sums of money shall be in lieu of licenses, fees, street or alley rentals or charges, easement or 
franchise taxes or charges aforesaid, then City agrees that it will apply so much of said sums of 
money paid as may be necessary to satisfy Company's obligations, if any, to pay any such 
licenses, charges, fees, rentals, easement or franchise taxes or charges. 
 
Section 7.  Insurance Provided by Company.  The Company shall maintain throughout the 
term of the Franchise property damage coverage, general liability insurance, automobile liability 
insurance, and worker compensation insurance, with an insurance company, or companies, 
licensed to do business in the State of Texas insuring against claims for liability and damages.   
 

 

 
 
 6 



Section 8.  Indemnification and Hold Harmless.  The Company agrees to indemnify, defend, 
and save harmless the city, its agents officers and employees, against and from any and all claims 
by or on behalf of any person, firm, corporation or other entity, arising from the Company's 
operations and business, or arising from any act of negligence of the Company, or any of its 
agents, contractors, servants, employees or licensees, and from and against all costs, counsel 
fees, expenses and liabilities incurred in or about any such claim or proceeding brought thereon, 
and from any and all claims arising from any breach or default on the part of the Company in the 
performance of any covenant or agreement on the part of the Company to be performed pursuant 
to the terms of this Franchise.  The City shall promptly notify the Company of any claim or 
cause of action which may be asserted against the City relating to or covering any matter against 
which the Company has agreed, as set forth above, to indemnify, defend and save harmless the 
City.  The Company reserves the right, but not the obligation, to employ such attorneys, expert 
witnesses and consultants as it deems necessary to defend against the claim or cause of action.  
The Company may be granted the right to take, in the event the Company and the City are Co-
Defendants in a suit, total or partial lead responsibility for the defense of any claim or cause of 
action.  It is understood that it is not the intention of either the City or the Company to create 
any liability, right, or claim for the benefit of third parties and this Franchise is intended and 
shall be construed for the sole benefit of the City and the Company. 
 
Section 9.  Suspension of Franchise.  After notice to the Company and a hearing, the City 
Manager shall have the right to suspend this Franchise in the event that the Company violates 
Section 2.2 three times.  Reinstatement of the Franchise shall require City Council approval.  
 
Section 10.  Term of Franchise.  Subject to any early termination in accordance with the 
provisions hereof, the original term of this Franchise will extend for five (5) years from the 
effective date (the “ Original Term” ) and will automatically renew for a second five (5) year 
term unless either party gives written notice to the other party at least sixty (60) days prior to 
the expiration of the Original Term that this Franchise will expire and terminate at the end of 
the Original Term. 
 
Section 10.  Termination.  The City shall have the right and option to terminate this 
Franchise, after notice to Company and hearing, for breach of this Franchise or for failure to 
comply with this Franchise; provided that Company shall be given a thirty (30) day period 
after the hearing in which to cure such breach.  In the event a period for curing such breach is 
provided, a second hearing shall be held at the expiration of the cure period and this Franchise 
shall not be terminated if it is found that the breach has been cured and resolved during such 
cure period.  In the event the City Council finds, after notice and hearing held at anytime after 
any previous opportunity to cure, that Company has breached this Franchise, the City Council 
may terminate this Contract.  The Company shall have the right to terminate this Franchise 
upon sixty (60) days’  written notice to the City and after termination of the Franchise shall 
refrain from providing the Recycling Services within the city unless granted a franchise or 
permit from the City in accordance with the City Charter and other applicable procedures in 
effect at the time. 

 

 
 
 7 



 
Section 11.  Acceptance of Franchise by Company. This Franchise shall not become effective 
until accepted by the Company executing the written acceptance provided at the end of this 
franchise ordinance, prior to or within thirty (30) days from the final adoption of this ordinance, 
and filing such properly executed acceptance with the City Secretary.  When adopted by the City 
and accepted by the Company in conformance with this section, this Franchise shall be a duly 
executed contract by and between the City and the Company. 
 
Section 12.  Notice.  Any notice or other communication given under this Franchise must be in 
writing and may be given: (i) by depositing it in the United States mail, certified, with return 
receipt requested, addressed to the Party to be notified and with all charges prepaid; or (ii) by 
depositing it with Federal Express or another service guaranteeing “ next day delivery” , 
addressed to the party to be notified and with all charges prepaid; (iii) by personally delivering it 
to the Party, or any agent of the Party listed in this Agreement; or (iv) by electronic mail or 
facsimile with confirming copy sent by one of the other described methods of notice set forth 
above.  Notice by United States mail will be effective on the earlier of the date of receipt or three 
days after the date of mailing.  Notice given in any other manner will be effective only when 
received.  For purposes of notice, the addresses of the Parties will, until changed as provided 
below, be as follows: 
 

City:   City of Leander 
Attn: City Manager 
 

By personal delivery: 200 West Willis Street  
Leander, TX 78641 
 

By mail:   P.O. Box 319 
Leander, TX 78641 

 
With a copy to: Paige Saenz 

City Attorney  
Executive Office Terrace 
223 West Anderson Lane, Suite A-105 
Austin, Texas 78752 

 
Company:   

 
With a copy to:  
 

The Parties may change their respective addresses to any other address within the United States 
of America by giving at least five (5) days’  written notice to the other Parties.  The Company 
may, by giving at least five (5) days’  written notice to Leander, designate additional parties to 
receive copies of notices under this Agreement.  

 

 
 
 8 



 
Section 13.  Transfer, Sale or Conveyance by Company.  The Company shall not transfer, 
sale or convey this Franchise without the prior written approval of the Council for the transfer of 
this Franchise, expressed by ordinance. 
 
Section 14.  Severability.  If any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, part or provision 
hereof shall be adjudged invalid or unconstitutional the same shall not affect the validity hereof 
as a whole or any part or provision other than the part or parts held invalid or unconstitutional.  
 
Section 15.  Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance was passed was open to the public, and public notice of the time, place and 
purpose of said meeting was given, as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551, Texas 
Government Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on this the ____ day of ___________________ ____. 
 
       CITY OF LEANDER 
Attest: 
       ___________________________________ 
____________________________   Christopher Fielder, Mayor 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 
 ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO effective as of the date passed and approved by the 
City Council of the City of Leander. 
 
      S & M Businesses, Inc. a Texas corporation d/b/a  
      Austin Wood Recycling, a Texas corpoa 
 
      ______________________________________ 
      Name:__________________________ 
      Title:_________________________  

15005361v.2 

 

 
 
 9 



AGENDA ITEM # 26 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 
November 5, 2015 

 

Subject: Consider Approval of Revisions to Park Rules & Regulations 
 
Background:  Leander Park Rules & Regulations are established by Ordinance. On 
October 5, 2015 the Parks & Recreation Advisory Board unanimously recommended 
forwarding the following changes to the establishment of park hours to the City Council for 
consideration. 
 
Hours of Operation & Park Curfew Hours 

• Propose to open parks an hour earlier at 5 am instead of 6 am to accommodate fishing 
at Devine Lake and Lakewood Parks, and morning exercise groups. 

• Propose to give the Parks & Recreation Director authority to extend park hours to 
accommodate City programs, when needed.  Examples of when this authority would be 
needed are for the Bluegrass Festival and for sporting activities when games don’t finish 
on time.  Currently, park rules require Council approval for any deviance from the park 
hours established by ordinance.  Private activities would still require a special permit and 
Council approval.  
  

Prohibited Activities in City Parks 
• Propose to add back the prohibition for lighting, building or maintaining fires except in 

designated grills, fire rings or approved BBQ grills. This prohibition was mistakenly 
deleted when the rules and regulations were amended previously. 

 
Financial Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: Staff respectfully recommends Council approval of the proposed revisions 
to Ordinance No. 12-060-00 – Park Rules & Regulations. 
 
Attachments: Revised Ordinance No. 12-060-00; Redlined Ordinance noting changes 
 
Prepared by: Stephen Bosak, Parks & Recreation Director 
 

 

 



REVISIONS TO ORDINANCE NO. 12-060-00 
PARK RULES & REGULATIONS 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING ARTICLE 1, SECTION 
1.400 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, REGARDING PARKS AND RECREATION; 
ESTABLISHEING THE PARKS & RECREATION DEPARTMENT; MAKING FINDINGS OF 
FACT; PROVIDING SEVERABILITY, EFFECTIVE DATE, AND OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSES; 
AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 1.400 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Leander (the “City”), regarding 
parks and recreation, should be amended and updated to meet the City’s current needs; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is reasonable and necessary to regulate activities 
within the City's parks through the permitting process set forth in this ordinance to prevent 
damage to the parks, to avoid overlap of and conflict between scheduled events, and to 
maintain a safe and enjoyable environment for visitors; 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings of Fact.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and 
are hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Article 1.400.  Article 1.400, Leander Code of Ordinances, is hereby 
amended to read as set forth in the attachment hereto entitled “Article 1.400 Park Regulations”, 
attached hereto and incorporated in this ordinance as though fully transcribed herein for all 
purposes.  Language that is stricken through in the attachment shall be deleted from Article 1.400 
and underlined language shall be added to Article 1.400 as indicated in the attachment.  All prior 
ordinances of the City dealing with or applicable to parks and recreation fees are hereby amended 
to the extent of any conflict herewith, and all ordinances or parts thereof conflicting or inconsistent 
with the provisions of this ordinance as adopted and amended herein, are hereby amended to the 
extent of such conflict.  In the event of a conflict or inconsistency between this ordinance and any 
other code or ordinance of the City, the terms and provisions of this ordinance shall govern. 
 
Section 3.  Savings Clause. All rights and remedies of the City of Leander are expressly saved as 
to any and all violations of the provisions of any ordinances affecting use of parks and recreational 
facilities within the City which have accrued at the time of the effective date of this ordinance; and, 
as to such accrued violations and all pending litigation, both civil and criminal, whether pending in 
court or not, under such ordinances, same shall not be affected by this ordinance but may be 
prosecuted until final disposition by the courts. 
 
Section 4.  Penalty Clause.  Any person who shall violate any of the provisions of this Ordinance, 
or shall fail to comply therewith, or with any of the requirements thereof, within the City limits shall 
be deemed guilty of an offense and shall be liable for a fine not to exceed the sum of five hundred 
dollars ($500.00).  Each day the violation exists shall constitute a separate offense. Such penalty 
shall be in addition to all the other remedies provided herein. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its 
passage. 
 



Section 6.  Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551, 
Texas Gov't. Code. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 5th day of November 2015     
 
 
CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 
 
 
______________________________    
Christopher Fielder, Mayor  
 
 
 
ATTEST 
  
 
______________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ARTICLE 1.400 – PARK REGULATIONS  
 

Division 1: General Provisions 
  

Sec. 1.401 Definitions 
The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the 
meaning ascribed to them below, except where the context clearly indicates a different 
meaning. 
 
Amplified Sound:  Any sound projected or transmitted by artificial means, including, but 
not limited to amplifiers, loudspeakers and any similar devises. 
 
Department or PARD: The Department of Parks & Recreation. 
 
Director: The Director of the Department of Parks & Recreation. 
 
In-Line Skate: A shoe or boot having a set of wheels aligned in a straight line fixed to the 
sole of the shoe or boot enabling the wearer to glide over any flat surface. 
 
Metal Detector or Metal Detecting Device: A device that fives an audible or visual signal 
when its search head comes close to an embedded metallic object. 
 
Mason Homestead: City owned property and buildings located at 1101 South Bagdad 
Road in Leander, Williamson County, Texas. 
 
Park: Any land selected, obtained or acquired by the city for use as a public park, 
recreation or playground area, and any building, structure, of facility thereon, owned and 
maintained by the city as a public park recreation or playground area, whether or not 
such land and buildings have been formally dedicated, except for the city golf course. 
 
Park Curfew Hours: 10:01 pm until 4:59 am daily 
 
Skateboard: A short, narrow board mounted on wheels. 
 
Skate Park: A park specifically designed and constructed for the purpose of recreational 
skateboarding and in-line skating. 
 
Sec. 1.402 Establishment of Parks & Recreation Department 
(a) The Leander Parks & Recreation Department is hereby established in the city of 

Leander Texas 
 

(b) The city manager shall appoint a director who shall be responsible for the 
management and administration of the department.  The director shall work at the 
pleasure of the city manager.  The department may appoint and employ personnel 
as authorized in the annual budget of the city. 

 
Sec. 1.403 Duties & Interpretive Powers of the Director 
(a) The director shall be responsible for the management, administration and directing 

the activities of the department.  The director shall oversee the operation and 
maintenance of all city parks, facilities on city parks and equipment used in city 



parks.  The director shall annually evaluate the department and all its employees and 
submit such evaluations to the city manager. 

(b) The director shall have the power to interpret this article as necessary for 
administrative procedure and implementation; provided that this article shall not be 
construed, applied, interpreted, nor enforced in a manner to violate the first 
amendment rights of any person, and the director shall seek the advice and 
recommendation of the city attorney prior to taking any action to enforce any 
provision of this article with respect to any con-commercial speech or assembly by 
any person. 

(c) Any city park, section, or part thereof, may be declared temporarily closed to the 
public by the director. 

 
Sec. 1.404 Permit Required for Certain Activities 
A permit is required to conduct any of the following city park activities.  Permits are not 
transferable to other persons or organizations and city sponsored activities are exempt 
from permit requirements. 
(a) An exhibit, dramatic performance, play motion picture, radio or television broadcast, 

fair, circus, petting zoo, musical event, or similar event; 
(b) A public meeting, assembly, parade, ceremony address speech, political meeting or 

other gathering involving one hundred (100) or more persons; 
(c) An activity using amplified sound; 
(d) To sell, offer or solicit goods or merchandise, or to offer services for monetary gain; 
(e) To post or affix any printed or written matter, sample or devise upon park property; 
(f) To distribute printed or written matter that advertises or provides information about a 

business, commodity, service, product or other commercial activity; and 
(g) Sale of alcohol is subject to City Council approval and compliance with Texas 

Alcoholic Beverage Commission requirements. 
 

Sec. 1.405 Permit Applications 
(a) Any person or organization seeking a permit shall make application to the director 

that includes the following information: 
a. The name, address email address and telephone number of applicant’ 
b. The exact nature of the use or activity for which the permit is sought;  
c. The day and hours for which the permit is sought; 
d. The park or portion of the park desired to be used to carry out the proposed 

activity; 
e. An estimate of the anticipated attendance; and  
f. Other information deemed pertinent by the director. 

(b) Applications shall be filed with the director for consideration no less than seven (7) 
working days before the date of the proposed use or activity. 

 
Section 4.06 Permit Issuance 
(a) A permit shall be issued unless: 

a. The proposed activity will unreasonably interfere with or detract from the 
public health, safety or welfare; 



b. The applicant has damaged park property on a prior occasion and has not 
paid for the damage; 

c. The conduct of the proposed activity or use is reasonably likely to result in or 
create a clear and present danger resulting in harm to the public or damage 
to the property; 

d. The park or park facilities desired have already been reserved for another 
activity on the day and at the time  requested in the application; 

e.  False or misleading information is contained in the application or required 
information is omitted; 

f. The applicant has violated the terms of a prior permit issued under this 
article; or 

g. The event would violate any federal, state or municipal law. 
(b) The director may impose reasonable conditions on the granting of a permit, including 

but not limited to the following: 
a. Place restrictions on fires, fireworks, amplified sound, sports, use of animals, 

equipment or vehicles, the number of persons to be present; the location of 
any bandstand or stage, or any other restriction that would reduce the 
likelihood of harm to persons or property; 

b. Require the applicant to post a reasonable deposit of security for the repair of 
any damage to park property, the cost of cleanup, or both, which shall be 
returned if the users do not damage park property, leave the facility in a litter 
free condition and return equipment; 

c. Require the applicant pay a reasonable fee to defray the cost of furnishing 
government funded security forces or special services; 

d. Require the applicant to furnish additional sanitary and refuse facilities that 
may be necessary for the activity; 

e. Require the permit to be in the possession of the applicant during the activity; 
f. Require the applicant’s signature on a release approved by the city 

acknowledging that the city is held harmless from any damages to persons or 
property arising out of the permitted activity; and 

 
Sec. 1.407 Director’s Action on Permit Applications; Appeal 
Within seven (7) working days after submission of a complete permit application the 
director shall apprise the applicant in writing of the director’s issuance or declination to 
issue the requested permit.  If the director declines to issue the requested permit the 
director shall list the reasons for such declination.  If the director attaches conditions to 
the issuance of a permit the director shall list such conditions.  Any aggrieved person 
may appeal the director’s decision within seven (7) working days by means of a written 
appeal to the city manager.  The city manager shall consider the appeal and sustain or 
overrule the director’s decision within seven (7) working days.  The city manager’s 
decision will be final. 
 
Sec. 1.408 Permittee Bound by Park Rules; Permit Revocation 
(a) A permittee is bound by all park rules, regulations and applicable city ordinances; 



(b) The person to whom a permit is issued shall be liable for any loss, damage or injury 
to any person or property whatever by reason of the negligence of the person to 
whom such permit was issued 

(c) The director shall have the authority to revoke a permit upon a finding of violation of 
any rule, ordinance, state or federal law, or upon the violation of any condition or 
restriction under which the permit was issued.  The revocation of a permit is 
appealable to the city manager by means of a written appeal within seven (7) days of 
the revocation.  The city manager shall consider the appeal and sustain or overrule 
the director’s revocation within seven (7) days of the receipt of the written appeal.  
The city manager’s decision will be final. 

 
Sec. 1.409  Facility Reservations & Rentals 
(a) City parks and facilities may be reserved for special activities or events.  Rental fees 

are established by the city council and reservations may be obtained by contacting 
PARD.  Reservations will not be confirmed until the applicant completes the 
application process and applicable rental fees and security deposits are received. 

(b) Refundable deposits shall be returned within fifteen (15) working days after the 
reservation date if there has been no damage to the facilities other than normal wear 
and tear.  If any damages beyond normal wear and tear have occurred, the amount 
of those damages will be deducted from such deposit.  If any damages are to be 
deducted, the city shall notify the depositor in writing concerning such damages and 
the associated costs.  If the amount of the damages exceeds the deposit amount the 
city shall notify the depositor, who shall be liable to the city for the excess and shall 
pay the balance due to the city within thirty (30) days of the date of such notice. 

 
Sec. 1.410 – 1.430 Reserved 
 

Division 2: Park Rules & Regulations 
 
Sec. 1.431 General Provisions 
(a) No person shall interfere with, annoy or disturb others in the use of a park.  Any 

person creating such interference, annoyance or disturbance is subject to ejection 
from the park. 

(b) All park facilities shall be available on a first-come, first-served basis to the general 
public except when such facilities are reserved. 

(c) The city council shall establish fees for the use of park facilities. 
 

Sec. 1.432 Prohibited Activities in City Parks 
No person shall do or cause to be done any of the following in a city park: 
(a) Use of possess glass containers; 
(b) Deface, displace, damage or remove park property; 
(c) Collect firewood; 
(d) Drill or min on city–owned property; 
(e) Indecent acts, cursing or swearing; 
(f) Possess or discharge a gun, bow and arrow, air or gas weapon, paintball gun or 

marker, or any instrument with a propelling force, spring, air or gas;  



(g) Operate or use any type of motor vehicle, motor assisted scooter or skateboard, 
including, but not limited to motorcycles, motorbikes and minibikes on any trail, 
sidewalk or park area not dedicated for such use.  This section does not apply to the 
operation of vehicles used by the city or city contractors; 

(h) Hit golf balls except in areas designated for that purpose; 
(i) Dump or dispose of trash, garbage, brush or waste except that which is generated by 

park visitors; 
(j) Overnight camping; 
(k) Ride any animal except in areas designated for that purpose; 
(l) Walk or bring any animal into a park without a leash except in a designated leash-

free area; 
(m) Fail to pick up and properly dispose of pet waste deposited by their pet; 
(n) Wade or swim in areas other than swimming pools or waterplayscapes except in 

areas designated for those purposes; 
(o) Ride or use bicycles or other wheeled vehicles in skate parks, or install, place or use 

obstacles or other modifications in skate parks;  
(p) Use of a metal detector or metal detecting devise. 
(q) Lighting, building or maintaining fires except in designated grills, fire rings or 

approved BBQ grills. 
 

Sec. 1.434 Prohibited Activities at the Mason Homestead 
(a) Smoking, tobacco use or pets inside the house 
(b) Use of nails, staple guns or tacks to hang decorations 
(c) Fires and flame burning candles  

 
Sec. 1.435 Reserved 
 
Sec. 1.436 Hours of Operation 
(a) City parks shall be open to the public from  5:00 am to 10:00 pm daily. 
(b) The Mason Homestead shall be available for rentals from 8:00 a.m. to midnight daily. 
(c) The Director has the authority to extend park hours for City programs. 

  
Sec. 1.437 Reserved 
 
Sec. 1.438 Protection of Wild Animals 
(a) No person shall capture, attempt to capture, hunt, molest, injure, trap, administer or 

set out any trap or harmful substance for any wild or domestic animal, reptile, bird or 
fish, nor remove or have in their possession the young, eggs or next of any animal, 
reptile or bird. 

(b) Fishing activities must comply with the current federal, state and local guidelines and 
allowable only in designated fishing areas. 

 
Sec. 1.439 – 1.441 Reserved 
 
Sec. 1.442 Swimming Pools & Water Playscapes 



(a) No child under twelve (12) years of age shall be permitted in a city swimming pool 
unless accompanied by an adult, except when such child is taking swim lessons from 
a proven competent person authorized by the city. 

(b) Children under seven (7) years of age using a water playscape must be 
accompanied by a parent or a competent person authorized by the parent and 
responsible for the safety and conduct of the child. 

 
Sec. 1.443 – 1.449 Reserved 
 
Sec. 1.450 Fees Established 
The city council hereby establishes fees as provided for in the fee schedule found in the 
appendix of this code for the use of city-owned parks and recreational facilities and the 
improvements thereon. 
 
 
 
 
Amended October 4, 2007, June 10, 2010, July 5, 2012, November 29, 2012, November 
5, 2015 

 
 



REVISIONS TO ORDINANCE NO. 12-060-00 
PARK RULES & REGULATIONS 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING ARTICLE 1, SECTION 
1.400 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, REGARDING PARKS AND RECREATION; 
ESTABLISHEING THE PARKS & RECREATION DEPARTMENT; MAKING FINDINGS OF 
FACT; PROVIDING SEVERABILITY, EFFECTIVE DATE, AND OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSES; 
AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 1.400 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Leander (the “City”), regarding 
parks and recreation, should be amended and updated to meet the City’s current needs; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is reasonable and necessary to regulate activities 
within the City's parks through the permitting process set forth in this ordinance to prevent 
damage to the parks, to avoid overlap of and conflict between scheduled events, and to 
maintain a safe and enjoyable environment for visitors; 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings of Fact.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and 
are hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Article 1.400.  Article 1.400, Leander Code of Ordinances, is hereby 
amended to read as set forth in the attachment hereto entitled “Article 1.400 Park Regulations”, 
attached hereto and incorporated in this ordinance as though fully transcribed herein for all 
purposes.  Language that is stricken through in the attachment shall be deleted from Article 1.400 
and underlined language shall be added to Article 1.400 as indicated in the attachment.  All prior 
ordinances of the City dealing with or applicable to parks and recreation fees are hereby amended 
to the extent of any conflict herewith, and all ordinances or parts thereof conflicting or inconsistent 
with the provisions of this ordinance as adopted and amended herein, are hereby amended to the 
extent of such conflict.  In the event of a conflict or inconsistency between this ordinance and any 
other code or ordinance of the City, the terms and provisions of this ordinance shall govern. 
 
Section 3.  Savings Clause. All rights and remedies of the City of Leander are expressly saved as 
to any and all violations of the provisions of any ordinances affecting use of parks and recreational 
facilities within the City which have accrued at the time of the effective date of this ordinance; and, 
as to such accrued violations and all pending litigation, both civil and criminal, whether pending in 
court or not, under such ordinances, same shall not be affected by this ordinance but may be 
prosecuted until final disposition by the courts. 
 
Section 4.  Penalty Clause.  Any person who shall violate any of the provisions of this Ordinance, 
or shall fail to comply therewith, or with any of the requirements thereof, within the City limits shall 
be deemed guilty of an offense and shall be liable for a fine not to exceed the sum of five hundred 
dollars ($500.00).  Each day the violation exists shall constitute a separate offense. Such penalty 
shall be in addition to all the other remedies provided herein. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its 
passage. 
 



Section 6.  Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551, 
Texas Gov't. Code. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 5th day of November 2015     
 
 
CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 
 
 
______________________________    
Christopher Fielder, Mayor  
 
 
 
ATTEST 
  
 
______________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ARTICLE 1.400 – PARK REGULATIONS  
 

Division 1: General Provisions 
  

Sec. 1.401 Definitions 
The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the 
meaning ascribed to them below, except where the context clearly indicates a different 
meaning. 
 
Amplified Sound:  Any sound projected or transmitted by artificial means, including, but 
not limited to amplifiers, loudspeakers and any similar devises. 
 
Department or PARD: The Department of Parks & Recreation. 
 
Director: The Director of the Department of Parks & Recreation. 
 
In-Line Skate: A shoe or boot having a set of wheels aligned in a straight line fixed to the 
sole of the shoe or boot enabling the wearer to glide over any flat surface. 
 
Metal Detector or Metal Detecting Device: A device that fives an audible or visual signal 
when its search head comes close to an embedded metallic object. 
 
Mason Homestead: City owned property and buildings located at 1101 South Bagdad 
Road in Leander, Williamson County, Texas. 
 
Park: Any land selected, obtained or acquired by the city for use as a public park, 
recreation or playground area, and any building, structure, of facility thereon, owned and 
maintained by the city as a public park recreation or playground area, whether or not 
such land and buildings have been formally dedicated, except for the city golf course. 
 
Park Curfew Hours: 10:01 pm until 4:59 am daily 
 
Skateboard: A short, narrow board mounted on wheels. 
 
Skate Park: A park specifically designed and constructed for the purpose of recreational 
skateboarding and in-line skating. 
 
Sec. 1.402 Establishment of Parks & Recreation Department 
(a) The Leander Parks & Recreation Department is hereby established in the city of 

Leander Texas 
 

(b) The city manager shall appoint a director who shall be responsible for the 
management and administration of the department.  The director shall work at the 
pleasure of the city manager.  The department may appoint and employ personnel 
as authorized in the annual budget of the city. 

 
Sec. 1.403 Duties & Interpretive Powers of the Director 
(a) The director shall be responsible for the management, administration and directing 

the activities of the department.  The director shall oversee the operation and 
maintenance of all city parks, facilities on city parks and equipment used in city 



parks.  The director shall annually evaluate the department and all its employees and 
submit such evaluations to the city manager. 

(b) The director shall have the power to interpret this article as necessary for 
administrative procedure and implementation; provided that this article shall not be 
construed, applied, interpreted, nor enforced in a manner to violate the first 
amendment rights of any person, and the director shall seek the advice and 
recommendation of the city attorney prior to taking any action to enforce any 
provision of this article with respect to any con-commercial speech or assembly by 
any person. 

(c) Any city park, section, or part thereof, may be declared temporarily closed to the 
public by the director. 

 
Sec. 1.404 Permit Required for Certain Activities 
A permit is required to conduct any of the following city park activities.  Permits are not 
transferable to other persons or organizations and city sponsored activities are exempt 
from permit requirements. 
(a) An exhibit, dramatic performance, play motion picture, radio or television broadcast, 

fair, circus, petting zoo, musical event, or similar event; 
(b) A public meeting, assembly, parade, ceremony address speech, political meeting or 

other gathering involving one hundred (100) or more persons; 
(c) An activity using amplified sound; 
(d) To sell, offer or solicit goods or merchandise, or to offer services for monetary gain; 
(e) To post or affix any printed or written matter, sample or devise upon park property; 
(f) To distribute printed or written matter that advertises or provides information about a 

business, commodity, service, product or other commercial activity; and 
(g) Sale of alcohol is subject to City Council approval and compliance with Texas 

Alcoholic Beverage Commission requirements. 
 

Sec. 1.405 Permit Applications 
(a) Any person or organization seeking a permit shall make application to the director 

that includes the following information: 
a. The name, address email address and telephone number of applicant’ 
b. The exact nature of the use or activity for which the permit is sought;  
c. The day and hours for which the permit is sought; 
d. The park or portion of the park desired to be used to carry out the proposed 

activity; 
e. An estimate of the anticipated attendance; and  
f. Other information deemed pertinent by the director. 

(b) Applications shall be filed with the director for consideration no less than seven (7) 
working days before the date of the proposed use or activity. 

 
Section 4.06 Permit Issuance 
(a) A permit shall be issued unless: 

a. The proposed activity will unreasonably interfere with or detract from the 
public health, safety or welfare; 



b. The applicant has damaged park property on a prior occasion and has not 
paid for the damage; 

c. The conduct of the proposed activity or use is reasonably likely to result in or 
create a clear and present danger resulting in harm to the public or damage 
to the property; 

d. The park or park facilities desired have already been reserved for another 
activity on the day and at the time  requested in the application; 

e.  False or misleading information is contained in the application or required 
information is omitted; 

f. The applicant has violated the terms of a prior permit issued under this 
article; or 

g. The event would violate any federal, state or municipal law. 
(b) The director may impose reasonable conditions on the granting of a permit, including 

but not limited to the following: 
a. Place restrictions on fires, fireworks, amplified sound, sports, use of animals, 

equipment or vehicles, the number of persons to be present; the location of 
any bandstand or stage, or any other restriction that would reduce the 
likelihood of harm to persons or property; 

b. Require the applicant to post a reasonable deposit of security for the repair of 
any damage to park property, the cost of cleanup, or both, which shall be 
returned if the users do not damage park property, leave the facility in a litter 
free condition and return equipment; 

c. Require the applicant pay a reasonable fee to defray the cost of furnishing 
government funded security forces or special services; 

d. Require the applicant to furnish additional sanitary and refuse facilities that 
may be necessary for the activity; 

e. Require the permit to be in the possession of the applicant during the activity; 
f. Require the applicant’s signature on a release approved by the city 

acknowledging that the city is held harmless from any damages to persons or 
property arising out of the permitted activity; and 

 
Sec. 1.407 Director’s Action on Permit Applications; Appeal 
Within seven (7) working days after submission of a complete permit application the 
director shall apprise the applicant in writing of the director’s issuance or declination to 
issue the requested permit.  If the director declines to issue the requested permit the 
director shall list the reasons for such declination.  If the director attaches conditions to 
the issuance of a permit the director shall list such conditions.  Any aggrieved person 
may appeal the director’s decision within seven (7) working days by means of a written 
appeal to the city manager.  The city manager shall consider the appeal and sustain or 
overrule the director’s decision within seven (7) working days.  The city manager’s 
decision will be final. 
 
Sec. 1.408 Permittee Bound by Park Rules; Permit Revocation 
(a) A permittee is bound by all park rules, regulations and applicable city ordinances; 



(b) The person to whom a permit is issued shall be liable for any loss, damage or injury 
to any person or property whatever by reason of the negligence of the person to 
whom such permit was issued 

(c) The director shall have the authority to revoke a permit upon a finding of violation of 
any rule, ordinance, state or federal law, or upon the violation of any condition or 
restriction under which the permit was issued.  The revocation of a permit is 
appealable to the city manager by means of a written appeal within seven (7) days of 
the revocation.  The city manager shall consider the appeal and sustain or overrule 
the director’s revocation within seven (7) days of the receipt of the written appeal.  
The city manager’s decision will be final. 

 
Sec. 1.409  Facility Reservations & Rentals 
(a) City parks and facilities may be reserved for special activities or events.  Rental fees 

are established by the city council and reservations may be obtained by contacting 
PARD.  Reservations will not be confirmed until the applicant completes the 
application process and applicable rental fees and security deposits are received. 

(b) Refundable deposits shall be returned within fifteen (15) working days after the 
reservation date if there has been no damage to the facilities other than normal wear 
and tear.  If any damages beyond normal wear and tear have occurred, the amount 
of those damages will be deducted from such deposit.  If any damages are to be 
deducted, the city shall notify the depositor in writing concerning such damages and 
the associated costs.  If the amount of the damages exceeds the deposit amount the 
city shall notify the depositor, who shall be liable to the city for the excess and shall 
pay the balance due to the city within thirty (30) days of the date of such notice. 

 
Sec. 1.410 – 1.430 Reserved 
 

Division 2: Park Rules & Regulations 
 
Sec. 1.431 General Provisions 
(a) No person shall interfere with, annoy or disturb others in the use of a park.  Any 

person creating such interference, annoyance or disturbance is subject to ejection 
from the park. 

(b) All park facilities shall be available on a first-come, first-served basis to the general 
public except when such facilities are reserved. 

(c) The city council shall establish fees for the use of park facilities. 
 

Sec. 1.432 Prohibited Activities in City Parks 
No person shall do or cause to be done any of the following in a city park: 
(a) Use of possess glass containers; 
(b) Deface, displace, damage or remove park property; 
(c) Collect firewood; 
(d) Drill or min on city–owned property; 
(e) Indecent acts, cursing or swearing; 
(f) Possess or discharge a gun, bow and arrow, air or gas weapon, paintball gun or 

marker, or any instrument with a propelling force, spring, air or gas;  



(g) Operate or use any type of motor vehicle, motor assisted scooter or skateboard, 
including, but not limited to motorcycles, motorbikes and minibikes on any trail, 
sidewalk or park area not dedicated for such use.  This section does not apply to the 
operation of vehicles used by the city or city contractors; 

(h) Hit golf balls except in areas designated for that purpose; 
(i) Dump or dispose of trash, garbage, brush or waste except that which is generated by 

park visitors; 
(j) Overnight camping; 
(k) Ride any animal except in areas designated for that purpose; 
(l) Walk or bring any animal into a park without a leash except in a designated leash-

free area; 
(m) Fail to pick up and properly dispose of pet waste deposited by their pet; 
(n) Wade or swim in areas other than swimming pools or waterplayscapes except in 

areas designated for those purposes; 
(o) Ride or use bicycles or other wheeled vehicles in skate parks, or install, place or use 

obstacles or other modifications in skate parks;  
(p) Use of a metal detector or metal detecting devise. 
(q) Lighting, building or maintaining fires except in designated grills, fire rings or 

approved BBQ grills. 
 

Sec. 1.434 Prohibited Activities at the Mason Homestead 
(a) Smoking, tobacco use or pets inside the house 
(b) Use of nails, staple guns or tacks to hang decorations 
(c) Fires and flame burning candles  

 
Sec. 1.435 Reserved 
 
Sec. 1.436 Hours of Operation 
(a) City parks shall be open to the public from  5:00 am to 10:00 pm daily. 
(b) The Mason Homestead shall be available for rentals from 8:00 a.m. to midnight daily. 
(c) The Director has the authority to extend park hours for City programs. 

  
Sec. 1.437 Reserved 
 
Sec. 1.438 Protection of Wild Animals 
(a) No person shall capture, attempt to capture, hunt, molest, injure, trap, administer or 

set out any trap or harmful substance for any wild or domestic animal, reptile, bird or 
fish, nor remove or have in their possession the young, eggs or next of any animal, 
reptile or bird. 

(b) Fishing activities must comply with the current federal, state and local guidelines and 
allowable only in designated fishing areas. 

 
Sec. 1.439 – 1.441 Reserved 
 
Sec. 1.442 Swimming Pools & Water Playscapes 



(a) No child under twelve (12) years of age shall be permitted in a city swimming pool 
unless accompanied by an adult, except when such child is taking swim lessons from 
a proven competent person authorized by the city. 

(b) Children under seven (7) years of age using a water playscape must be 
accompanied by a parent or a competent person authorized by the parent and 
responsible for the safety and conduct of the child. 

 
Sec. 1.443 – 1.449 Reserved 
 
Sec. 1.450 Fees Established 
The city council hereby establishes fees as provided for in the fee schedule found in the 
appendix of this code for the use of city-owned parks and recreational facilities and the 
improvements thereon. 
 
 
 
 
Amended October 4, 2007, June 10, 2010, July 5, 2012, November 29, 2012, November 
5, 2015 

 
 



AGENDA ITEM # 27 

 
Executive Summary 

 
November 5, 2015 

 
 
Subject: Authorization of a Contract for Lakewood Park Construction Design Services 
 
Background: In January 2015 the City received a $400,000 grant from the Texas Parks & 
Wildlife Department (TPWD) for initial improvements in Lakewood Park. Since that time we 
have been busy obtaining clearance on three environmental studies (bird, karst and cultural 
resources), preparing an appraisal and acquiring four of the five parcels of land. We are ready 
to proceed with the preparation of construction plans for the assisted improvements.  Initial 
improvements include 1.1 miles of trails, 2 pavilions, fishing pier, canoe/kayak pier, kiosk, two 
backstops, picnic tables, benches the park entry road and parking. The construction design 
process is anticipated to take approximately six months. 
 
The City is required by TPWD to submit professionally sealed construction plans prior to the 
beginning of construction. 
 
A proposal from Halff Associates is attached for Council consideration. The cost for their design 
services is $72,900.   
 
Financial Consideration: $72,900 from the Parkland Dedication Fund 
  
Recommendation:  Staff respectfully recommends Council approval to enter into an agreement 
with Halff Associated in the amount of $72,900 for Lakewood Park construction design services.  
It is further recommended that the City Manager be authorized to execute the agreement. 
 
Attachments: Halff Associates Proposal; Lakewood Park Master Plan  
 
Prepared by:  Stephen Bosak, Parks & Recreation Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

      

ATTACHMENT A:  SCOPE OF WORK  
  
General Scope 
The purpose of the services proposed herein is to provide professional consulting services necessary for the 
development of the first phase of the Lakewood Park project, for the City of Leander, Texas.  It is the 
Consultants intent to work in effective cooperation with the Client to achieve an efficient and acceptable 
implementation of the project.   
 
Program 
Consultant shall provide services, as later described for the following general program elements (refer 
Attachment C – Lakewood Park Master Plan 2014:   
• 8’ wide concrete trail (3,200lf) 
• 10’ wide concrete trail (1,300lf) 
• 6’ wide earthen natural trail  
• Nature kiosk 
• (2) Picnic pavilions 
• Fishing pier 
• Canoe/kayak Pier 
• (2) Baseball Backstops 
• (8) Picnic tables 
• (6) Benches 
• Main entrance road 
• Parking lot (est. 50 spaces) 

 
Process of Services 
Given the above stated general scope and program we will provide the following process of services: 
 
PHASE 1:  PROJECT MANAGEMENT | COORDINATION 
This phase will include the following services: 
 
 Coordinate a kick-off meeting with the design team and City to identify project goals, schedules and 

projected milestones from preliminary design through construction. 
 Provide overall project management services including budget control, schedule control, project 

coordination, resource allocation, subconsultant management and coordination and preparation & 
processing of invoices. 

 Ensure timely delivery of all deliverables including electronic files, and hard copies of all pertinent 
information. 

 Perform Quality Control | Quality Assurance reviews for preliminary and construction documents. 
 Assist City in filing the appropriate plans, documents and reports with jurisdictional and regulatory 

agencies.   Submittal may include but not be limited to:  City Departments, TCEQ, TPWD and 
TDLR. 

 Review all modifications and comments requested by jurisdictional and regulatory agencies with the 
City. 

 Coordinate and oversee revisions to drawings and assist City in submitting final documents to the 
appropriate agency(s) for final processing, approvals and permits. 

 
 

PHASE 2:  CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS  
The Consultant will develop working drawings and technical sections of specifications necessary to 
construct the work based on the approved park master plan and program.  The Consultant intends to 



 

consolidate all available data and information into an overall project base map to be used throughout the 
design process.  Necessary information may include, but is not limited to: 
 
• Current City and/or State ARC/GIS/AutoCAD data sets available for the entire project area. 
• Infrared/Aerial photography of entire project. 
• Current FEMA Flood Plain data of entire project area. 
• Construction and as-built plans in AutoCAD format of existing project construction of compensatory 

cut area. 
• As-built topographic survey of project to the North of compensatory cut area from private developer 

in AutoCAD format. 
 
Working drawings may include, but not be limited to the following information: construction notes, 
utilities, grading/drainage, dimension control/layout, erosion/sedimentation/tree protection, landscaping, 
irrigation, site details, site electrical and structural. Consultant shall compliment drawings with 
specifications, which describe materials, systems and equipment, workmanship, quality and performance 
criteria required for the construction of the work.  Consultant shall coordinate utility needs with the City 
and utility service provider(s).  This phase will include the following services: 
 
• Review of project goals, objectives, and budget with design team and Client. 
• Conduct preliminary meeting(s) and/or research with regulatory entities to determine permit 

requirements including pre-development meeting with City Planning office.  
• Determine project time-line and tentative delivery schedule. 
• Coordinate construction drawings and specifications with other consultants. 
• Prepare sixty percent (60%) construction drawings and opinion of probable construction costs 

(OPCC) including appropriate escalation factors and contingencies. 
• Review 60% construction drawings and OPCC with Client (one meeting). 
• Prepare one hundred percent (100%) construction drawings, specifications, reports, permit 

applications and other documents required for permitting and construction; update OPCC including 
appropriate escalation factors and contingencies.  

• Assist Client in filing the appropriate plans and documents with jurisdictional and regulatory agencies.  
• Consultant shall register the project with the TDLR, submit plans and address any comments as 

required for conditional plan approval to secure compliance with the Texas Accessibility Standards 
and American with Disabilities Act.  TDLR inspection for compliance with TAS will be required upon 
completion of project construction. 

• *All required permitting, review and/or inspection fees are the responsibility of the  
• City of Leander or to be billed as a reimbursable expense. 
• Review all modifications requested by jurisdictional and regulatory agencies with the Client (two 

meetings). 
• Revise drawings and submit documents to the appropriate agency(s) for final processing, approvals 

and permits.  
 
*All required permitting, review and/or inspection fees are the responsibility of the City of Leander. 
 
PHASE 3:  REGULATORY ENTITLEMENT | PERMITTING  
3.1 Texas Commission on Environmental Quality: Edwards Aquifer Contributing Zone Plan 
  Consultant shall provide the following services: 

• Prepare a CZP to reflect the proposed improvements for the park. 
• Meet with TCEQ to review application and address any comments required for 

approval/permitting. 



 

*All required permitting, review and/or inspection fees are the responsibility of the  
City of Leander or to be billed as a reimbursable expense. 

 
3.2 WCID 
  Consultant shall provide the following services: 

• Prepare and submit permit application(s) as required. 
• Prepare necessary plans and application(s) for proposed park project improvements. 
• Review and address any comments required for approval and permitting. 
 
*All required permitting, review and/or inspection fees are the responsibility of the  
City of Leander or to be billed as a reimbursable expense. 

 

PHASE 4:  BIDDING ASSISTANCE 
Consultant shall assist Client during the bidding and negotiating process.  This phase will include the 
following services: 
Consultant shall assist City during the bidding process.  This phase will include the following services: 
•   Coordinate the schedule for bid advertising, pre-bid conference, and bid opening. 
•   Prepare and organize bid solicitation and proposal forms consistent with the City’s requirements. 
•   Arrange for printing and distribution of the bid documents. 
•   Conduct pre-bid conference (one meeting).  
•   Address contractor RFI’s, prepare and issue addenda as required. 
•   Attend the bid opening, review/evaluate bids including alternates and formulate bid tabulation 
       (one meeting). 
•   Provide written recommendation to City. 
•   Once approved by City Staff, attend City Council meeting for award of construction contract. 
•   Assist with issuance of the Notice of Award and construction contract documents/agreement.  

 
PHASE 5:  CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES  
Consultant shall assist City during the construction process.  Consultant shall endeavor to secure 
compliance by the contractor to the plans and specifications.  Consultant shall not be responsible for 
construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures in connection with the work and 
Consultant shall not be responsible for the contractor’s errors or omissions or failure to carry out the work 
in accordance with the contact documents.  City will provide and pay for construction inspection and 
materials testing services. Consultant shall assist City/Contractor in filing the TCEQ – TPDES/Notice of 
Intent (NOI). This phase will include the following services: 
 
• Assist City with Issuing the Notice to Proceed and assisting with acquiring executed contracts, bonds 

and insurance from the contractor. 
• Conduct and oversee a pre-construction meeting. 
• Constructions observation – preparation and processing of Requests for Information, Change 

Proposals, Change Orders, Change Directives, review/approval of shop drawing, submittals, samples 
and mock-ups (as required). 

• Conduct and oversee progress meetings (maximum 3 meeting).  Estimate construction time 9 months. 
• Review and approve contractor’s monthly Application and Certification for Payment. 
• Coordinate final inspection(s) and walk-thru for substantial completion; issue punch list and letter of 

substantial completion for incomplete items including time for completion. 
• Coordinate and attend final inspection, including TAS inspections.  
• Conduct final inspection for acceptance of project and issue letter of concurrence. 
• Acquire final close-out documents, warranties, accurate as-built drawings and other documents from 

contractor required to close-out project. 
• Review and approve contractor’s final Application(s) for Payment including retainage.  
*Field changes, change directives, change orders or any other changes during construction of the Project 
initiated by the Client, without prior written consent of the Consultant, shall indemnify and hold the 



 

Consultant harmless from any damage, liability or cost, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs of 
defense, arising from such changes.  
 
PHASE 6:  PROJECT DESIGN SURVEY 
Consultant will include the following services: 

 Establish horizontal and vertical control on State Plane Grid and North American Vertical 
Datum of 1988, NAVD88 

 Conduct topographic survey and existing surface within areas defined by client. Anticipated 
development area general established at 40 acres. Locate all visible structures, ground features, 
utility features and overhead obstructions. Trees (hardwoods , no cedar) of 8’ of greater to be 
located and tagged. Produce a 1-foot contour topographic map in CAD format including all 
visible features as defined. 

 Survey includes a (10) shot survey verification to mesh Pape-Dawson’s survey with Halff’s.  Any 
additional work beyond will be an add service.  

 Client will provide access through all gates and right of entry to the property. 
*Pape-Dawson to provide Halff with as-built survey upon completion of compensatory cut area.  
 
PHASE 7:  GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION 
Consultant shall perform geotechnical investigation as necessary for foundation design and construction 
recommendations for structures and pavement design recommendations.  The scope of work efforts 
proposed herein will include identification of location(s), investigative drill testing, sampling and 
assessment and analysis of the potential for subgrade structural needs as necessary to ensure proper design 
for elements within the park.  Based on the general program elements for the park, the following bores 
will be provided: parking areas (3), structural foundations (3), concrete trail (1). The geotechnical report 
shall include but not be limited to general site conditions, bore location plan, recommended foundation 
type for building structures including bearing pressures and elevations, flexible and rigid pavement 
thickness design recommendations and general pavement and earth work requirements.  

 
DISCLAIMERS 

Development Budgets 
A proposed development budget for all park program items indicated was generally established at 
$600,000 dollars, but Consultant does not guarantee that proposals, bids, or actual project cost will not 
vary from its opinions of probable construction costs (OPCC). 

Meetings  
This proposal includes professional service time for meetings for coordination and facilitation necessary 
for the performance of the work herein and has been identified within the process of services.  It is the 
intent of the Consultant to work cooperatively with the Client however, should the number of meetings 
exceed the identified and allotted number the Consultant reserves the right to limit further meetings 
and/or request Supplemental Services for additional meetings. 

Exclusions to Scope of Services 
Client shall provide the following information or services as required for performance of the work.  
Consultant assumes no responsibility for the accuracy of such information for services and shall not be 
liable for error or omissions therein.   
 
Opinion of Probable Construction Costs (OPCC)  
OPCC’s provided by the Consultant are based on the Consultant’s familiarity with the construction 
industry and are provided only to assist the City’s budget planning; such opinions shall not be construed to 
provide a guarantee or warranty of the actual construction costs at the time construction bids are solicited 
or construction contracts negotiated. Unless expressly agreed in writing and signed by the parties, no fixed 
limit of construction costs is established as a condition of this Agreement by the furnishing of opinions of 
probable construction costs. Throughout the design process the Consultant will assist the Client in value 



 

engineering the project and making necessary adjustments in an effort to meet the project construction 
budget.  
 
ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
The following services are not included within the scope of basic services. Should Consultant be required 
to provide services in obtaining or coordinating compilation of this information, such services shall be 
performed as Additional Services.  Additional Services shall only be provided if previously authorized by 
the Client.   
 
Additional Services may include, but not be limited to, the following: 
• Any meetings of coordination efforts not previously defined under the scope of work. 
• Environmental Surveying and Testing Services. 
• TPWD Environmental & Aquatic Permitting 
• TCEQ permitting other than CZP 
• EPA Permitting 
• US Fish and Wildlife Permitting 
• Geological Assessment. 
• Cultural Resource Survey 
• Karst & Salamander Habitat Assessment 
• Endangered Species Habitat Assessment 
• Roadway modifications. 
• Flood Plain Analysis  
• CLOMR and/or LOMR 
• Preparation of Phased bid package(s) with reduced scope of items defined herein, including 

construction drawings and specifications. 
• Construction Staking. 
• Construction Materials Testing. 
• Bridge Design (other than pre-engineered structures). 
• Hazardous Site Assessments. 
• Environmental services beyond those described in scope of services. 
• Land Acquisition services. 
• Easement acquisition or vacation including preparation of easement documents unless defined within 

scope of services. 
• Legal Lot Determinations unless defined within scope of services. 
• Preparation of multi-use agreement(s) and exhibits. 
• Assistance or representation in litigation concerning the property of proposed project. 
• Conflict Resolution. 
• Preparation and processing of Waivers, Variances or Exceptions. 
• Services required after final acceptance of construction work. 
• Permitting through Army Corp of Engineers (USACE).  
• Revisions to drawings previously approved by the City and regulatory entities due to changes in: 

Project scope, budget, schedule, unforeseen subsurface construction conditions or when such revisions 
are inconsistent with written approvals or instructions previously given; enactment or revision codes, 
laws, or regulations subsequent to the preparation of such documents. 

• Preparation of presentation materials for marketing or purposes other than in-progress approvals. 
• Public or other presentations beyond those described in scope of services. 
• Provide consultation, drawings, reports and other work products related to permits, approvals and 

ordinances not described in scope of services. 



 

• Providing professional services for the field selection of plant materials. 
• Gas, Telephone/Communication design. 
• Design of utility extension(s) to the project site.  
• Preparation of record documents from contractors as-built drawings 
• Providing services other than those outlined in scope of services.  
 
 

 

ATTACHMENT B:  FEE SCHEDULE & REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES 

 
For the basic services stated previously, the lump sum fee per phase shall be as follows.  Billing will occur 
on a monthly cycle, based on a percentage of work performed per phase and completed during the 
previous time period. Phase 8: Reimbursable Expense will be performed on a maximum not to exceed 
manner. 
 

PHASE | BASE SERVICE (BILLING GROUP)                   FEES   
Phase  1:  Project Management | Coordination     $ 2,400    
   
Phase  2:  Construction Documents      $ 20,280   
 
Phase  3:  Regulatory Entitlement & Permitting                    $ 19,500    
 
Phase  4:  Bidding Assistance       $ 2,720     
  
Phase  5:  Construction Phase Services      $ 6,120   
 
Phase  6:  Project Design Survey       $ 15,380    
 
Phase  7:  Geotech Investigation       $ 5,500   
 
 
 
TOTAL FOR BASIC SERVICES      $ 71,900  
 
Phase 8:  Reimbursable Expenses       $ 1,000 

 
TOTAL AMOUNT INCLUDING NTE REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES  $ 72,900 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT C:  LAKEWOOD PARK MASTER PLAN 2013 

 

 

 



N

13

13

15
14 16

18

19

1

4

6

7 8

9
10

10

20

11

15

17

3

12

2

5

1. main entry
2. skate park
3. “birthday party” pavilions
4. parking lot (200 parking spots)
5. playground
6. restrooms/storage
7. splash pad
8. basketball/volleyball courts
9. water quality/filtration basin
10. pecan/walnut orchard
11. off leash dog park (big/little dogs)
12. amphitheater
13. baseball backstops
14. pavilions
15. Blockhouse Creek Trail
16. fishing pier
17. kayak/canoe lanuch
18. nature area kiosk
19. kayak/canoe rental station
20. wildlife viewing area

Crystal Springs

Cold Springs

Hazlewood

Lakewood

Lake Lakewood
context

lakewood community park
preliminary final master plan july, 2014

leander, tx
scale: 1”=100’0’100’500’ 400’ 300’ 200’1,000’2,000’3,000’4,000’ baker-aicklen + associates

great lawn
11 acres | not lighted

future trail extension 
to 183A Tollway

Blockhouse Creek Trail

connection to 
Hazlewood HOA Park

to Cold Springs
to Cold Springsto Crystal Springs

future trail extension to 
Reagan/Parmer Boulevard

livery lagoon

la
ke

w
oo

d 
pa

rk
 b

ou
nd

ar
y 

Grand Lake Parkway 



AGENDA ITEM # 28 

 
 

 

Executive Summary 

November 5, 2015 

 

 

Council Agenda Subject:   Consideration of an Ordinance Establishing a Train Horn 
Quiet Zone for the Railroad Crossing at Hero Way Adjacent to U.S. Hwy 183 
 
Background:   This proposed ordinance, prepared by the City Attorney, amends Section 
12.06.002 of the Leander Code of Ordinances in order to establish and add the railroad 
crossing at Hero Way adjacent to U.S. Hwy. 183 as a “Quiet Zone Crossing”.   The 
effective date for the commencement of the Hero Way Quiet Zone is November 11, 2015.  
  
Origination:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration:  Approximately $600.00 from Street Department budget for 
regulatory warning signs on Hero Way and U.S. Hwy. 183. 
 
Recommendation:  Staff requests approval of the proposed quiet zone ordinance. 
 
Attachments:  Ordinance Establishing a Train Horn Quiet Zone at Hero Way Rail 
Crossing 

 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 







AGENDA ITEM # 29 

 
Executive Summary 
November 5, 2015 

 
 

 
Agenda Subject:  Consider casting ballot for Williamson Central Appraisal District 
Board of Directors. 
 
Background:  Attached is the official ballot for WCAD Board of Directors.  Directors 
serve two-year terms and the City of Leander has 70 votes to cast.  These votes can be 
cast for one candidate or they can be divided among several candidates.  The five 
directors on the ballot are also the current incumbents. 
 
 Origination:  Robert G. Powers, Finance Director 
 
Recommendation:  N/A 
 
Attachments:  Official Ballot, correspondence 
 
Prepared by:  Robert G. Powers, Finance Director 



Board of Directors Election 

Excerpts from Texas Property Tax Code Section 6.03 Board of Directors 

(e) The chief appraiser shall calculate the number of votes to which each taxing 
unit other than a conservation and reclamation district is entitled and shall 
deliver written notice to each of those units of its voting entitlement before 
October 1 of each odd-numbered year. The chief appraiser shall deliver the 
notice: 

(1) to the county judge and each commissioner of the county served by 
the appraisal district; 

(2) to the presiding officer of the governing body of each city or town 
participating in the appraisal district, to the city manager of each city or 
town having a city manager, and to the city secretary or clerk, if there is 
one, of each city or town that does not have a city manager; and 

(3) to the presiding officer of the governing body of each school district 
participating in the district and to the superintendent of those school 
districts. 

(g) Each taxing unit other than a conservation and reclamation district that is 
entitled to vote may nominate by resolution adopted by its governing body one 
candidate for each position to be filled on the board of directors. The presiding 
officer of the governing body of the unit shall submit the names of the unit's 
nominees to the chief appraiser before October 15. 

(j) Before October 30, the chief appraiser shall prepare a ballot, listing the 
candidates whose names were timely submitted under Subsection (g), 
alphabetically according to the first letter in each candidate's surname, and 
shall deliver a copy of the ballot to the presiding officer of the governing body of 
each taxing unit that is entitled to vote. 

(k) The governing body of each taxing unit entitled to vote shall determine its 
vote by resolution and submit it to the chief appraiser before December 15. The 
chief appraiser shall count the votes, declare the five candidates who receive 
the largest cumulative vote totals elected, and submit the results before 
December 31 to the governing body of each taxing unit in the district and to the 
candidates. 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The Williamson Central Appraisal District is governed by a Board of five Directors. 

Eligibility 

To be eligible to serve on the Board, an individual must be a resident of the district and must have resided 
in the district for at least two years immediately preceding the date of appointment. 

Section 6.035 of the Property Tax Code states an individual is ineligible to serve on an appraisal district 
Board of Directors if the individual owns property on which delinquent taxes have been owed to a taxing 
unit for more than 60 days after the date the individual knew or should have known of the delinquency 
unless: 

(a) the delinquent taxes and any penalties and interest are being paid under an installment 
payment agreement 

(b) a suit to collect the delinquent taxes is deferred or abated 

An employee of a taxing unit participating in the appraisal district is not eligible to serve unless the 
individual is also a member of the governing body or an elected official of a taxing unit participating in 
the district. 

Section 6.035 of the Property Tax Code, effective September 1, 1989, bars a Board member from serving 
if the member is related to a person who operates for compensation as a tax agent or a property tax 
appraiser in the appraisal district. 

Section 6.036 of the Property Tax Code, effective September 1, 1989, bars a person from serving on the 
Board if they contract with the appraisal district, or if they contract on a tax related matter with a taxing 
unit served by the appraisal district, or if they have a substantial interest in a business that contracts with 
the appraisal district or a taxing unit served by the appraisal district. 

Term of Office 

Members of the Board of Directors will serve two-year terms beginning in January of even numbered 
years. 

Selection 

Section 6.03 of the Property Tax Code establishes the selection process for Appraisal District Directors. 
Members of the Board are selected by certain taxing units participating in the district. An option of the 
Property Tax Code allows three-fourths of the voting units to increase the number of Directors. The 
taxing units of Williamson County have adopted a five member Board of Directors. 

Vacancies on the Board 

Section 6.03 of the Property Tax Code (Board of Directors) provides that in the event of a vacancy on the 
Board, the governing body of the taxing unit or units shall nominate a candidate. The Board of Directors 
shall elect by majority vote of its members one of the nominees to f i l l the vacancy. 

Recall 

Section 6.033 of the Property Tax Code (Recall of Director) provides that the governing body of a taxing 
unit that participated in the appointment of an individual to the Board may initiate the procedure for recall 
of its representative. 



'-MWMJ 

IAAo!!55^ 

"We will provide quality service with the highest standards of 

professionalism, integrity and respect. We will uphold these 

standards while providing an accurate, fair and cost-effective 

appraisal roll in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas." 

October 22, 2015 

Chris Fielder, Mayor ^ % | 
City of Leander 
P.O. Box 319 
Leander.TX 78646-0319 

Dear Mayor Fielder: 

Enclosed is the official ballot listing all nominees timely submitted for the Board of 
Directors for the Williamson Central Appraisal District in accordance w.th Sect.on 6.03 of 

the Texas Property Tax Code. 

According to Section 6.03 of the Texas Property Tax Code each taxing umt must 

^ te rm ine their vote by resolution and submit it to the Chief Appraiser before December 

15, 2015. 

Please find enclosed an Election Votes listing showing the final number of votes to which 
each unit is entitled. The enclosed ballot reflects your correct number of votes. 

If you have any questions, please feel free to call. 

With Kindest Regards, 

Alvin Lankford 
Chief Appraiser 

ARL/cam 

Enclosures 

Boa,-cLofl)i.-cctQrs Ham Gibbs. Chairman ~ C l ^ n u s e r A t o L ^ r f 

Deborah Hunt, Vice-Chairman alvinlfawead.org 

Cecilia M . Crowley, Secretary 

Rufus Honeycutt 

Charles Chadwell 

625 F . M . 1460, Georgetown, Texas 78626 

(512)930-3787 www.wcad.ors 



Williamson Central Appraisal District 

Board of Directors Nominees 

Official Ballot 2015 

INSTRUCTION NOTE: 

Indicate your vote for the candidate or candidates of your choice by placing 
the number of votes in the blank beside the candidate or candidates name. 

ENTITY Citv of Leander NUMBER OF VOTES 70 

CHADWELL, C H A R L E S 

CROWLEY, CECILIA M. . 

GIBBS, HARRY 

HONEYCUTT, R U F U S 

HUNT, DEBORAH M. 

ATTEST: 

Signature 

Date 



2015 
Board Election Votes 

Number 
Taxing Jurisdiction of Votes Taxing Jurisdiction 2014 Levy % x 1,000 x5 

City of Austin 135 City of Austin $ 24,960,545 0.026851941 26.85194 27 135 
City of Bartlett 0 City of Bartlett $ 153,033 0.000164629 0.164629 0 0 
City of Cedar Park 145 City of Cedar Park $ 27,191,659 ] 0.029252119 29.25212 29 145 
City of Coupland 0 City of Coupland $ 36,702 0.000039483 0.039483 0 0 
City of Florence 0 City of Florence $ 262,155 0.00028202 0.28202 0 0 
City of Georgetown 115 City of Georgetown $ 20,989,456 0.022579941 22.57994 23 115 
City of Granger 0 City of Granger $ 376,440 0.000404965 0.404965 0 0 
City of Hutto 30 City of Hutto $ 5,835,922 0.006278142 6.278142 6 30 
City of Jarrell 5 City of Jarrell $ 455,356 0.00048986 0.48986 1 5 
City of Leander 70 City of Leander $ 13,170,497 0.014168497 14.1685 14 70 
City of Liberty Hill 5 City of Liberty Hill $ 653,505 0.000703025 0.703025 1 5 
City of Pflugerville 0 City of Pflugerville $ 56,981 6.12983E-05 0.061298 0 0 
City of Round Rock 210 City of Round Rock $ 38,901,193 0.041848948 41.84895 42 210 
City of Taylor 35 City of Taylor $ 6,726,147 0.007235824 7.235824 7 35 
City of Thrall 0 City of Thrall $ 141,482 0.000152203 0.152203 0 0 
City of Thorndale 0 City of Thorndale $ 433 4.66155E-07 0.000466 0 0 
City of Weir 0 City of Weir $ 59,930 6.44711E-05 0.064471 0 0 
Bartlett ISD 5 Bartlett ISD $ 534,013 0.000574478 0.574478 1 5 
Burnet ISD 0 Burnet ISD $ 74,173 7.97935E-05 0.079793 0 0 
Coupland ISD 5 Coupland ISD $ 590,684 0.000635443 0.635443' 1 5 
Florence ISD 20 ; Florence ISD $ 3,275,065 0.003523234 3.523234 4 20 
Georgetown ISD 485 Georgetown ISD $ 90,302,921 0.097145664 97.14566 97 485 
Granger ISD 10 Granger ISD $ 1,423,572 0.001531443 1.531443 2 10 
Hutto ISD 1551 Hutto ISD $ 29,052,218 0.031253663 31.25366 31 155 
Jarrell ISD 55 Jarrell ISD $ 10,601,547 0.011404884 11.40488 11 55 
LeanderISD 765 Leander ISD $ 142,296,944 0.153079556 153.0796 153 765 
Lexington ISD 0 Lexington ISD $ 23,723 2.55207E-05 0.025521 0 0 
Liberty Hill ISD 100 Liberty Hill ISD $ 18,772,035 0.020194494 20.19449 20 100 
Pflugerville ISD 0 Pflugerville ISD $ 125,686 0.00013521 0.13521 0 0 
Round Rock ISD 1345 Round Rock ISD $ 249,953,946 0.268894315 268.8943 269 1345 
Taylor ISD 65 Taylor ISD $ 12,191,908 0.013115755 13.11576 13 65 
Thorndale ISD 0 ! Thorndale ISD $ 186,722 0.000200871 0.200871 0 0 
Thrall ISD 15 Thrall ISD $ 2,421,521 0.002605013 2.605013 3 15 
Williamson Co. & FM/f 1080 Williamson Co. & FM/RD $ 200,576,486 0.215775256 215.7753 216 1080 
Austin Community Col 140 Austin Community College $ 26,261,869 0.028251874 28.25187 28 140 
EWC Higher Ed Cente 5 EWC Higher Ed Center $ 925,564 0.000995699 0.995699 1 5 
Total 5000 $ 929,562,033 1 1000 1000 5000 



AGENDA ITEM # 30 

 

 

Executive Summary 

November 5, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consideration of Adoption of Official City Map 
  
Background:   The Official City Map dated January 1, 2013, attached as Exhibit A, was 
adopted by the City Council on January 3, 2013.  As required by Section 41.001 of the 
Texas Local Government Code, the Official City Map has been immediately revised and 
annotated with the date and ordinance number of each change in municipal and extra 
territorial boundaries.  The current updated, annotated Official City Map, dated October 
9, 2015, attached as Exhibit B, shows boundary revisions in the table in the upper right 
corner of the map listing the dates and ordinance numbers of each boundary revision.  As 
the area on the map used for annotating boundary changes is essentially full, staff 
prepared the proposed Official City Map, also dated October 9, 2015, which is attached 
as Exhibit C.  The adoption of this non-annotated, proposed Official City Map will allow 
continued annotation of subsequent boundary changes with minimal impact to the extents 
of the map.  
  
Origination:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration:  N/A 
 
Recommendation:   Staff recommends adoption of Official City Map dated October 9, 
2015, as presented in Exhibit C 
 
Attachments:   Exhibit A – Official City Map dated January 3, 2013; Exhibit B – 
updated, annotated Official City Map dated October 9, 2015; and Exhibit C – Official 
City Map dated October 9, 2015. 

  
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 



183A

CR 279

RM 2243

W SH 29

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

S U
S 1

83
US

 18
3

E WHITESTONE BLVD

S BAGDAD RD

OLD 2243 WEST

N BELL BLVD

N 
LA

KE
LIN

E B
LV

D

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

BA
GD

AD
 R

D

E CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

W WHITESTONE BLVD

RM 1431

N BAGDAD RD N 
US

 18
3

E SOUTH ST

Boundary Agreement Lines
County Line
City of Leander - City Limits
City of Leander - 2 Mile and Voluntary E.T.J.

Approximate Area:
City Limits:                            26.45 Square Miles
E.T.J. outside of City Limits: 36.05 Square Miles
Total City Limits and E.T.J.:  62.50 Square Miles

City of Cedar Park, TexasCity of Jonestown, Texas

Ë
0 2,000 4,000

Feet
Coordinate System: NAD 1983 StatePlane Texas Central FIPS 4203 Feet
Projection: Lambert Conformal Conic
Datum: North American 1983
False Easting: 2,296,583.3333
False Northing: 9,842,500.0000
Central Meridian: -100.3333
Standard Parallel 1: 30.1167
Standard Parallel 2: 31.8833
Latitude Of Origin: 29.6667
Units: Foot US

Reflects City Limits
and ETJ as of

January 1, 2013

OFFICIAL CITY MAP

City Of Leander, Texas



183A

W SH 29

RM 2243

CR
 27

9

RM 1431

S U
S 1

83

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

US
 18

3

E WHITESTONE BLVD

S BAGDAD RD

N BELL BLVD

OLD 2243 WEST

N 
LA

KE
LIN

E B
LV

D
CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

BA
GD

AD
 R

D

E CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

N 
US

 18
3

W WHITESTONE BLVD

W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

N BAGDAD RD

Boundary Agreement Lines

County Line

Current City Limit 2 Mile Buffer

City of Leander - City Limits

City of Leander - 2 Mile and Voluntary E.T.J.

Note: The City of Leander and its officers, agents, and employees
do not represent this data to be correct or accurate in any respect
or that its use will not infringe on any copyright, patent, or other
rights of any third party.  The City shall have no liability or
responsibility for the accuracy, completeness, or usefulness of this
data; and makes no representation or warranty of merchantability or 
fitness for any purpose, either expressed or implied.  All risks of
using this data are assumed by the user and/or purchaser.

Approximate Area:
City Limits:                            29.80 Square Miles
E.T.J. outside of City Limits: 34.10 Square Miles
Total City Limits and E.T.J.:  63.90 Square Miles

City Of Leander, Texas
CITY LIMITS AND

EXTRATERRITORIAL
JURISDICITON

October 9, 2015

Ë

Coordinate System: NAD 1983 StatePlane Texas Central FIPS 4203 Feet
Projection: Lambert Conformal Conic
Datum: North American 1983
False Easting: 2,296,583.3333
False Northing: 9,842,500.0000
Central Meridian: -100.3333
Standard Parallel 1: 30.1167
Standard Parallel 2: 31.8833
Latitude Of Origin: 29.6667
Units: Foot US

0 2,500 5,000

Feet

Document Date
13-001-00 01/17/2013
13-002-00 01/17/2013
13-003-00 01/17/2013
13-004-00 01/17/2013
13-005-00 01/17/2013
13-006-00 01/17/2013
13-007-00 01/17/2013
13-008-00 01/17/2013
13-012-00 02/21/2013
13-013-00 02/21/2013
13-030-00 05/02/2013
13-031-00 05/02/2013
13-074-00 12/05/2013
14-017-00 04/03/2014
14-027-00 05/15/2014
14-028-00 05/15/2014
14-029-00 05/15/2014
14-048-00 08/21/2014
14-049-00 08/21/2014
14-055-00 09/04/2014
14-068-00 11/06/2014
15-003-00 01/15/2015
15-013-00 03/05/2015
15-014-00 03/05/2015
Agreement 04/28/2015
15-039-00 08/20/2015
15-048-00 10/01/2015
Agreement 10/08/2015

Annexation or Release

Revision 1



183A

W SH 29

RM 2243

CR
 27

9

RM 1431

S U
S 1

83

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

US
 18

3

E WHITESTONE BLVD

S BAGDAD RD

N BELL BLVD

OLD 2243 WEST

N 
LA

KE
LIN

E B
LV

D
CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

BA
GD

AD
 R

D

E CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

N 
US

 18
3

W WHITESTONE BLVD

W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

N BAGDAD RD

Boundary Agreement Lines

County Line

Current City Limit 2 Mile Buffer

City of Leander - City Limits

City of Leander - 2 Mile and Voluntary E.T.J.

Approximate Area:
City Limits:                            29.80 Square Miles
E.T.J. outside of City Limits: 34.10 Square Miles
Total City Limits and E.T.J.:  63.90 Square Miles

Ë

Coordinate System: NAD 1983 StatePlane Texas Central FIPS 4203 Feet
Projection: Lambert Conformal Conic
Datum: North American 1983
False Easting: 2,296,583.3333
False Northing: 9,842,500.0000
Central Meridian: -100.3333
Standard Parallel 1: 30.1167
Standard Parallel 2: 31.8833
Latitude Of Origin: 29.6667
Units: Foot US

0 2,500 5,000

Feet

City Of Leander, Texas
OFFICIAL MAP

Reflects City Limits
and ETJ as of

October 9, 2015


	Agenda
	Worksession Item # 1
	Item # 5
	Item # 6
	Item # 7
	Item # 8
	Item # 9
	Item # 10
	Item # 11
	Item # 12
	Item # 13
	Item # 14
	Item # 15
	Item # 16
	Item # 17
	Item # 18
	Item # 19
	Item # 22
	Item # 23
	Item # 24
	Item # 25
	Item # 26
	Item # 27
	Item # 28
	Item # 29
	Item # 30



